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November 9, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301
REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into Retroactive, Sole Source contracts with the vendors listed in bold below
for additional funding for the Young Adult Strategies program, by increasing the total price
limitation by $601,824 from $10,414,931 to $11,016,755 with no change to the contract
completion dates of June 30, 2021 effective retroactive to October T, 2020 upon Governor and
Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contracts were approved by Governor and Council as indicated in the table
below.

Vendor

Name

Vendor

Code

Contract

Number

Area

Served

Current'

Amount'
Increase

(Decrease

)

Revised

Amount

G&C Approval

.  1

City of
Manchester 177433 1068192 Greater

Manchester
$1,294,885 $67;500 $1,362,385

0: June 19, 2019,
item (#78E)

A1: February 5,
2020, item (#7)

A2: May 6. 2020,
item (#47)

A3: GA-7/10/20 II-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

City of
Nashua 177441 1070165 Greater

Nashua
$931,156 $0 $931,156

0: September 18,
2019, item (#25)

A1: February 5,
2020, item #(7)

A2: May 6, 2020,
item (#47)

A3: GA - 10/5/20

The Department of Health and Human Scruiccs' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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0: June 19.2019,
item (#78E)

County of
Cheshire 177372 1068196 Greater

Monadnock
$664,792 $0 $664,792

A1: February 5,
2020. Item #{7)

A2: May 6, 2020,
item (#47)

A3: GA-7/10/2011-

8/26/20 (#L)

0: June 19, 2019,
item #(78E)

. Granite

United Way 160015 1068198

Concord,
Carroll

County,
and S^th

Central

$2,259,571 $202,600 $2,462,071

A1: February 6,
2020, Item #(7)

A2: May 6, 2020,
item (#47)

A3: GA-7/10/20II-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

0: June 19, 2019,
Item (#78E)

Greater

Seacoaet
Community

Health

154703 1068193 Strafford

County
$750,800 $67,500 $818,300

A1: February 5.
2020, item #(7)

A2: May 6. 2020,
item #(47)

A3: GA-7/10/20 II-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

1

0: June 19, 2019,
Item (#78E)

Lakes

Region
Partnership
for Public

Health

165635 1068197 Wlnnlpesa
ukee

$725,216 $67,500 $792,716

A1: February 5,
2020. item #(7)

A2: May 6, 2020.
item #(47)

A3: GA-7/10/20 11-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

Lamprey
Health Care 177677 1068952 Seacoast $794,643 $61,824 $856,467

0: June 19.2019,
item (#78E)

A1: February 5.
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2020, item #(7)

A2: May 6. 2020.
Item #{47)

A3: OA-7/10/20 II-

8/26/20 {#L)

A4: TBD

Mary
Hitchcock

Memorial

Hospital

177160 177160

Greater

Sullivan and

Upper
Valley

$1,543,853 $0 $1,543,853

0: June 19, 2019,
Item (#7aE)

A1: February 5,
2020, Item #(7)

A2: May 6, 2020,
item #47

A3: GA-7/10/2011-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4:TBD

Mid-State
Health

Center
158055 1068190 Central NH $707,878 $67,500 $775,378

0: June 19, 2019.
item (#78E)

A1: February 5,
2020, item #(7)

A2: May 6. 2020,
item #47

A3: GA-7/10/20 II-

6/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

North

Country
Health

Consortium

158557 1058199 North

Country
$742,137 $67,500 $809,637

0: June 19. 2019;
item (#78E)

A1: February 5.
2020, item #<7)

A2: May 6, 2020,
item #(47)

A3: GA-7/10/20 II-

8/26/20 (#L)

A4: TBD

Total $10,414,931 $601,824 $11,016,755

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, with the authority
to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
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EXPLANATION

This request Is Retroactive l>ecause the Department did not receive the notice of award
for funding from the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sendees Administration (SAMHSA) until
September 22, 2020 granting the Department authority to extend funding and services. This
request is Sole Source t)ecause the contracts were originally approved as sole source and MOP
150 requires any subsequent amendments to be labell^ as sole source.

The purpose of this request is to add additional funding to seven (7) of the Contractors, to
enhance services and expand outreach to young adults between the ages of 18 and 25 to prevent
and reduce the use of alcohol, marijuana, and non-medical prescription drugs Including opioids
and illicit opioids.

The Contractors will provide evidence-informed services and programs that are
appropriate and culturally relevant for young adults between the ages of 18 to 25 years In high-
risk high-need communities. Approximately 8,000 individuals will be served from April 1, 2019 to
June 30. 2021.

The Contractors will continue ensuring evidenced-lnformed sut>stance misuse prevention
strategies are available in a variety of settings including workplaces, college campuses,
community centers, and within homes via home visiting sen/ices. The strategies are designed for
the targeted populations with the goats of reducing risky behaviors while enhancing protective
factors to positively impact healthy decisions around the use of substances and increase
knowledge of the consequences of substance misuse.

The Department will monitor contracted services by having participants complete a sun/ey
vyhere the following outcomes will be measured:

•  Participants report a decrease in past 30-day alcohol use.

•  Participants report a decrease in past 30-day non-medical prescription drug use.

•  Participants report a decrease in past 30-day illicit drug use including illicit opioids.

•  Participants report a decrease in negative consequences from substance misuse.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, young adults who
are most vulnerable and at risk for misusing substances and for developing a substance use
disorder will not benefit from prevention and early intervention strategies.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.243, FAIN # SP020796

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
l:>e requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

-W
Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMeNT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

05-95-gO-901010-8011 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, KHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POLICY AND

PERFORMANCE, PREVENTIVE HEALTH BLOCK GRANT

City of Nashua Vendor#177441-8011

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sut>-Total $30,000 SO $30,000

County of Cheshire Vendor#177372-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 . $0 $30,000

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor# 154703-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Curent Budget Increased

(O^reased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total SX,000 $0 $30,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor # 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

((Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Page 1 of 21



FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 •  $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Manchester Health Department Vendor# 177433-B009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

Mid-State Health Center Vendor#158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30:000

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-B001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90001022 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub-Total $30,000 $0 $30,000

SUB TOTAL $390,000 $0 $390,000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

05-e5.90-902510.7S45 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OP HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS

DISEASE CONTROL. EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

74% Federal Funds & 26% General Funds

CFDA #93.069 FAIN #U90TP922018

City of Nashua Vendor#177441-B011

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 S182.673 $0 $182,673

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90C77028 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub Total 2020 $197,673 $0 $197,673

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $179,673 $0 $179,673

2021 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub Total 2021 $194,673 $0 $194,673

iSub-Total $392,346 $0 $392,346

County of Cheshire Vendor# 177372-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $92,910 $0 $92,910

Sub Total 2020 $92,910 $0 $92,910

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $89,910 $0 $89,910

Sub Total 2021 $89,910 $0 $89,910

iSub-Total $182,820 $0 $182,820

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor #154703-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

' Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $77,580 $0 $77,580

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000

community Health Sub Total 2020 $92,580 $0 $92,580

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $77,580 $0 $77,580

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub Total 2021 $92,580 $0 $92,580

iSutj-Total $185,160 $0 $185,160

Granite United Way • Capitol Reaion Vendor #160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077410 $96,430 $0 $96,430

' - Capitol Reaion Sub Total 2020 $96,430 $0 $96,430

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $93,430 $0 $93,430

Sub Total 2021 $93,430 $0 $93,430

iSub-Total $189,860 $0 $189,860
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Granite United Way • Carroll County Reoion Vendor# 160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077410 $66,600 $0 $86,600
- Carroll County Reoion Sub Total 2020 $86,600 $0 $86,600
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83,600

"• Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83,600
ISut>-Total $170,200 $0 $170,200

Granite United Way -South Central Reaion Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Ctass / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $62,360 $0 $82,360
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
•South Central Reoion Sub Total 2020 $97,360 $0 $97,360
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $79,360 $0 $79,360
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 SO $15,000

Sub Total 2021 $94,360 $0 $94,360
ISuthTotal $191,720 $0 $191,720

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677-R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $82,675 $0 $82,675
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
re Sub Total 2020 $97,675 $0 $97,675
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $79,675 $0 $79,675
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000

Sub Total 2021 $94,675 $0 $94,675

ISub-Total $192,350 $0 $192,350

Lakes Reaion Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $89,750 $0 $89,750
ership for Public Health Sub Total 2020 $89,750 $0 $89,750
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $86,750 $0 $86,750

Sub Total 2021 $86,750 $0 $86,750
iSub-Total $176,500 $0 $176,500

Manchester Health Department Vendor # 177433-B009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $273,223 $0 $273,223
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 $0 $15,000
Department Sub Total 2020 $288,223 $0 $288,223
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $270,223 $0 $270,223
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077028 $15,000 so $15,000

Sub Total 2021 $285,223 $0 $285,223
ISub-Total $573,446 $0 $573,446
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor#177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

/Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 S86.600 $0 $86,600
Tiorial Hosoital • Sullivan County Region Sub Total 2020 S86.600 SO $86,600
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83,600

Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83,600
iSub-Total $170,200 $0 $170,200

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hosoital • Uooer Valley Region Vendor #177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

, Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $86,600 $0 $86,600
Tiorial Hosoital • Uooer Valley Region Sub Total 2020 $86,600 $0 $86,600
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83,600

Sub Total 2021 $83,600 so $83,600
ISub-Totai $170,200 $0 $170,200

Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

((decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83,600
inter Sub Total 2020 $83,600 SO $83,600
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $83,600 $0 $83,600

Sub Total 2021 $83,600 $0 $83,600

iSub-Totai $167,200 $0 $167,200

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

(tevised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077410 $91,550 $0 $91,550
:h Consortium Sub Total 2020 $91,550 $0 $91,550
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077410 $88,550 $0 $68,550

Sub Total 2021 $88,550 $0 ^  $88,550
Sub-Total $180,100 $0 $180,100
SUB TOTAL $2,942,102 SO $2,942,102
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

05-95-92-920510-3380 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

ALCOHOL, PREVENTION SVS

97% Federal Funds & 3% General Funds

CFDA ira3.959 FAIN #TI010035

City of Nashua Vendor# 177441-B011

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $91,162 $0 $91,162

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $41,243 $0 $41,243

Sub Total 2020 $132,405 $0 $132,405

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $91,162 $0 $91,162

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $41,243 $0 $41,243

Sub Total 2021 $132,405 $0 -  $132,405

iSub-Total $264,810 $0 $264,810

County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $94,324 $0 $94,324

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $39,662 $0 $39,662

Sub Total 2020 $133,986 $0 $133,986

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $94,324 $0 $94,324

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $39,662 $0 $39,662

Sub Total 2021 $133,986 $0 $133,986

iSub-Total $267,972 $0 $267,972

Greater Seacoast Communttv Health Vendor # 154703-8001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $85,917 $0 $85,917

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $45,634 $0 $45,634

:ommunitv Health Sub Total 2020 $131,551 $0 $131,551

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $82,380 $0 $82,380

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $45,634 $0 $45,634

Sub Total 2021 $128,014 $0 $128,014
iSub-Total $259,565 $0 $259,565

Granite United Way - Capitol Reoion Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,014 $0 $93,014

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $40,250 $0 $40,250

- Capitol Reoion Sub Total 2020 $133,264 $0 $133,264

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,015 .  $0 $93,015

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $40,250 $0 $40,250

Sub Total 2021 $133,265 $0 $133,265

iSub-Totai $266,529 $0 $266,529

Granite United Way •Carroll County Reoion Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,121 $0 $93,121

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $40,264 $0 $40,264

- Carroll County Reoion Sub Total 2020 $133,385 $0 $133,385

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,121 $0 $93,121

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $40,264 $0 $40,264

Sub Total 2021 $133,385 $0 $133,385

iSub-Tolai $266,770 so $266,770
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,375 $0 $93,375
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057504 $40,137 $0 $40,137
' -South Central Reqton Sub Total 2020 $133,512 SC $133,512
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $93,375 $0 $93,375
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057504 $40,137 $0 $40,137

Sub Total 2021 $133,512 $0 $133,512

iSub-Total $267,024 $0 $267,024

Lamorev Health Care Vendor#177e77-R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057502 $88,649 $0 $88,649
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057504 $42,500 SO $42,500
re '  Sub Total 2020 $131,149 so $131,149
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $66,649 $0 $88,649
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $42,500 $0 $42,500

Sub Total 2021 $131,149 $0 $131,149
ISub-Total $262,298 $0 $262,298

Lakes Recion Partnership for Public Health Vendor« 165635-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $84,367 $0 $84,367
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $44,641 $0 $44;641
ershio for Public Health Sub Total 2020 $129,008 $0 $129,008
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $84,367 $0 $84,367
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $44,641 $0 $44,641

Sub Total 2021 $129,006 $0 $129,008
ISub-Total $258,016 $0 $258,016

Manchester Health Oeoartmenl Vendor# 177433-8009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057502 $96,040 SO $98,040
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $37,805 $0 $37,805
Department Sub Total 2020 $135,845 $0 $135,845
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92057502 $98,040 $0 $98,040
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $37,805 $0 $37,805

Sub Total 2021 $135,845 .  $0 $135,845
ISub-Tolal $271,690 so $271,690

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $99,275 $0 $99,275
2020 102-500731 • Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,087 $0 $37,087
Tiorial Hospital - Sullivan Countv Region Sub Total 2020 $136,362 $0 $136,362
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $99,275 so $99,275
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,087 $0 $37,087

Sub Total 2021 $136,362 so $136,362
ISub-Total $272,724 so $272,724
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor #177160-6003

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

fDecreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $96,125 $0 $96,125
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,037 $0 $37,037

Tiorial Hosoital • Uooer Valley Region Sub Total 2020 $133,162 $0 $133,162
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $99,575 $0 $99,575
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $37,037 SO $37,037

Sub Total 2021 $136,612 $0 $136,612

ISub-Total $269,774 $0 $269,774

Mid-State Health Center Vendor# 158055-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $78,453 $0 . $78,453

2020 102-500731 . Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40,098 SO $40,098
inter Sub Total 2020 $118,551 $0 $118,551

2021 • 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $93,453 $0 $93,453
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40,098 $0 $40,098

Sub Total 2021 $133,551 $0 $133,551
ISub-Total $252,102 $0 $252,102

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057502 $92,488 $0 $92,488

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92057504 $40,581 •  $0 $40,581
:b Consortium Sub Total 2020 $133,069 $0 $133,069

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057502 $92,488 SO $92,488

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057504 $40,581 $0 $40,581
Sub Total 2021 $133,069 $0 $133,069

Sub-Total $266,138 $0 $266,138

SUB TOTAL $3,445,412 $0 $3,445,412

06-d5-92-920510-3395 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS; BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND

ALCOHOL. PFS2

100% Federal Funds

CFDA #93.243 FAIN #SPn?079fi

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor #154703-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $105,375 $0 $105,375
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sub-Total $127,875 $67,500 $195,375

Granite United Way - Caollol Reoion Vendor# 160015-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 92052410 $104,991 $0 $104,991
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sub-Total $127,491 $67,500 $194,991
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Granite United Way • CafToll County Region Vendor# 160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budael

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92052410 $139,099 $0 $139,099

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sul>-Total $161,599 $67,500 $229,099

Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor #160015-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

({decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $99,678 $0 $99,678

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000
Sut>-Total $122,178 $67,500 $189,678

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677.R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $105,876 $0 $105,876

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $20,608 $61,824 $82,432

Sut>-Total $126,484 $61,824 $188,308

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health Vendor # 165635-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 92052410 $90,000 $0 $90,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000
Sub-Total $112,500 $67,500 $180,000

Manchester Health Department Vendor# 177433-6009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 92052410 $117,249 $0 $117,249
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sub-Total $139,749 $67,500 $207,249

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor #177160-8003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $80,750 $0 $80,750
2021 ■ 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $20,213 $0 $20,213

Sut)-Total $100,963 $0 $100,963

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget'

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $127,287 $0 $127,287

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92052410 $20,805 $0 $20,805

Sub-Total $148,092 $0 $148,092
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 S90.000 $0 $90,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sub-Total $112,500 $67,500 $180,000

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget- Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budqet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $90,000 $0 $90,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92052410 $22,500 $67,500 $90,000

Sub-Total $112,500 $67,500 $180,000

SUB TOTAL $1,391,931 $601,824 $1,993,755

05.95-90-902510-5178 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS

DISEASE CONTROL, IMMUNIZATION

100% Federal Funds

CFDA #93.26B FAIN #H23IP000757

County of Cheshire Vendor # 177372-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,182 $0 $8,182

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor# 154703-B001

Fiscal Year Oass / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $48,182 so $48,182

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $8,180 $0 $8,180

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $48,160 $0 $48,180

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $6,182

2020 102-500731 (Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $48,182 $0 $48,182
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 S8.182 SO $8,182
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $7,000 SO $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 , Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $25,182 $0 $25,182

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $8,182 $0 $8,182
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc SO SO SO
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $18,162 so $18,182

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $8,182 SO $8,182
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $48,182 $0 $48,182

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Irwreased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023103 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $17,000 $0 $17,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc SO so $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 so $10,000

Sub-Total $17,000 so $17,000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health.Networks (RPHN)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $6,162 $0 $6,162

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 SO $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $46,162 $0 $46,162

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023103 $6,162 $0 $6,162

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $22,000 SO $22,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $55,182 so $55,182

Mid-Slate Health Center VerxJor# 158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $6,058 $0 $6,056

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90023205 $10,000 so $10,000

Sub-Total $46,058 $0 $46,058

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023103 $6,162 $0 $6,182

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023013 $15,000 $0 $15,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90023205 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $46,182 $0 $46,162

SUB TOTAL $475,876 $0 $475,876

0$-95-90-90251l)-2239 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS
DISEASE CONTROL. HOSPITAL PREPAREDNESS

100% Federal Funds

CFDA #93 074 A 93.B89 FAIN #U90TP000535

City of Nashua Vendor#177441-6011

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget IfKreased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

County of Cheshire Vendor# 177372-6001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 90077700 $10,000 SO $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 SO $20,000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Greater Seacoast Comfnunilv Health Vendor# 154703-8001

Fiscal Year Dass 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current 8udget Increased

f Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

8udael
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Granite United Way - Carroll County Repion Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Granite United Way -South Central Region Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Totai $20,000 $0 $20,000

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677-R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Curent Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 (^ntracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budaet
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000
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FINANCIAl DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Manchester Health Depaftment Vendor# 177433-B009

Fiscal Year Oass / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital • Sullivan County Region Vendor# 177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total. $20,000 $0 $20,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

Mid-State Health Center Vendor# 158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number (Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

North Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

2021 102-500731 (Contracts for Prog Svc 90077700 $10,000 $0 $10,000

Sub-Total $20,000 $0 $20,000

SUB TOTAL $260,000 $0 $260,000

05-95-90-901510-7964 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:

PROTECTION. LEAD PREVENTION

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH

City of Nashua Vendor#177441-B011

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified -

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $5,403 $0 $5,403

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $2,467 $0 $2,467

Sub-Total $9,070 $0 $9,070
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

{Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $5,403 $0 $5,403

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc $2,467 $0 $2,467

Sub-Total $9,070 $0 $9,070

Fiscal Year Class / Account Ctass Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $1,200 SO $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $6,484 $0 $6,484

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $3,207 $0 $3,207

Sub-Total $10,891 $0 $10,691

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90036000 $6,484 $0 $6,484

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $3,207 $0 $3,207

Sub-Total $10,891 $0 $10,891

Granite United Way - CafTOll County Region Vendor# 160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 . Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $5,403 $0 $5,403

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $2,467 $0 $2,467

Sub-Total $9,070 $0 $9,070

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 (!)ontracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $5,403 $0 $5,403

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $2,467 $0 $2,467
' Sub-Total $9,070 $0 $9,070

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500731 (Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $5,403 SO $5,403

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $2,467 $0 $2,467

Sul>-Totai $9,070 $0 $9,070

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $6,484 $0 $6,484

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $3,207 $0 $3,207

Sub-Total .  $10,891 $0 $10,891
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Manchester Health Department

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor# 177433-8009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 SO $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 SI.800 $0 $1,800
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc SO SO SO

Sub-Total S3.000 SO $3,000

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hosoltal • Sullivan County Reolon Verxior # 177160-8003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $7,822 $0 $7,822

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $4,123 $0 $4,123

Sub-Total $13,145 $0 $13,145

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hosoltal - Uooer Valley Reoion Vendor # 177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $6,914 $0 $6,914

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $42,108 $0 $42,108
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $4,124 $0 $4,124

Sub-Total $53,146 $0 $53,146

Mid-State Health Center Vendor # 156055-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90036000 $6,484 $0 $6,484

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $3,207 SO $3,207

Sub-Total $10,691 $0 $10,891

North Country Health Consortium Vendor # 158557-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account aass Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $1,200 $0 $1,200

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90036000 $7,822 SO $7,822
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $4,123 $0 $4,123

Sub-Total $13,145 $0 $13,145
SUB TOTAL $171,350 $0 $171,350

05-95-90-902510-5170 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES.

County of Cheshire

DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, Disease Control

Vendor# 177372-8001

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 so $8,818

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor# 154703-8001

Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified '

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 SO $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 SO

Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818

Granite United Way - Capitol Region Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,820 SO $1,820

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc $0 $0 $0
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

iSub-Total $8,8201 loT $8,8201

Granite United Way • Carroll County Region Vendor# 160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Oass Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 SO $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818

Granite United Way -South Central Reoion Vendor #160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,818 SO $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $1,816 $0 $1,818

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677-R001

Fiscal Year Ctass / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2019 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,618
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc .90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 so $0

Sub-Total $8,818 so $8,818

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,816 SO $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 SO $8,818

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital • Sullivan County Region Vendor# 177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Irrcreased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2019 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,618 $0 $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 $0
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc $0 $0 50

Sub-Total $1,816 $0 $1,818
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Mid-State Health Center

FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Vendor# 158055-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027026 $1,818 $0 $1,818
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90027026 $7,000 $0 $7,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $8,818 $0 $8,818
SUB TOTAL $83,000 $0 $83,000

05-95-90-901510-7936 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PUBLIC HEALTH
PROTECTION. CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget lr>creased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000

Sub-Total $80,000 $0 $80,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90007936 $40,000 $0 $40,000
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90007936 $29,511 $0 $29,511

Sub-Total $69,511 $0 $69,511
SUB TOTAL $149,511 $0 $149,511

05-95-90-900510-5173 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFORMATICS,
ENVIRONMENTAL PUBLIC HEALTH TRACKING

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $4,230 $0 $4,230
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700

Sub-Tola! $7,930 $0 $7,930

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $4,230 $0 $4,230
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $3,700 $0 $3,700

Sub-Total $7,930 $0 $7,930

Greater Seacoast Community Health VervJor# 154703-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102'500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $4,811 $0 $4,811

Sub-Total $10,309 $0 $10,309

Granite United Wav •Caoitol Region Vendor# 160015-B001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised Modified

Budget
2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498
2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $4,811 $0 $4,811
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networtts (RPHN)
iSub-Total $10,3091 W $10.3091

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current 8udget Increased

(Oecreasedl Amount

Revised Modified

8udaet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90004100 $4,230 $0 $4,230

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $3,700 SO $3,700

Sub-Total $7,930 so $7,930

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current 8udget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $4,230 SO $4,230

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $3,700 SO $3,700

Sut>-Total $7,930 $0 $7,930

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677-R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $4,230 SO $4,230

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 90004100 $3,700 SO $3,700

Sub-Total $7,930 SO $7,930

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Healih Vendor# 165635-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Currerit Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $4,811 SO $4,811

Sub-Total $10,309 SO $10,309

Manchester Health Department Vendor# 177433-8009

Fiscal Year Oass / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 SO $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90004100 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $0 $0 $0

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Sullivan County Region Vendor# 177160-8003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $7,069 $0 $7,069

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90004100 $6,185 $0 $6,185

Sub-Total $13,254 SO $13,254

Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor# 177160-8003

Fiscal Year Class 1 Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $6,022 $0 $6,022

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $7,333 $0 $7,333

Sub-Total $13,355 SO $13,355

Mid-State Health Center Vendor# 158055-8001

Fiscal Year Ctass / Account Ctass Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90004100 $5,498 $0 $5,498

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc " 90004100 $4,811 $0 $4,811

Sub-Total $10,309 $0 $10,309

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proa Svc 90004100 $7,070 $0 $7,070

2021 102-500731 Contracts (or Prog Svc 90004100 $6,185 SO $6,185

Sub-Total $13,255 so $13,255
SUB TOTAL $120,750 so $120,750
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Natworks (RPHN)

05-95-gO-902510-7039 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF INFECTIOUS

DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH CRISIS RESPONSE

City of Nashua Vendor#177441-B011 •

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $190,000 $0 $190,000

Sub-Total $190,000 $0 $190,000

County of Cheshire Vendor #177372-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 SO $50,000

Greater Seacoast Community Health Vendor #154703-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for ProQ Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sut)-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Granite United Way • Carroll County Region Vendor# 160015-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account '  Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Lamprey Health Care Vendor#177677.R001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget IfKreased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 (Contracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 (^jntracts for Proo Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Manchester Health Department Vendor# 177433-8009

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budoet

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $240,000 $0 $240,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $240,000 $0 $240,000
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FINANCIAL DETAIL ATTACHMENT SHEET

Regional Public Health Networks (RPHN)

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Protj Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sul>-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

Mafv Hitchcock Memorial Hospital - Upper Valley Region Vendor#177160-B003

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90027027 $55,000 $0 $55,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svc 90027027 SO $0 $0

Sub-Total $55,000 $0 $55,000

Mid-State Health Center Vendor #158055-6001

Fiscal Year Class / Account ' Class Title Job Number Current Budget increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $50,000 $0 $50,000

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $50,000 $0 $50,000

North-Country Health Consortium Vendor# 158557-8001

Fiscal Year Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget Increased

(Decreased) Amount

Revised Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731 Contracts (or Proq Svc 90027027 $49,999 $0 $49,999

2021 102-500731 Ckintracts for Proq Svc 90027027 $0 $0 $0

Sub-Total $49,999 $0 $49,999

SUB TOTAL $984,999 $0 $984,999

Itotal all $10.414,9311 $601,8241 $11,016,7551
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services Contract

This 5®^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and City of Manchester, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 1528 Elm St Manchester, NH
03101.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19. 2019, (Iterri #78E). as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47). as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DDAT, which
will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item . the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement. Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,362,385.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding. Amendment #4 by deleting It in Its entirely and replacing it
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #1. by replacing It in its
entirety with Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021. Amendment #5. which is attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

City of Manchester Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-OPHS-28-REGION-01-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services.

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not Inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in fuii force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactiveiy effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/24/2020

Date Name; Lisa Morris

Title: Director, NH Divison of Puplic Health Services

"/n/
Date ' '

City of Manchester

Title: Mayor

City of Manchester

SS-2019-OPHS-28-REGION-01 -AOS

Amendment #5
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Reglonai Pubiic Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

11/25/20

Trtl^^ Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on; (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

City of Manchester Amendment #5
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

, do hereby certify that:
(Name of the City Clerk of the Municipality)

1. I am duly elected City Clerk of the City of Manchester

2. The following is a true copy of an action duly adopted at a meeting of the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen duly held on November 17. 2020 ,

RESOLVED: That this Municipality enter into a contract with the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

RESOLVED; That Jovce Craie ,
(Mayor of the City of Manchester)

hereby is authorized on behalf of this municipality to enter into the said contract with the
State and to execute any and all documents, agreements, and other instruments; and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary,
desirable, or appropriate.

3. The foregoing action on has not been amended or revoked and remains in full
force and effect as of JP) . 2020

4. Jovce Craig (is/are) the duly elected
Mayor of the City of Manchester. J

(Signature of the Clerk of the MuiiTcipality)

State of New Hampshire
County of Hilisborouch

The foregoing instrument was acknowledge before me this 1^ day of

. 2020 bv l\aa.

(NOTARY
SEAL)

(Name of Person Signing Above)

(Name of Notary P

Title: Notary Public/Justice
Commission Expires: Notary Pom ir

State of NSw Hampshtro
My Commission Expires

June 24. 2025



Kevin J.O'NeU

Risk Manager •

CITY OF MANCHESTER

Office of Risk Management

CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

NHDHHS

129 Pleasant Street
Coocord. New Hampshire 03301-38S7

This certificate is issued as a matler of infornutioo only and conferi no rights upon the
certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, exieod or alter the coverage within the
financial limits of RS A S07«B as follows:

Limits of Uability (in thousands 000)

GENERAL LTAfiCUTY Bodily Injury ood Property Damage
Each Person 32S

Each Occurrence 1000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Bodily Injury ond Propcrty Damoge
Each Person 32S

Each Occurrence 1000

WORKER'S COMPENSATION Statutory Limits

The City of Manchester, New Hamp^iire maintaios a Self-Insured, Setf-Funded, Program
and retains outside claim service adminisMtion. All coverages ere continuous until
otherwise notified. Effective on the date Certificate issued and expiring upon completion
of contract Notwithstanding any rtquircmenb, tenn or condition ofany contract or other
document with respect to which this certificate may be issued or may pertain, the
ooverage affisrded by the limits described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and
coodilioQS of RSA S07-B.

DESCRIPTION OPpPERATlONS/LOCATlON/CONTRACT PERIOD
For the City of Manchester's Regional Public Health Network Services Contract from
July 1,20)9 through June 30,2021.

Issued the IS" day of May, 2019.

'0̂
Risk Manager

Oat City Hat) Plata • MaoehetUr, New Hatnpiblrc03101 • (d03) 624-6503 • FAX: (603) 62MSU
nr: 1-«00.7)M>64

EAtall: konclkSlfninchcjtcmh.ffQv • WcbsUc: www.maochulen)h.|Ov



DocuSign Envelope ID; ECC41BF7-34A4-4441-9DF7-6CB1AA4FDABB

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services

This 5^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Granite United Way, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 125 Airport Rd, Suite 3 Concord,
NH 03301.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approyed by the Governor on MM/DDA^YY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified In the Contract as amended and
In consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, Increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,462,071.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting It In Its entirety and replacing It
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which Is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-12, Young Adult Strategies Capital Area, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing
It In Its entirety with Exhibit B-12, Young Adult Strategies Capital Area, SFY 2021, Amendment #5,
which Is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit B-32, Young Adult Strategies Carroll County, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by
replacing It In Its entirety with Exhibit B-32, Young Adult Strategies Carroll County, SFY 2021 ,
Amendment #5, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

5. Modify Exhibit B-47, Young Adult Strategies South Central, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by
replacing It In Its entirety with Exhibit B-47. Young Adult Strategies South Central, SFY 2021,
Amendment #5, which Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

Granite United Way Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

ft

H/18/2020
SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-04-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/18/2020

Date

signed by:

& J/).
>  nnnfflciOFpiwraMao, ^

Name: '-"'sa m. Morns
Title: Director, Division of Public Health srvcs.

11/18/2020

Date

Granite United Way

DocuSJgned by:

.47fwnTAii«rn«'iP

Name: Patrick Tufts
Title:

President

Granite United Way

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-04-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■DocuSlgnad by:

11/25/2020 
.̂OSC*630aea3C4A6.

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Granite United Way ' Amendment #5
SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-04-A05 Page 3 of 3
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Vsndor Nam«: Grenit* United Way
Contract Nam*; Rational Public Hoalth Network Sorvlcaa

Reoloo: Carroll County

tata Flacal Yai Immunization

PubBc Na^h

Advtaorv CeuncH

PuMk Health

Emergency
Preitaradnaaa

Uadleal

Reeame.

Coroa

PubUc Health

Criata

Responae

Subalance

Mtauaa

Prevention

Continuum of

Care

Young Adult
Subalance

Mlaue

PreventMn

Siratettiea'

9ehoel.«aaad

Vaccination

Cllnica

Childhood

Lead

Polaoning
PrevanUon

Community
Aaaaaament

HapalitiaA
Vaccination

Cllnica Total

2019 S $ $ S J $ $  1.200.00 S  10.000.00 S  11.200.00

2020 i  30000 00 S 83.600.00 S  10 000.00 ISOOflO i 78 121.00 S 40 784.00 i 139 10000 S  1800000 S0ft« S  10 000 00 8 4BS7I800

2021 J10.000 S  30.000 00 S 83600.00 S  10.000.00 S 78.121.00 i 40.284.00 S 90 000 00 S  1800000 i  6.167.00 S S363 1.82

tata Flacal Yei Immunization

Public Health

Advtaorv CouncN

Pubae Health

Emergency
Praoaredneaa

Medical

Reaerva

Coroa

Subalance

Mlauaa

Prevention

Continuum of

Care

Young AduH
Subalance

Mlaue

Pravenlioln

Strataolea*

School4aaed

Vaccination

Cllnica

Childhood

Lead

Polaoning
Prevention

Community
Aaaeaamant

HepatlUaA

Vaccination

Cllnica Total

2019 s J 8 8 8 8 8  1.200.00 8  10.000.00 8  11.200.00

2020 8  30 000.00 8 93 430.00 810.000 890.000 8 76.014.00 8 40.250.00 8104.991 8  15.000.00 8  11.962.00 8  10.000.00 8 443.667.00

2021 810 000 8  30 000.00 8 93 430.00 810 000 8 78 014 00 8 40 780 00 8 90.DOO.OO 8  19.000.00 8  6.016.00 8374.712

Ragton: South Central

tale Flacai Yai Immunization

Public Health

Advtaorv Council

PubUc Health

Emergency
Preitaradneaa

Medical

Reaerva

Coroa

Suttelance

Miauae

Prevention

Continuum of

Care

Young AdufI

Sulialance

Mlaue

Pravenlioln

Strataolea*

School^aaed

Vaccination

Cllnica

Childhood

Lead

Polaoning
Prevention

Community
Aaaaaament

HepatKIa A

Vaccination

Cllnica Total

2019 8 8 8 8 8 not aooHcable 8  1.200.00 8  10.000.00 8  11.200.00

2020 8  30 000.00 8 9436000 8  1000000 850 000 8 78.37900 8 40.137.00 8 99.678 00 nolaoolcabia 8  9.63300 8  10.00000 8 422.16300

2021 810 000 8  30 000.00 8 04 360 00 8  10 000.00 8 78 375 00 8 40.137.00 8 90.00000 not aoolccble 8  6.167.00 8359.039

S 2.462.071.00

Pt

llZlS/2020
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Exhibit B-12. Amendmtnt I S

New Hampshire Depailment of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: Granite United Way. Capital Area Public Health

Budget Request for: Young Adult Strategies

Budget Period: FY21

Total Program Cost

Line item

Direct

Incremental

Indirect

Fixed

Total

1. Total Salary/Wages i 15.000.00 S  15.000.00

2. Emplovee Benefits s 4,200.00 S  4,200.00
3. Cortsullants

4. Eauioment:

Rental

Repair stkI Maintenance

Purchase/Depreciation $ 1,000.00 $  1,000.00
5. Supplies: $

Educationel $ 500.00 S  500.00
Lab $

Pltarmacv $

Medical $

Office s 500.00 S  500.00
6, Travel i BOO.OO $  BOO.OO
7. Occupancy s 500.00 S  500.00
B. Current Expenses

Telephone s 500.00 S  500.00
Postaae

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal $ 1.500.00 %  1,500.00
Irtsurance s

Board Expenses s 500.00 S  500.00
9. Software s
10. Marketirxi/Communicaiions s 500.00 S  500.00
11. Staff Education artd Training $ 500.00 5  500.00
12. Subconiracts/Aoreements $ 56.900.00 $  5.100.00 S  64,000.00
13. Other {specific details martdatory): $

translator $

Indirect i
- $

TOTAL s 64,900.00 S  5.100.00 S  90,000.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Cspilal Area Public Health Network
SS-2019-OPHS-28-REGION-04-A05

Exhibit B-t2. Amendmeni # 5

6.0S

Vendor Initials

Page I of 1 Date
11/18/2020
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Exhibit B-32. Amamtmtnt M 5

Indiract As A Parcsnl of DIroct

Carroll County Public Health Networli
SS-2019-OPHS-28-REGION-04-A05

Exhibii B-32, Amendment * 5

New Hampthire Department of Health and Human Services

BidderfProgram Name; Granite United Way. Carroll Courtty Public Health Networlt

Budget Request for; Young Adult Strategies

Budget Period: Fy21

Total Program Goal

Line Item

Direct

IrKremental

lr>direct

FUed

Total

1. Total Salary/Wages i 55,000.00 %  55,000.00

2. Emplovee Benefits s 15,400.00 S  15,400.00
3. Consultants

4. Eauioment: s
Rental s

Reoair and Maintenance $

Purchase/Deoreciation s 1,000.00 S  1.000.00
S. SuoDlies; s

Educational s 500.00 S  500.00
Lab s

Ptwrmacv $

Medical

Office s 500.00 S  500.00
6. Travel s 800.00 %  800.00
7, OccuDsncv i 118.18 S  118.18
8. Current Exoenses

Telephone s 500.00 S  500.00
Postage $

Subscriptions j

Audit and Legal $ 1,500.00 $  1.500.00
Insurance s
Board Expenses s 500.00 S  500.00

9. Software s

10. Merketir>Q/Convnunications s 500.00 S  500.00
11. Staff Education and Trainina s 500.00 5  500.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements s 5.000.00 S  5,000.00
13. Other (specllic details mandatory);

indirect S  8,181.82 S  8,181.82
s i

TOTAL % 81,818.18 %  8,181.82 S' 00,000.00

10.0%

Exhibit B-32

Page i of i

ft

Vendor iniilais

Date
11/18/2020
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Exhibit B>47, Amendment # 5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1  1
BIdderfProgram Name: Granite United Way, South Central Public Health Network

Budget Regueet for: Young Aduit Strategies

Budget Period: SPY 2021

Total Program Cost

Direct Indirect Total

Line item Incremental Fixed 1

1. Totai Salary/Wages S  10.000.00 S  10.000.00
2. Emolovee Benefits S  2.800.00 S  2,800.00
3. Consultants

4. Eouioment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Purchase/Depreciation

5. SuDOiies:

Educational S  500.00 S  500.00
Lab

Pharmacv

Medical

Office $  500.00 S  500.00
e. Travel S  184.00 S  184.00
7, Occupancy S  25.00 S  25.00
6. Current Exoenses $

Telephone $  21.00 $  21.00
Postage $

Subscnptions
Audit and Legal $500 S  500.00

Insurance

Board Expenses $  500.00 S  500.00
e. Software

to. MarLeting/Communications S  500.00 $  500.00
II. Staff Education arKf Training S  500.00 S  500.00
12. Subcontracts/Agreements

13. Other (specific detaiis mandalorv): S  69.695.00 S  69.895.00
translator

indirect $  4.275.00 $  4.275.00

TOTAL S  85.725.00 S  4.275.00 $  90.000.00

South Central Region
SS•2019-OPHS-28-REGION^D4.A05

Exhibit 8^7. Amendment 9 5

[5
Vendor Initials

Page 1 ot 1 Date

11/18/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GRANITE UNITED WAY is

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampwhirc on March 30, 1927. I further certify

that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this

office is concerned.

Business ID: 65650

Certificate Number: 0004893313

Oa

A*

u.

O ■0
<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 15th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Tony Soeller . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Granite United Way.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 24, 2020. at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Patrick Tufts. President & CEO. is duly authorized on behalf of Granite United Way to enter into
contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is
authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, which may in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 11/23/2020 cf^ ^ ̂  4,_.^
Signature of Elected Officer^ ^
Name: Tony Speller
Title: Board Chair
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM®OfYYYY)

1/3/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on'thls certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementis).

PRODUCER

THE ROWLEY AGENCY INC.

45 Constitution Avanua

P.O. Box 511

Concord NK 03302-0511

NAMF*''' Sarah Fifiald
(603)224-2562

ADORFSS- s'ifi«ld0rowlayagancy. com

INSURERISI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC «

INSURER A Hanovar Ins - Badford

INSURED

Granita Onitad Way

22. Concord Straat

Floor 2

Manchastar NH 03101

INSURER B

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:20-21 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

aEST
JtiSQ.

TYPE OF INSURANCE
jSCOL POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/ODftYYYI

POLICY EXP
IMM/DQ/YYYYl LIMITS

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE nn OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

BAMAfieTORENTEB
PREMISES (Ea oecurTgncel

EBV900337108 1/1/2020 1/1/2021 MEO EXP (Any one PPOO")

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRO-
JECTPOLICY

OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

Prplwilonal LMbtty

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(E> >ecMenll

1,000,000

100,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

1,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 1,000,000

ANYALfTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BOCHLY INJURY (Per p«Ort)

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED

AUTOS •

EHV90033710S 1/1/2020 1/1/2021 BODILY INJURY (P«r KCkMnt)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per actidcnil

UMBRELU LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000,000

1,000,000

RETENTION $ UHV9003210-09 1/1/2020 1/1/2021

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
If y«*, d«scrib« undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS betov

H

3A Stataa: KH

MBV8996802-09

PER
STATUTE

DTK-

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

1/1/2020 1/1/2021 E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD tOI. AddlUonal RtmarVa Schadult. may ba attachad if mora t

Covering operations of the named insured during the policy period.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E Ptindiville/ESP

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

INS025 (201401)

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Granite United Way Mission Statement

To improve the quality of people's lives by bringing together the
caring power of communities.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

FINANCIAL REPORT

MARCH 31, 2019
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vy

NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSiOrJAL ASSOClATtOH

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Granite United Way, which comprise the
statement of finanda] position as of March 31, 2019, and the related statements of activities and changes
in net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmandal statements in
accordance with accounting prindples generally accepted in die United States of America; this indudes
the design, iir^lementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of finandal statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opiruon on these finandal statements based on our audit We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whedxer the finandal statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disdosures in
the finandal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, induding the
assessment of dxe risks of material misstatement of the fmandal statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments,.the auditor corxsiders internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the ditity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also indudes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting polides used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the finandal statements.

Pagel

70 Commercial 5Ifreei. 4th Floor 5,9 Emerald Street 44 School Street
Concord.NH 03301 Kcene. MH 03431 Lebanon. NH 03766

v: 603-234-5357 v: 603r357-7665 v; 603-44R-2650
f: 603-224.379: f: 603-224-3792 603-448-2476
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinioa die financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Granite United Way as of March 31, 2019, and the changes in its net assets and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200,
Unijbrm Administnitwe Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements Jbr Federal Atoards (Uniform
Guidance), and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such irdormation is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The mformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Goverttment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued,our report dated August 15, 2019
on our consideration of Granite United Way's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opiiuon on the
effectiveness of Granite United Way's internal control over finandaJ reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Granite Uiuted Wa/s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The supplementary schedules of community impact awards to qualified partner agencies and emerging
opportunity grants are presented for purposes oif additiorud analysis and are not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates direcdy to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the finarKial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in,the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to die financial statements as a whole.

Page 2
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Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Graxiite United Way's March 31,2018 financial statements, and we expressed
an immodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated July 10, 2018. In
our opinion, Ihe summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2018 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it
has been derived.

Concord, New Hampshire
August 15,2019

Po^e3
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2019 2018

ASSETS Without With

Donoi/ Time Donoi/ Time

Restrictions Restrictions Total Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $ - $ 419,438 $ 419,438 $ 687,722

Prepaid and reimbursable expenses 50,236 -
50,236 36328

Invesbncnts 272,879 193,043 465,922 460354

Accounts and rent receivable 9,982 - 9,982 14323

Contributions and grants receivable, net

of allowance for uncollectible contributions

2019 $443,943; 2018 $481,267 - 3,575,081 3,575,081 3,619,219

Totdi current assets 333,097 4,187,562 4,520,659 4,818,646

OTHER ASSETS

Property and equipment, net 1,248,124 . 1,248,124 1,287,863

Investments - endowment 10,750 204,426 215,176 206,405

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - 1,726,207 1,726,207 1,782,840

Total other assets 1,258,874 1,930,633 3,189307 3,277,108

Total assets S 1,591,971 $ 6,118,195 $ 7,na,i66 $ 8,095,754

UABJLITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term debt £ 12,843 $ - $ 12,843 S 12,718

Allocations payable to partner agencies 1,483,094 • 1,483,094 1,888376

Donor-designations payable 329,924 926,494 1,256,418 1,580,606
f

Accounts payable 78,726 - 78,726 115,575

Accrued expenses 160,097 -
160,097 130,522

Funds held for others 9,055 . • 9,055 23,795

Deferred revenue - designation fees 86,362 - 86362 48,450

Total current liabilities 2,160,101 926,494 3,086,595 3,800,042

LONG-TERM DEBT, less current maturities 203,093 203,093 215,245

Total liabilities 2363,194 926,494 3,289,688 4,015,287

COMMITMENTS fS« Notes)

NET ASSETS (DEnClT):
Without donor/ time restrictions (771,223) -

(771,223) (386,051)

With donor/ time restrictions (Note 9) - 5,191,701 5,191,701 4,466318

Total net assets (deficit) (771,223) 5,191,701 4,420,478 4,080,467

Total liabilities and net assets $ 1391,971 £ 6,118,195 S 7,710,166 s 8,095,754

See Notes to Fitumcial Statements. Page 4



DocuSign Envelope ID: ECC41BF7-34A4-4441-9DF7^CB1AA4FDAB8

GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF ACnVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year ended March 31, 2019 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2018

2019

Without With

Donoi/Tijne Donoi/Tunc

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Support and revenues;
Campaign revenue:
Total contributions pledged
Less donor designations

Less provision for uncollectible pledges
Add prior years' excess provision for uncollectible
pledges taken into income in current year

Net campaign revenue
Support
Grant revenue

Sponsors and other contributions

livkind contributions

Total support

Other revenue:

Rental Income

Administrative fees

Miscellaneous income

Returned grants

Total support and revenues

Net assets released from restrictior^:

For satisfaction of time restrictiorw

For satisfaction of program restrictions

Exper^ses:
Program services
Support services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net assets

before non-operating activities

Norvoperating activities:
Change in value of beneficial biterest in trusts,
net of fees 2019 $12,051; 2018 $11,787

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on invest
Investment income, net

Total non-operating activities

Net increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficii), end of year

2018

Total

$  - $ 6,945,931 $ 6,945.931 $ 7,752,769

(1399,443) (1399,443) (2,190,178)

-
(256,490) (256,490) (298,907)

119,296 . 119,296 144,147

119,296 4,789,998 4,909,294 5,407331

. 1,230,089 1,230,089 1,201326

- 1,040342 1,040342 ■ 195,629

58,179 - 58,179 104364

177,475 7,060,629 7,238,104 6,909350

73,548 . 73348 87335

59,348 - 59348 58,479

3,871 • 3371 569

69,110 - 69,110 86,667

383,352 7,060,629 7,443,981 7,142,600

4,250,661 (4,250,661) .

2,036,484 (2,036,484) - •

6,670>497 773,484 7,443,981 7,142,600

5,504,862 - 5304,862 5,694,902

773,240 773,240 586313

867,290 - 867,290 959,177

7,145392 7,145392 7,240392

(474,895) 773,484 298389 (97,792)

(56,633) (56,633) 91318

s  7393 3,936 11,829 (5,677)

81,830 4396 86,226 94,176

89,723 (48301) 41,422 180317

(385,172) 725,183 340,011 82325

(386,051) 4,466318 4,080,467 3,997,942

S  (771323) $ 5,191,701 $ 4,420,478 $ 4,080,467

See Notes to Financial Statements. Pages



GRANrm UNITED WAY

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended March 31^ 2019 with comparative totals for the year ended March 31, 2018

2019

Craxits and

awards

Salaries,

employee
benefits

and taxes Occapancy

United Way

Worldwide

Technology dues and

and other

telephone daes and
expenses subscriptions

Campaign,

communications

and printing

Professional

services and

subcontractors

Program services
Community impact grants
Public Health Network

211 New Hampshire
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance

Whole Village Faouly Resource Center
Work United Program
Other program services

Total program services

Supporting Services
Management and general
Fundraising

Total Supporting services

Total functional expenses $

S

de

 1,568,039 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ . $ - 5

- 486.477 7395 - - 5361 361,389

- 343,071 - 55,402 7,497 1,712 -

- 126,106 - - - - 15,263

- 143,569 54356 12,233 - - 30,000

- 176.763 - - - - -

- 1,069,157 105,573 73,007 61312 28351 350,449

1,568,039 2345,143 168,024 140,642 69,009 36,424 757,101

. 615313 27,709 19,162 16,145 45308

- 681,435 30,677 21,214 17374 43,277 3330

- 1,296,948 58386 40376 34,019 43,277 48,838

$  1,568,039 $ 3,642,091 $ 226,410 $ 181,018 $ 103,028 $ 79,701 $ 805,939 $
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended March 31, 2019 and 2016

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACnvrTIES

Cash received from donors $ 7,984,041 $ 7,858,294

Cash received from grantors 1,115,853 1,246352

Administrative fees 58,555 62,683

Other cash received 150370 171,469

Cash received from trusts 73,481 72,436

Designations paid (2,223,631) (2,093,989)

Net cash paid for funds held for others (14,740) (5,625)

Cash paid to agencies (1,911,005) (1,961,835)

Cash paid to suppliers, employees, and others (5,468,487) (5,010,079)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (235,063) 340,206

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVmES

Purchase of property and equipment (35,906) (339,718)

Proceeds from sale of investments 14,712 13345

Purchase of investments - (42,255)

Net cash used in investing activities (21,194) (368,628)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACnVITIES

Repayments of long-term debt (12,027) (11,456)

Net decrease in cash (268,284) (39378)

Cash, beginning of year 687,722 727,600

Cash, end of year $ 419,438 $ 687,722

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

. Cash payments for:
Interest expense $ 11,915 $ 11,445

See Notes to Financud Statements. Page 7
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GRA>nTE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notel. Nature ofActivities

Graxute United Way is the result of six United Ways merging together to create a single, efficient
organization that covers more dian 80% of New Hampshire and Windsor County, Vermont Granite United
Way improve lives by mobilizing the caring power of their communities. More than fundraisers. Granite
United Way is a partner in change, working with a broad range of people and organizations to identify and
resolve pressing community issues. Granite United Way works closely with volunteer leadership to invest
donor dollars to help the community leam, earn and be healthy. By focusing on these investment initiatives.
Granite United Way is helping people in new and strategic ways.

Granite United Way conducts annual campaigns in the fall of each year to support hundreds of local
programs, primarily in the subsequent year, while the State Employee Charitable Campaign, managed by
Granite United Way, is conducted in May and June. Campaign contributions are used to support local health
and human services programs, collaborations and to pay Granite United Way's operating expenses. Donors
may designate their pledges to support a region of Granite United Way, a Community Impact area, other
United Ways or to any health and human service organization having 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status. Amoimts
pledged to other United Ways or agencies are included in the total contributions pledged revenue and as
designations expense. The related amoimts receivable and payable are reported as an asset and liability in
the statement of financial position. The net campaign results are reflected as with donor restrictions in the
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets, as the amounts are to be collected in the
following year. Prior year campaign results are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the current
year statement of activities and changes in net assets.

Granite United Way invests in the community through three different vehicles: •

March 31, , 2019 2018
Community Impact Awards to partner agencies $ 1,568,039 $ 1,959,583
Donor designated gifts to Health and Human Service agencies 1,899,443 2,190,178
Granite Uruted Way Program services 3,936,823 3,735319

Total $ 7,404305 $ 7385,080

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting: The financial statements of Granite United Way (the "Uruted Way") have been
prepared on the accrual basis. Under the accrual basis, revenues and gains are recognized when earned
and expenses and losses are recognized when incurred. The signiKcant accounting policies followed are
descrit>ed below to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements to die reader.

Estimates and assumptions: The United Way prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Management uses estimates and assumptior\s in preparing financial
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amoimts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenue and expenses. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents: For purposes of reporting cash flows, the United Way considers all highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash eqxiivalents. The United Way
had no cash equivalents at March 31,2019 and 2018.

Net assets: The United Way reports informationTegarding its financial position and activities according to
two categories of net assets: net assets with donor restrictions and net assets without donor restrictions.
Descriptior« of these net asset categories are as follows: i

Net assets without donor/ time restrictions: Net assets without donor restrictions are available for use
at the discretion of the Board of Directors and/or management for general operating purposes.
From time to time ti\c Board of Directors designates a portion of these net assets for specific
purposes which makes them unavailable for use at management's discretion. For example, the
Board has designated a portion of net assets without donor restrictions as a quasi-endowment (an
amoimt to be treated by management as if it were part of the donor restricted endowment) for the
purpose of securing the United Way's long-term financial viability.

The United Way had designated net assets without donor restrictions of $10,750 and $10,311 for
endowment at March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

Net assets with donor/time restrictions: Net assets with donor restrictions consist of assets whose use is

limited by donor-imposed, time and/or purpose restrictions.

The United Way reports gifts of cash and other assets as revenue with donor restrictions if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, the
net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities and changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

Some net assets with donor restricliorw include a situation that assets provided be maintained
permanently (perpetual in nature) while permitting the United Way to expend the income
generated by the assets in accordance with the provisions of additional donor imposed stipulations
or a Board approved spending policy.

See Notes 9 and 10 for more information on the composition of net assets v\nth donor restrictions
and the release of restrictions, respectively.

Contributions receivable: Campaign pledge contributions are generally paid within one year. The United
Way provides an allowance for uncollectible pledges at the time campaign results are recorded. Provisions
for uncoUectible pledges have been recorded in the amount of $256,490 and $298,907 for the campaign years
ended March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively. The provision for uncollectible pledges was calculated at 4.5%
of the total pledges for both years ended March 31,2019 and 2018.

Investments: The United Way's investments in marketable equity securities and all debt securities are
reported at their fair value based upon quoted market prices in the accompanying statement of financial
position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the changes in net assets in the accompanying
statement of activities. The United Wa/s investments do not have a significant concentration of credit risk
within any industry, geographic location, or specific location.

(continued on next page)
Page 9
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred revenue: The United Way charged a 10% adnunistradve fee on the State Campaign designations
and 5% administrative fee on most other designations for both of the years ended March 31,2019 and 2018.

These administrative fees are recognized in the post campaign years, as this is the year they are available to
offset administrative expenses.

Contributions: The Uruted Way recognizes contributions received and made, including unconditional
promises to give, as revenue in the period received or made. Contributions received are reported as either
revenues without donor restrictions ore revenues with donor restrictions. Contributions with donor

restrictions that are used for the purposes specified by the by the donor in the same year as the
contribution is received arc recognized as revenues with donor restrictions and are reclassified as net assets
released from restrictions in the same year. Promises to contribute that stipulate conditions to be met
before the contribution is made are not recorded until the conditions are met There were no conditional

promises to give for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018.

Donated goods and services: Contributed services are recognized when the services received would
typically need to be purchased if they had not been provided by donation or require specialized skills and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills. Various types of in-kind support, including services,
call center space, gift certificates, materials and other items, amounting to $58,179 and $63,929 have been
reflected at fair value in the financial statements for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

A substantial number of volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in Uruted Way's
program services; hovvever, the value of this contributed time is not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements since the volunteers' time does not meet the criteria for recogrution.

Functional aliocation of expenses: The statements of functional expenses present expenses by function and
natural classification. Expenses directly attributable to a specific functional area of the United Way are
reported as expenses of those functional areas. A portion of general and administrative costs that benefit
multiple functional areas (indirect costs) have been allocated across programs and other supporting services
based on estimates of time and effort.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are carried at cost if purchased and fair value if
contributed. Maintensince, repairs and minor renewals are expensed as incurred, and major renewals and
betterments are capitalized. The United Way capitalizes additions of property and equipment in excess of
$2,500.

Depreciation of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:

Years

Building and building improvements 5-3lVi
Leasehold improvements 15
Furniture and equipment 3-10

(continued on next page)
Page, 10
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating measure: The United Way has presented the statement of activities and changes in net assets
based on an intermediate measure of operations. The mccisure of operations includes all revenues and
expenses that are an integral part of the United Way's programs and supporting activities and net assets
released from restrictior\s to support operating activities. Norvoperating activities are limited to resources
outside of those program and services and are comprised of investment return, the changes in fair value of
the beneficial interest in trusts, and gains and losses on sales and dispositior^s of assets.

Concentrations of credit risk: Financial instruments which potentially subject the United Way to
concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of contributions receivable, substantially all of which are from
individuals, businesses, or not-for-profit organizatior\s. Conccntratior\s of credit risk are limited due to the
large number of donors comprising the United Wa/s donor base. As a result, at March 31, 2019, the United
Way does not consider itself to have any significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to contributions
receivable.

In addition, the United Way maintains cash accounts with several financial institutions insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At March 31, 2019, there was approximately $141,200
included in cash in excess of federally insured limits.

Income taxes: The Uruted Way is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The United Way is also exempt from state income taxes by virtue of its ongoing exemption
from federal income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Uruted Way has adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.
Accordingly, management has evaluated the United Way's tax positions and concluded the Uruted Way had
maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any significant unrelated business income and had taken no
uncertain tax positions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

With few exceptions, the Uruted Way is no longer subject to income tax examinations by die US. Federal or
State tax authorities for tax years before 2016.

Change in accounting principle: In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-Jbr'Profit Entities (Topic 958). The ASU amends die current reporting model for nonprofit
organizations and enhances their required disclosures. The major changes include: (a) requiring the
presentation of only two classes of net assets now entided "net assets without donor restrictions" and "net
assets with donor restrictions", (b) modifying the presentation of underwater endowment funds and related
disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the placed in service approach to recognize die expiration of restrictions
on gifts used to acquire or construct long-lived assets absent explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d)
requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function and nature and disclose a summary
of the allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring the disclosure of quantitative and qualitative
information regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment return net of external
and direct internal investment expenses, and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements
and disclosures intended to increase die usefulness of nonprofit finandaJ statements.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way has adopted this ASU for the year ended March 31, 2019 with retroactive application for
the March 31, 2018 firmndal statements. As a result, the United Way changed its presentation of its net
assets classes and expanded the footnote disclosures as required by the ASU. In addition, the investment
expenses are netted against investment return in the statements of activities and changes in net assets. The
United Way has opted to not disclose Liquidity and availability information for March 31, 2018 as
permitted under the ASU in the year of adoption.

Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2014, the FASB issued. Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(ASU 2014-09), which requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers in amounts that reflect the considcratioh to which the United Way expects to be entided in
exchange for those goods and services. ASU 2014-09 will replace most existing revenue recogrution guidance
when it becomes effective on April 1, 2019. ASU 2014-09 permits the use of either the retrospective or
cumtUative effect transition method. Management is currendy evaluating the impact this will have on its
financial statements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued, Leases, Topic 842 (ASU 2016-02), which will be effective for the United
Way on April 1, 2020, with early adoption permitted. Under ASU 2016-02, at the commencement of a long-
term lease, lessees will recogiuze a liability equivalent to the discounted payments due under the lease
agreement, as well as an offsetting right-of-use asset. Lessees (for capital and operating leases) must apply a
modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, or entered into after, the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented in the financial statements. The modified retrospective approach
would not require any transition accounting for leases that expired before the earliest comparative period
presented. Lessees may not apply a full retrospective transition approach. Management is currendy
evaluating the impact this will have on its financial statements.

Note 3. Fair Value Measurements

The Fair Value Measurements Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10)
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

•  Level 1 - inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices in active markets for identical assets at the
measurement date. The types of assets carried at Level 1 fair value generally are securities listed in
active markets. The United Way has valued their investments listed on national exchanges at the
last sales price as of the day of valuation.

•  Level 2 - inputs are based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted
•  prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that arc not active, and model-based valuation

techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market or can be
corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

•  Level 3 - inputs are generally unobservable and typically reflect management's estimates of
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. The fair values are
therefore determined using model-based techniques that include option-pricing models, discounted
cash flow models, and similar techniques.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31, 2019;

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 8,874 $ 22,740 $ -

Mutual funds;

Domestic equity 66,002 - -

Fixed income 248,672 - -

Fixed income funds 171,086 7,207 -

Municipal bonds - 10,200 -

Corporate bonds - 146380 ♦

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,726,207

Total $ ...494,634 $ 186327 $ 1,726,207

Financial assets carried at fair value on a recurring basis consist of the following at March 31,2018:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Money market funds $ 132,068 $ 22,280 $ -

Mutual funds:

Domestic equity 61,523 - -

Fixed income 244,862 - -

Fixed income funds 177,247 - -

Municipal bonds - 10,565 -

Corporate bonds - 23303 -

Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 1,782340

Total $ 615,700 $ 56348 $ 1,782340

Balance, April 1, 2011

Total unrealized gains, net of fees, included in changes in
net assets with donor restrictions

Balance, March 31, 2018

Total unrealized losses, net of fees, included in changes in
net assets with donor restrictions

BalaTice, March 31, 2019

Amount of unrealized losses, net of fees, attributable to change in unrealized
losses relating to assets still held at the reporting date included in the
statement of activities and changes in net assets

Beneficial interest in

assets held by others

$  1,691,022

91,818

$  1,782,840

■  (56,633)
$  1,726,207

$  (56,633)

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AU assets have been valued using a market approach, except for the beneficial interest in assets held by
others, and have been consistently applied. The market approach uses prices and other relevant
information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets. Prices may be
indicated by pricing guides, sales trar\sactior\s, market trades, or other sources.

The beneficial interest in assets held by others is valued using the income approach. The value is
determined by calculating the present value of future distributions expected to be received, which
approximates the value of the trust's assets at March 31, 2019 and 2018.

GAAP requires disclosure of an estimate of fair value for certain financial instruments. The United Wa/s
significant financial instruments include cash and other short-term assets and liabilities. For these financial
instruments, carrying values approximate fair value.

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, at cost, at March 31, 2019 2018

Land, buildings and building improvements $  1,424,521 $ 1,403,441

Leasehold improvements 5,061 5,061

Furniture and equipment 452,679 437,854

Total property and equipment ,  1382,261 1,846356

Less accumulated depreciation (634,137) (558,493)

Total property and equipment, net $  1,248,124 $ 1,287363

Note 5. Endowment Funds Held by Others

Agency endowed funds: The United Way is a beneficiary of various agency endowment funds at The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation. Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as separate funds designated for the
benefit of the United Way.

In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation may make distributions from the funds to the United
Way. The distributions are approximately 4.0% of the market value of each fund per year.

The estimated value of the future distributior\s from the funds is included in these fmandal statements as

required by FASB ASC '958-605, however, all property in die fund was conbributed to The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way.

The United Way received $69,042 and $68,060 from the agency endowed fimds during die years ended
March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Designated funds: The United Way is also a beneficiary of two designated funds at The New Hampshire
Charitable Foundatiort , Pursuant to the terms of the resolution establishing these funds, property
contributed to The New Hampshire Charitable Foundation is held as a separate fund designated for the
benefit of the United Way. In accordance with its spending policy, the Foundation makes distributions from
the funds to the United Way.

The distributioi^s are approximately 4.0% of the market value of the fund per year. These funds are not
included in these financial statements, since although all property in these funds was contributed to The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation to be held and administered for the benefit of the United Way, The New
Hampshire Charitable Foundation may redirect funds to another organization.

The United Way received $4,439 and $4376 from the designated funds during the year ended March 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The market value of the« fund's assets amounted to approximately $111,000 and
$114,600 as of March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 6. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt at March 31, 2019 2018
Mortgage financed with a local bank. Interest rate at the 5-year

Federal Home Loan Qassic Advance Rate plus 2.5% (4.82% at
March 31, 2019). Due in monthly installments of principal and
interest of $1,908 through December, 2031. CoUateralized by
the United Way's building located in Plymouth, NH. S 215,936 $ 227,963

Less portion payable within one year 12,843 12,718
Total long-term debt $ 203,093 $ 215,245

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2019 were as follows:

Year Ending March 31.
2020 $ 12,843

2021 13,476

2022 14,140

2023 14,836

2024 15,568

Thereafter 145,073

Total $ 215,936

The mortgage note contams a financial covenant for debt service coverage, which is tested annually based on
the year-end financial statements.

The United Way has a revolving Une-of-credit with Gtizen's Bank with a maximum borrowing limit of
$250,000. The line-of-credit is subject to annual review and renewal. The line-of-credit agreement bears
interest equal to the Wall Street Journal prime rate plus 0.25% (5.75% as of March 31, 2019) and is secured by
all assets of the Ur\ited Way. At March 31, 2019, there were no amounts outstanding on this linc-of-credit
agreement.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7. Funds Held for Others

The United Way held funds for others for the following projects:

March 31, 2019 2018

Sycamore Gardens Project
Work United Loan Default Program
Concord Multicultural Festival

Get Moving Manchester
Better Together Lakes Region

Total

- $ 15,814

4,759 3,190

2,382 2,872

1,669 1,674

245 245

9,055 $ 23,795

Note 8. Endowment Funds

The Uruted Way's endowment consists of four individual funds established for youth programs, Whole
Village Resource Center and general operating support. Its endowment includes both donor-restricted
endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endo\vments. As required
by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of
Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law: The United Way is subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and, thi^s, classifies amounts in its donor-r^tricted
endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions because those net assets are time restricted until the

Board of Directors appropriates such amounts for expenditures. Most of those net assets are also subject to
purpose restrictions that must be met before reclassifying those net assets to net assets without donor
restrictior\s. The Board of Directors of the United Way has interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the
maintenance of purchasing power of the original gift amount contributed to an endowment fund, unless a
donor stipulates the contrary.

As a result of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the United Way
considers a fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of
initial and subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund and (b) any accumulatiorw to the fund diat are
required to be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift
instrument The Uruted Way has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in
accordance with the prudent measures required under the law. Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA,
the Uruted Way considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate
donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund, (2) the purposes of the
organisation and the donor-restricted endowment fund, (3) general economic conditions, (4) the possible
effect of mflation and deflation, (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of
investments, (6) other resources of the organization, and (7) the investment policies of the United Way.

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UnderwatCT Endowment Funds: From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or UPMCFA retjuires the United Way to
retain as a fund of perpetual duration. The United Way did not have any funds with deficiencies for the
years ended March 31,2019 and 2018.

Investment Return Objectives, Risk Parameters and Strategies: The United Way has adopted investment policies,
approved by the Board of Directors, for endowment assets for the long-term. The United Way seeks to
achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as well as capital appreciation,
which exceeds the annual distribution with acceptable level of risk. Investment risk is measured in terms of
the total endowment fund; investment assets and allocations between asset classes and strategies are
managed to not expose the fund to unacceptable level of risk.

Spending Policy: The United Way does not currently have a spending policy for distributions each year as
they strive to operate within a budget of their current Campaign's income. To date there have been no
distributions from the endowment fund.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Board-designated endowment

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

$  10,750 $

Total

10,750

in perpetuity by donor - 142,652 142,652

Accumulated investment gair\s - 61,774 61,774

Total funds $  10,750 $ 204,426 $ 215,176

Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31, 2019 are as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endowment net assets, March 31,2018 $  10311 $ 196,094 $
\

206,405

Investment return, net 439 8332 8,771

Endowment net assets, March 31,2019 $  10,750 $ 204,426 $ 215,176

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of March 31,2018 is as follows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Board-designated endowment $ 10311 S - $ 10311

Donor-restricted endowment funds:

Original donor-restricted gift amount
and amounts required to be maintained
in perpetuity by donor 142,652 142,652

Accumulated investment eairw 53,442 53,442

$  10311 $ 196,094 $ 206,405

Changes in the endowment net assets as of March 31,2018 are as foEows:

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

Endo\vment net assets, March 31,2017 $ 9,792 $ 146,083 $ 155,875

Contributions .  42,255 42,255

Investment return, net 519 7,756 8,275

Endowment net assets, March 31,2018 $ 10311 $ 196,094 $ 206,405

Note 9. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods:

March 31, 2019 2018

Subject to expenditure for specified time period:
Contributions receivable related to campaigns $ 3,229,124 $ 3,450,040

Designations payable to other agencies and Urvited Ways (926,494) (1,159,651)

2,302,630 2,290,389

Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Manchester Proud 474,325 -

Public Health Network services 276,668 155,441

Leader in Me 172300 -

L.E.A.D. Program 25,000 -

Work United 9,945 20,768

West Side Reads - 19,413

Other programs - 1373

958,438 197,195

(continued on next page)
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO nNANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2019 2018

Endowments subject to the United Way's spending
policy and appropriation:
Investments in perpetuity (original amounts of
$142,652 in 2019 and 2018), which once
appropriated, is expendable to support:

77,482General Operations 80,774

Youth Programs 24,636 23,632

Whole Village Resource Center ■  99,016 94,980

204,426 196,094

Beneficial interest in assets held by others:
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire
Charitable Foundation 1,726,207 1,782340

Total net assets with donorrestrictions $  5,191,701 $ 4,466318

Note 10. Net Assets Released from Donor Restrictions

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted purposes or
by occurrence of the passage of time or other events specified by donors. The net assets released from
restrictions are as follows:

March 31, 2019 2018

Purpose restrictions accomplished:
Public Health Network services $ 964,089 $ 1,094,084

211 363,894 .  273,160

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance 108,877 135,517

Manchester Proud 292,860 -

Work United 193,240 139,023

Bridge House and Whole Village Family Resource
Center upgrades • 267,822

Other program services 113324 315340

2,036,484 2,224,946

Time restrictions expired 4,250,661 4332,648

Total net assets released from donor restrictions $ 6,287,145 $ 7,057394
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

Nnrrs to financial statements

Note 11. Lujuidity and Availability of Resources

The United Way's financial assets available within one year of the financial statements of financial position
date for general ex3>enditure are as follows:

2019

419,438
March 31,
Cash

Investments

Contributions receivable, net

Beneficial interest in trust

Accounts and rent receivable

Total financial assets available luithin one year

Less amounts unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to:
Restricted by donors with time or purpose restrictions
Subject to appropriation and satisfaction or donor resbrictiorts
Agency endowed funds at the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation

Total amounts unavailable for general expenditure within one year

Amounts unavailable to management without Board's approval:
Board designated endowment

Total financial assets available to management
for general expenditure within one year

Liquidity Mamgement

The Uruted Way maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations come due. To help manage unanticipated liquidity needs the
United Way has committed a line of credit of $250,000, which it could draw upon. Additionally, the United
Way has board desisted net assets without donor restrictions that, while the United Way does not intend
to spend these for purposes other than those identified, the amounts could be made available for current
operations, if necessary.

Note 12. Pension Fund

The Uruted Way sponsors a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified imder Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code, whereby electing employees contribute a portion of their salaries to the plan. For the years ended
March 31, 2019 and 2018, the United Way contributed $92,128 and $84,921, respectively, to employees
participating in the plan.

681,098

3,575,081

1,726,207

9,982

6,411,806

(958,438)
(204,426)

(1,726,207)

(2,889,071)

(10,750)

$  3,511,985
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13. Lease Commitments

During the year ended Ma^ 31^ 2018, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a four
year term commencing September 1, 2017 through August 31, 2021 for an office space in Concord, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $3337 through August 31, 2018. The rent will then be
increased by 3% annually on each anniversary date of the lease.

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five
year term commencing July 15, 2016 through June 30, 2021 for an office space in Manchester, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $5,905 through June 30, 2019. The rent will then be
increased by 3% annually on each anniversary date of the lease. .

During the year ended March 31, 2018, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a one
year term commencing January 15, 2018 through January 14, 2019 for an office space in Laconia, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $425 through January 14, 2019. This lease was
amended in January 2019 to extend the term until July 2019 and then terminate the lease.

During the year ended March 31,2016, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a three
year term commencing September 1,2015 through August 31,2018 for an office space in West Lebanon, New
Hampshire. The lease required monthly payments of $1,425 through August 31,2018.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a five
year term commencing on September 1, 2018 through August 31, 2023 for an office space in Lebanon, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $1,600 through August 31,. 2019. The rent consists of
two different payments, one for rent and another for common costs and charges. After August 31,2019, the
rent will increase each year depending on the consumer price index. After January 1,2019, the common costs
and charges increase each year depending on the United Way's proportionate share of these costs.

During the year ended March 31, 2019, the United Way entered into an operating lease agreement for a two
year term commencing on January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020 for an office space in Berlin, New
Hampshire. The lease requires monthly payments of $181 through December 31, 2019. After December 31,
2019, the monthly rent payment will inaease to $187 through D^ember 31, 2020. The lease continues on a
month to month basis after December 31,2020.

Total rent expense for these leases amoimted to approximately $136,000 and $143,000 for the years ended
March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

The United Way leases multiple copy machines under the terms of operating lease agreements. The monthly
lease payments amount to $2,044. The lease expenses amounted to approximately $21,000 and $2,000 for the
years ended March 31,2019 and 2018, respectively.

(continued on next pa^)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The United Way's future minirnum lease commitments are as follows:

Year ending March. 31

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Total

Total

161,114

161,234

71,136

33,420

10370

437,274

Note 14. Commitments

In Plymouth, d\e United Way rents space in a building which they own eind occupy to twelve non-affiliated,
non-profit orgaruzations. The monthly lease payments range from $125 to $1300 per month. For the years
ended March 31,2019 and 2018, the rental income amounted to $73348 and $87335, respectively.

Note 15. Payment to Affiliated Organizations and Related Party

The Uruted Way paid dues to United Way of Worldwide. The United Way's dues paid to this affiliated
organization aggregated $86,779 and $79,826 for the years ended March 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Note 16. Subsequent Events

The United Way has evaluated subsequent events through August 15, 2019, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and have not evaluated subsequent events after that date. Subsequent
to year end, the United Way changed.its fiscal year end to June 30. There were no other subsequent events
that would require disclosiire in financial statements for the year ended March 31,2019.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

MERRIMACK COUNTY REGION

Year Ended March 31^ 2019

Community
Impact

Awards

Blueberry Express Day Care Center
Boys and Girls Qubs of Central New Hampshire:
Broken Ground School Unit

Mill Brook School Unit

Concord Coalition to End Homelessness

Concord Family YMCA:
Child Development Center
Kydstop-Camp

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc.
Merrimack Valley Day Care
NH Legal Assistance
NH Bar Association Pro Bono Referral Program
Penacook Community Center
Second Start:

Second Start Alternative High School
Adult Education

The Friendly Kitchen
The Friends Program:
Foster Grandparents

Emergency Housing
The Mayhew Program
The Pittsfield Youth Workshop
Tiny Twisters Child Care Center
Waypoint CPS Counseling Program

$

30,000

5,000

5,000

18,000

30,000

15,000

25,000

90,000

50,000

12,000

12,396

10,000

10,000

5,500

33,000

18,000

10,000

30,000

7,500

20,000

436396

Emerging

Opportunity
Grants

Adverse Childhood Experiences Training

Boys and Girls Club of Central New Hampshire
Concord Cold Weather Shelter

10,710

55,000

10,000

75,710
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CGMMUNriTY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUAUFIED

PARTNER AGENaES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTH COUNTRY REGION

Year Ended March 31,2019 ;

Community

Impact

Awards

Adaptive Sports Partners of the North Country
Boys and Girls Club of the North Country
Copper Carmon Camp
Grafton County Senior Citizerts:

Accessible Transportation and Food
ServiceLink

Access to Enriching Environments for Older Adults
RSVP Bone Builders

NH Legal Assistance
Northern Human Services

The Family Resource Center
Tri-County Community Action Program:
Support Center at Burch House
Tyler Blain House

Waypoint Parenting Transitional Living Program

$ 6,500

10,000

6,000

5,000

3,700

5,000

5,191

5,000

5,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

5,000

$ 68,391

Emerging

Opportunity

Grants

Organized Acts of Kindness $ 2,271
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION

Year Ended March 31,2019

Community

Impact

Awards

Center on Rural Innovation

Child Care Center in Norwich

Copper Cannon Camp
Cover Home Repair

Dismas of Vermont

Global Campuses Foundation
Good Neighbor Health Care
Good Neighbor Health Clinic
Red Logan Dental Clinic

Gr<ifton County Seruor Citizens Council
Increasing Access to Enriching Environments for Older Adults
Meeting older adults' needs for accessible transportation and food
RSVP Bone Builders

ServiceLink

Green Mountain Children's Center

Low to Moderate Income Scholarships

Work Force Development
Hartford Community Restorative Justice Center
Restorative Justice Panel Program
Restorative Reentry Program

Headrest

HIV/HCV Resource Center

Mascoma Community Healthcare
Safeline

Second Wind Foundation

Upper Valley Turning Point
Willow Grove

Senior Solutions (CASVT)

Southeastern Vermont Community Action

Special Needs Support Center of the Upper Valley

2,000

5,000

1,000

14,000

8,500

4,500

4,000

6,000

1,183

4,500

4,000

1,000

7,500

3,500

8,300

8,500

5,000

6,000

8,000

8,500

8,000

5,000

5,000

17,500

4,000
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

UPPER VALLEY REGION (CONTINUED)
Year Ended March 31,2019

Community

Impact

Awards

(Continued)

Springfield Family Center S 3,215
Springfield Supported Housing Program 8,000
Stagecoach Transportation, a division of Tri-VaUey Transit 1,000
The Children's Center of the Upper Valley 18,159
The Family Place 20,000
The Mayhew Program 4,000
TLC Family Resource Center 7,500
Twin Pines Housing Trust
Expanding Supportive Services Program 9,000
SASH (Supports and Services at Home) 5,000

Upper Valley Haven
Health/Food Services 10,000
Education/Shelter Services 8,500

Upper Valley Trails Alliance 1,000
Valley Court Diversion Programs 8,000
Visions for Creative Housing Solutioris 6,387
Waypoint
CFS Counseling Program-Upper Valley 6,887
Supervised Visitation and Exchange Program 8,500

West Central Behavioral Health 8,025
WUling Hands Enterprises 7,500
Windham & Windsor Housing Trust 9,000
Windsor Hospital Corporation 5,000
WISE

Crisis and Advocacy Program 8,500
Emergency Shelter and Supportive Housing 2,104
Prevention and Education Program 7,500

Zack's Place Vermont 2,500

$  325,760
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNITY'IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED
PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

SOUTHERN REGION

Year Ended March 31,2019

Community

Impact

Awards

Easter Seals New Hampshire, Inc. $ 22,000
Girls Incorporated of New Hampshire 10,000
Manchester Community Resource Center, Inc. 10,000
Manchester Neighborhood Health Improvement Strategy 325,000
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 15,000
NHBA Pro Bono Referral Program 12,000
Rockingham Nutrition and Meals on Wheels Program 12,000
St Joseph Community Services, Inc. 25,461
The Mayhew Program 10,000
The Upper Room
Adolescent Wellness Program 12,000
Greater Deny Juvenile Diversion Program 15,000

Waypoint 10,000

yWCA 22,000

J  500,461
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNTTY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIHED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

NORTHERN REGION

Year Ended March 31,2019

Community
Impact

Awards

Bethany Christian Services
Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Copper Cannon Camp
Harvest Christian Fellowship:
' Community Caf6

Feeding Hope Food Pantry
Helping Hands North, Inc.
Memorial Hospital. Women's Health
North Conway Community Center
North Country Community Recreation Center
Northern Human Services

The Family Resource Center at Gorham
Tri-County Community Action Program
Coos Service Link Resource Center

RSVP Program
Seruor Meals of Coos County

$

3,000

2,500

2,500

3,936

4,000

3,500

2,500

2,000

2,500

4,000

2,500

1,000

1,000

1,000

35,936

Emerging
Opportunity

Grants

Coos County Family Health Services, Inc.
Harvest Christian Fellowship
UNH Cooperative Extension,

500

500

464

1,464
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GRANFUE UNITED WAY

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMMUNrTY IMPACT AWARDS TO QUALIFIED

PARTNER AGENCIES AND EMERGING OPPORTUNITY GRANTS

CENTRAL REGION

Year Ended March 31,2019

Community

Impact

Awards

Boys and Girls Clubs of Central New Hampshire $ 15,000
Health First Family Care Center 10,000
Kingswood Youth Center 4,500
Lakes Region Child Care Services 30,000
Lakes Region Community Developers 10,000
Lakes Region Community Services 10,900
Lakes Region Mental Health Center 20,000
New Beginnings Without Violence and Abuse 10,000
Pemi Youth Center 4,500

The Circle Program 6,750

$  121,650

Page 29



GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended March 31, 2019

E>eparCmcnt of the Treasury

Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) Matching Grant Program

U.S. Department of Heal th and Human Services

Stale of N.H. Division for Behavioral Health, Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services
Slate Opioid Response Grant

Total Expenditum of Fedeni Aufards

21.009

97.067

45,971

98,572

Federal Grantor Pass-through Federal Expenditures

Pass-lhrough Grantor Entity Identifying CFDA Federal to

Program Tide Number Number Expenditures Subredpients

Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster

US. Deoartment of Health and Human Services

State of N>L Department of Health and Human Services - South Central Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention ai>d Treatment of SubstafKe Abuse 05-95-92.920310-3380 93.959 $  86,813 $  73.733

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health EmergerKy Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 05-95-90-902510-7545 93.074 87,750 79.726

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 05-95-90-901010-5362 93.758 25,243 25343

Young Adult Leadership Program 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 20,919 12.000

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 05-95-92-920510-3395 93243 55,861 49.456

Tofflf State of N.H. Department ofHealth and Human Servias • South Central Public Heolfh Network 276,586 240,158

State of N.H. E>epaLrtment of Health and Human Services - Capital Area Public Health Network
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse 05-95-92-920510-3380 93.959 88,236 -

Hospital Preparedness Program & Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 05-95-90-902510-7545 93.074 83,420 -

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 05-95-90-901010-5362 93.758 27,671
•

Immunization Cooperative Agreements 05-95-90-902510-5178 93.268 9.730 1,411

Young Adult Leadership Program 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 18,901 12,000

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prcvenbon Strategies 05-95-92-920510^395 93.243 64.004 54,091

Tolof Stole N.H. Department ofHealth and Human Services • Cnpilaf Area Public Health Network 291,962 67302

State of NJ-l. Department of Health and Human Services • Carroll Coimty Coalition for Public Health
Block Crzmts for Prevention and Treatment of SubstaiKe Atruse 05-95-92-920510-3380 93.959 98,616 -

Hospital Preparedness Program fk Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned Coop Agreements 05-95-90-902510-7545 93.074 72,264
-

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 05-95-90-901010-5362 93.758 33,948 -

Immuiuzation Cooperative Agreements 05-95-90-902510-5178 93.268 10,269 5,260

Young Adult Leadership Program 05-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 20389 12,000

Young Adult Substance Misuse Prevention Strategies 06-95-92-920510-3395 93.243 31.931 -

Total State of N.H. Department of Health end Human Services • Carroll County Coalition for PitWic Health 267,417 17360

Total Regional Public Health Network Services Ouster 835.965 324,920

U.S. Internal Revenue Services

O
o

8
(A
S

980,508 324.920

The rtrtompBrtyjMg notes an an iitlegral part of this schedule.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Notel. Basis of Presentation

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ("the Schedule") includes the federal grant activity of
Granite United Way ("the United Way"), under programs of the federal government for the year ended
March 31, 2019. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of the
Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Uniform Guidance. Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the Uruted Way, it is not intended to and docs not present the financial
position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Uruted Way.

Note 2. Basis of Accounting

This schedule is prepared on the same basis of accounting as the United Way's financial statements. The
Uruted Way uses the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures represent only the federally funded
portions of the program. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

Note 3. Program Costs

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal grant portion of the program
costs. Entire program costs could be more than shown. Such expenditures are recognized following as
applicable, either the cost principles in the OMB Circular A-122, Cost Principles for Non-F*rofit
Organizations, or the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Note 4. Major Programs

In accordance with OMB Uniform Guidance, major programs arc determined using a risk-based approach.
Programs in the accompanying Schedule are determined by the independent auditor to be major programs.

Note 5. Indirect Cost Rate

The amount expended includes $44,026 claimed as an indirect cost recovery using an approved indirect cost
rate of 5-percent. The United Way has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed
under the Uniform Guidance.
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NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSiOfiAL ASSOCIATSOM

\/ Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER HNANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Grarute United Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and die aggregate remaining fund information of Grarute United Way as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
Granite United Way's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 15,
2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Granite United Wa/s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United
Wa/s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite
United Wa/s internal control.

A deficienq/ in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatemcnt of the entit/s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe th^ a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over finandaJ
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whetfier Granite United Way's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an .objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose..

Concord, New Hampshire
August 15, 2019
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W
NATHAN WECHSLER & COMPANY
PROFESSlOrJAL ASSOCIATION

Certified Public Accountants & Business Advisors

REPOKT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM

GUIDANCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Granite Uruted Way
Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Granite United Way's compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Granite United
Way's major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2019. Granite United Wa/s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with, federcd statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Granite Uruted Way's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perforai the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance wid\
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Granite
United Way's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal detennination of Granite United Way's
compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. Granite United Way complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended March 31,2019.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance which is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2019-001. Our opinion of each major federal program
is not modified with respect to this matter.

Granite United Wa/s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Granite United Way's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Granite United Way is responsible for establishing and maintairung effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered Granite United Way's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine die auditing procedures that are appropriate in the cuoimstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Granite United Way's mtemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance docs not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detcxded and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by diose charged with governance.

Our cor^sideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all dehdendes in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant defidendes. We did not identify any
deficiendes in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we
identified a certain defidency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as item 2019-001, which we consider to be a significant
defidency.

Granite United Wa/s respor\se to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Granite United Way's
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response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

I  )
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, dus report is not suitable for any other purpose.

UsLcl^.oSj-'^ [

Concord, New Hampshire
August 15,2019
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

, SCHEDULE OF HNDINCS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant dcfidendes identified? Yes X None Reported

Is any noncompliance material to financial statement noted? Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Are any material weaknesses identified? Yes X No

Are any significant deficiencies identified? X Yes None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
federal programs: unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.5l6(al? Yes X No

Identification of rhajor federal programs:

CFDA Numbers Name of federal program or cluster

Regional Public Health Network Services
Cluster

93.959 - Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

93.074 - Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health Emergency Preparedness Aligned
Cooperative Agreements

93.069- Public Health Emergency Preparedness
93.758 - Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant

93.243 - Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services

93.268 - Immunization Cooperative Agreements

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type
A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF nNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)

^  YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Section n - Financial Statement Findings

No fiimncial statement findings noted.

Section UT - Federal Awards Findings

Finding 2019-001:

Inprmation on the Federal Program
Quster: Regional Public Health Network Services Cluster
Pass-Through Entity: Various (see page 30)
Award Number: Various (see page 30)
Compliance Requirements: Subrecipient Monitoring
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency - Noncompliance

Criteria

* Program requirements state that expenditures by subrecipients must be reviewed and monitored by the
grantee.

Condition

For the year ended March 31, 2019, we reviewed a selection of subrecipient expenditures and
reimbursement requests and noted that supporting documentation was not being morutored by Granite
United Way during the first half of the fiscal year.

Questioned Costs

None noted.

Context

Of the seven selections tested, four did not have evidence supporting the monitoring activities were taking
place.

Effect
As a result. Granite United Way could not provide support that diey were actively monitoring the
expenditures and activities performed by the subrecipients.

Cause

Subrecipients provided summaries of expenses and would provide support if requested, however Grarute
United Way did not request supporting documentation until halfway through the fiscal year when they
were made aware they needed to monitor subrecipients more closely.

Recommendation

We recommend management obtain detailed supporting documentation for each expenditure from
subrecipients. We also recommend that management ensure they are in compliance with other
subrecipient monitoring processes such as performing pre-award risk assessments at the time of each
award, obtzdning audit reports and audit communication letters and following up on any related audit
findings or issues.
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GRANITE UNITED WAY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(UNIFORM GUIDANCE)

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

Responsible Officials Response and Correch'oe Action Planned
Management implemented a prcx:ess during the year in which they are collecting all required
documentation from each subrecipient and closely morutoring their activities. Prior to the implementation
of this procedure, the supporting documentation was avaJable to management by request. Management
was not aware they were required to review supporting documentation for each expenditure. Beginiung
during the second half of the year, management has been reviewing detailed documentation.

Planned Implementation Date of Corrective Action
Already implemented.

Person Responsible for Corrective Action
Shannon Bresaw
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Granite United Way LIVE UNITED

United
Way

2020 Board of Directors

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/ CELL I FAX / E-MAIL

Dr. Larissa Bale

President, Regional College Dept.

Assistant; Liz Lawson

Lakes Region Communlly
College
379 Belmont Road

Laconia, NH 03246

Joseph Bator Primary Bank
207 Route 101

Bedford. NH 03110

William 0. Bedor, CPA (Bill)

Secretary
North Country Campaign Chair &
Community Impact Chair

Creative Financial Strategies.
Inc.

PC Box 350

Littleton. NH 03561

Kathleen Bizarro-Thunberg (Kathy)
Executive Vice President

NH Hospital Association
125 Airport Road
Concord. NH 03301

Joseph Carelli

President of NH and VT

Assistant: Mary Charron

Citizen's Bank

900 Elm Street. NE 1540
Manchester. NH 03101

Jason Cole

General Counsel

Assistant: Lee Morlarty

Catholic Medical Center

100 McGregor Street
Manchester. NH 03102

Michael Delahanty
Superintendent of Schools

Assistant: Patty Scanlan

Satem School District

38 Geremonty Drive
Salem, NH 03079

Doug deLara Baker | Newman | Noyes
650 Elm Street

Suite 302

Manchester, NH 03101
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Granite United Way

2020 Board of Directors

LIVE UNITED

United
Way

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/ CELL / FAX / E-MAIL

Patricia Donahue

Chris Emond

Executive Director

Boys & Girls Club of Central
New Hampshire
876 No. Main St!
Laconia, NH 03246

Paul Falvey
President

Assistant: Maggie. Bartholomew

Bank of New Hampshire
62 Pleasant Street

Laconia, NH 03246

Marlene Hammond

Underwriting Account Executive
Lincoln Financial Group
One Granite Place

Concord. NH 03301

Charles Head (Charlie)
President & CEO

Sanborn, Head A Associates.
Inc.

20 Foundry Street
Concord. NH 03301

Joseph Kenney
Senior Vice President,
Commercial Lending Officer

Assistant: Linda O'Donnell

The Provident Bank

115 So. River Road

Bedford. NH 03110

Sally Kraft
Vice President, Community Health.
Population Health Management
Div.

Assistant: Brittany Goodwin

Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical

Center

46 Centerra Parkway
Lebanon, NH 03766
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Granite United Way

2020 Board of Directors
LIVE UNITED
United
Way

BOARD MEMBER ADDRESS PHONE/FAX/CELUEMAtL

Christina Lachance

Director of Early Childhood and

Family Initiatives

Assistant: Hannah Robinson

NH Charitable Foundation

37 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

Heather Staples Lavole
President

Chair

Genela

50 Commercial Street

Manchester, NH 03101

Dr. Chuck Lloyd

Carolyn Maloney
Treasurer

Hypertherm
P.O. Box 5010

Hanover. NH 03755

Lav^ence Major (Larry)
Director of Government Relations

Pike Industries. Inc.
3 Eastgate Park Road
Belmont. NH 03307

Paul Mertzic Network 4 Health

401 Cypress Street
Manchester. NH 03103

Nannu Nobis

CEO

Nobis Engineering
18 Chenell Drive

Concord. NH 03301

Granite United Way LIVE UNITED

United
Way
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2020 Board of Directors

BOARD MEMBER

Sean Owen

President & CEO

Immediate Past Chair

GUW Marketing Chair

Assistant:

Joseph Purington (Joe)
Vice President

NH Electric Field Operetions

Assistant: Roxanne Parlthurst

Beth Rattigan
Attorney

Upper Valley CIC Chair

ADDRESS

Wedu

20 Mar4(et Street

Manchester, NH 03101

Eversource Energy
780 No. Commercial Street
Manchester, NH 03101

Downs Rachlin Martin

67 Etna Road

Lebanon, NH 03766

PHONE/FAX/CELUEMAIL

Peter Rayno
Executive Vice President/NH
Banking & Lending Director

Enterprise Bank
130 Main Street

Salem, NH 03079

Betsey Rhynhart
Vice President of Population Health

Jeffery Savage (JefQ
Community Volunteer

Bill Sherry
Chief Operating Officer

Assistant: KathyScanlon

Anthony Speller (Tony)
Senior Vice President, Engineering
and Technical Operations

First Vice Chair

Assistant: Robin Wright

Concord Hospital
250 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

P.O. Box 2104

Concord. NH 03302

Granite United Way
'22 Concord Street '

Manchester, NH 03010

Comcast

676 Island Pond Road
Manchester, NH 03109



DocuSign EnveJope ID; ECC41BF7-34A4-4441-9DF7-6CB1AA4FDABB

Granite United Way

2020 Board of Directors

LIVE UNITED

United
Way

BOARD MEMBER

Charia Stevens

Attorney

ADDRESS

McLane, Middleton Law Firm

900 Elm Street, Floor 10
Manchester. NH 03101

PHONE/FAX/CELUEMAIL

Rodney Tenney (Rod)
Community Volunteer

8 Hillside Road

Concord, NH 03301

Anna Thomas

Public Health Director

Southern Region CIC Chair

Manchester Health Department
1528 Elm Street

Manchester, NH 03101

Robert Tourigny
Executive Director

NeighborWof1(s Southem NH
801 Elm Street, 2"^ Floor
Manchester, NH 03101

Patrick Tufts

^resident & CEO

Assistant: Jennifer Sabin

Granite United Way
22 Concord St, Floor 2

Manchester. NH 03101

Jeremy Veilleux
Principal
Treasurer

Baker j Newman j Noyes
650 Elm Street

Suite 302

Manchester, NH 03101

Michael Wagner
Chief Financial OfTicer

Assistant: Jen Hamilton

Dartmouth College
7 Lebanon Street, Suite 302
Hanover, NH 03755

Cass Walker (Catherine)

Central Region CIC Chair

LRGHealthcare

80 Highland Street
Laconia, NH 03246

Updated: 1/21/2020
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SHANNON SWETT BRESAW, MSW

EDUCATION

Master of Social fVork
2002 - 2004 University of New Hampshire Durham, NH

Bachelor of Arts - Clinical Counseling Psychology
1999 - 2002 Keene State Col lege Keene, NH

EXPERIENCE

2007 - Present

Vice President of Public Health

Granite United Way Concord, NH

Accomplishments:

•  Provides Program Director support for the NH Governor's Recovery Friendly Workplace
initiative through program development, staff oversight, resource development,
marketing/communications, and evaluation

• Works to align and leverage Granite United Way investments and strategies with other
statewide efforts to address public health, addiction, and social determinants of health

•  Provides content expertise and consultation in the areas of substance use disorders,
public health, community development, contract management, grant writing, reporting,
and evaluation

• Develops and maintains strategic partnerships and relationships with key stakeholders
across NH

•  Provides contract management and oversight to 3 out of the 13 Regional Public Health
Networks in NH, including the Capital Area Public Health Network, the Carroll County
Coalition for Public Health and the South Central Public Health Network

•  Provides direction and leadership towards achievement of each Network's philosophy,
mission, strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service
delivery, financial management, and community/public relations

• Coordinates all aspects of federal, state, and local grants and contracts, including resource
devclopmeni/grant-writing, financial oversight and reporting

• Develops community health improvement plans, evaluation plans, and other data-driven,
research-informed strategic plans for the Networks

• Works with community impact committees and volunteers through Granite
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2005 - 2007 Community Response (CoRe) Coalition Belknap County, NH

Outreach Coordinator, Project Director

Accomplishments:

•  Provided leadership for a county-wide, regional alcohol, tobacco, and other drug abuse
prevention coalition

•  Strengthened capacity of coalition through outreach and collaboration, including partnerships
with 10 community sectors, including government, schools, businesses, healthcare, and
safety

•  Coordinated all aspects of federal, state, and local grants, including financial oversight,
progress reports, communications, and work plan goals, objectives, and activities

•  Developed, coordinated, promoted, and implemented events, programs, and trainings for
youth and adults

•  Strengthened youth leadership and involvement in substance abuse prevention activities

•  Supervised part-time staff, youth leaders, and volunteers

2004 - 2005 Caring Community Network of the Twin Rivers (CCNTR) Franklin, NH

Community Program Specialist

Accomplishments:

•  Assisted in development of programming related to strengthening the public health
infrastructure

•  Recruited new participants to agency committees and projects

•  Facilitated organizational collaboration, compiled research, and developed proposals to
funding sources to address community needs

•  Facilitated several ongoing committees

•  Developed and maintained productive relationships with community and state leaders and
agencies

•  Participated in several trainings/seminars related to issues including substance abuse
prevention, emergency preparedness, leadership, and public health infrastructure
development

• Wrote numerous articles and press releases concerning community and public health

PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS
> American Public Health Association: NH Affiliate Representative to the Goveming

Council 2018-Current

> NH Public Health Association: Board Member 2018-Currcnt

> Prevention Task Force of the Governor's Commission (Co-Chair): 2017-Curreni
> NH Governor's Commission on Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention, Treatment and

Recovery (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018
> NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Committee (Prevention Representative): 2016-2018
> NH Alcohol and Other Drug Service Providers Association: Treasurer 2007-2011,

2014-2015

> NH Prevention Certification Board's Peer Review Committee: 2009-201 1
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Professional Profile

• CoilKion Buildini

• Plan Dev«lop<ncni

• Resource Coordtniiion

• Uo|i$tict

• Time management

Professional Accomplishments

•  Budgeting

•  Volunteer Management

•  Gnnt/Propoul Wriiing

• Organladon
•  Leaderihip

Public Health

•  Provide direction and leadership towards achievement of the Public HeaKh Regions' philosophy, mission,

strategic plans and goals, through: administration and support, program and service delivery, financial
management, human resource management, and community and public relations

Regional Resource Coordination

•  Collected and disseminated data on available resources criiial lor response to public health emergency.

•  Developed working relationship with stakeholders in Public Health Region.

Public Health Coalition

•  Regional Public Health Emergency Response Annex development

•  Resource Coordination and Development

•  Healthcare Coalition Building

•  Regional Partner Development

•  Clinic Operation Development

•  Medical reserve Corps Volunteer Managensent and Training'

•  Policy Development ^

•  Team Eiuilding

Captain of Operations

•  Developed soff and operational procedures (or full time staff

• Oversee Tninlng Program

•  Faclllute QA/QI

•  Paciliated and maintained daa entry system and procedures for all of Fire departments opcrationt and patient
tracking

•  Created Personnel Manual and operational guidelines

•  Secured grant funding

•  Volunteer Management
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Work History
Assistvit Vice President of Public

Health

Senior Director of Public Health

' Public Health Region Emergency
Preparedness Director

Caecuthre Director

Preparedness Planner

Regional Resource Coordinator

Captain of Operations

Granite United Way 2018« present

Granite United Way - 2016 -2018

Capiol Area Public Health Network / GUW 2013 • 2016

Cortcord NH

CarroO Councy Coalition for Public Heihh. 2011 - 2013

Oulpce NH

Caplul Area Public Heahh 2009 - 2011

Network/Concord Hospial, Concord NH

New England Center for Emergency 2009

Preparedness/ Dartmouth College. Lebanon

NH

Barnstead Fire Rescue. 2001-2010

Sarnstead NH

Certifications

• Institute (or Local Public Health Praaices

• Loal Government Leadership Institute

• Antioch New England Institute

• DHHS Inventory Management System Training

- FEMA 29. too. I20.a. 130. 200. 244. 250. 2S0.7. 30O.

-546.12. S47a. 700. 701, 702a. 704. 800.B: 806. 808

• Department of Homelar«j Security Exercise and

Evaluation Program (HSEEP)

• CDC SNS/ Mass Dispensing Course, Atbnta GA

•  ICS. WebEOC.SNS 101

• HA2MAT Awareness and Operations

• CPR. Blood bome Pathogens

• EMS Field Talning OfTicer

• Fire Fighter C2F2

• Amateur Radio Operator - General Class

•  STEP program instructor. Arc You Ready

instructor
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Graoite United Way

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Shannon Bresaw Vice President of Public

Health

$55.l3/hr 0% SO

Mary Reed Assistant Vice President of

Public Health

S41.05/hr 25% $20,011.88

Lauren McGinlcy Sr. Director of Public Health S32.30/hr 15% $9,450.00
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services

This 5^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Greater Seacoast Community Health,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH 03878.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DDA'YYY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$818,300.

2. Modify Exhibit 8-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it
with Exhibit 8-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit 8-13, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit 8-13, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #5, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Greater Seacoast Community Health Amendment #5 Contractor Initials
a

11/19/2020
88-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-05-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/19/2020

Date

^0»sijSion»<J by;

.Oe3flDBFBeCAS4AO

Name: Lisa m. Moms

Title. Director, Division of Public Health srvcs.

11/19/2020

Date

Greater Seacoast Community Health
OocuSlgnvd by:

JflW lMih(k
Name' Janet Laatsch

CEO

Greater Seacoast Community Health

88-2019-DPH8-28-REGION-05-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

■DocuSl^nad by:

11/23/2020
■ DSCA6?0?E32C4AE

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Greater Seacoast Community Health Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-05-A05 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-13 Budget • Amendment #5

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Blddar/Prooram Nam*: Gr«at*r Saacoaal Community H*ailh

Budget R*qu**t for: Young Adult Strataglaa

Budget Period: July 1, 2020 to June 30. 2021

lolai Program Loat Llentractor Share f Match hundadby UHHb contract ahar*

Direct indirect Total DIract Indirect Total DIrtet Indiract TcUl

Une Ram Incremental Fixed Incremantal Fixed lncr«n>antal FIxad

1. Total SalaryfWaget i  i6.>36.U i i  id.hd.M i i i S  29.739.60 i i  i9.^3^.i6
2. EfflofoveeBenelilt $  5.6S0.S2 S i  5.6S0.S2 S 5 S  5.850.52 J S  S.6S0.S2
3. ConauRanta s  e.soo.oo $ i  6.500.00 $. s 5  e.500.00 S S  6.500.00
4. Eoulomenl; $ s 1 5

Rental i s s $
Reoair and Malnloruince i s $ S
Purchaae/DeoredaUon i s s 5

5. SuppI**: s s $ 5
Educational S  7,000.00 s S  7.000.00 i s $  7.000.00 S S  7.000.00
Lab $ $ s $
Pharmaev s i $ S
Medical i i s s
Offlce S  1,631.32 $ J  1.831,32 i $ $  1.831.32 $ S  1.831.32

6. Travel $  1,292.44 s i  1.292.44 $ $ S  1.292.44 s $  1.292.44
7. Occupancy s  eoe.12 $ i  806.12 s % S  606.12 s $  606.12
8. CunentExpenaee $ $ i %

Teieotione $ s % i
Poataoe S  300.00 $ S  300.00 $ i S  30000 i i  300.00
Subacrtpbon* S  100.00 s i  100.00 $ i S  10000 i $  100.00
Audit and Leaal $ s i J
inaurance s i $ s
Board Gipenaee $ s $ t

9. Software $ $ $ i J

10. MarketnorCommunleationa S  8.000.00 $ S  8.000.00 s $ i  e.oco.oo s S  8.000.00
11. Staff Education end Trainlna S  28.980.00 $ S  28.980.00 i $ S  26.980.00 i S  28.980.00
12. Suttcontracta/Aoreements s i s s
13. Other (specilrc details ntandatoiy): i i s s
translator i i s $
indirect i s s s

i s s s
TOTAL i  90.000.00 t i i i i t

ExMM B-13 Budget • Amendment #5
Greater Seacoast Community Health
SS-2019-OPHS-28-REGION^)5-A05

Contractor Initials

11/19/2020
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GR£ATER SEACOAST

COMMUNITY HEALTH is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

August 18, 1971. I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is

in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65587

Certificate Number 0005024761

%
4^.

o ■©

%

711

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of October A.D. 2020.

William M, Gardner

Sccretarj' of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Barbara Henry, of Greater Seacoast Community Health, do hereby certify that:
1

\

1. I am the duly elected Board Chair of Greater Seacoast Community Health;

2. The following are true copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of Greater Seacoast Community Health, duly held on January 27,2020;

Resolved: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting

through its Department of Health and Human Services for the provision of Public Health

Services.

Resolved: That the Chief Executive Ofificer, Janet Laatsch, is hereby authorized on behalf of

this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all

documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications

thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of i:pir 30^^ .2020.

IN WITOESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of Greater Seacoast

Community Health this c?Q^dav of ^ . 2020.

Barbara Henry, Board Ch^r
STATE OF NH

COUNTY OF STRAFFORD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me thisj^/day of 2020

by Barbara Henry. /-) yt . >0

ILMENT Notary Public/JustiJO ANN CLMENT Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
Notary Pubuc

State of Ntw Ham^lra
My Commltsion &fplro«' June 19,2024 ! t a

My Commission Expires:
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CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. Barbara Henry, of Greater Seacoast Community Health, do hereby certify that:

1. I am the duly elected Board Chair of Greater Seacoast Community Health;

2. The following are tme copies of two resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of Greater Seacoast Community Health, duly held on January 27, 2020;

Resolved: That this corporation enter into a contract with the State of New Hampshire, acting

through its Department of Health and Human Services for the provision of Public Health

Services.

Resolved: That the Chief Executive Officer, Janet Laatsch, is hereby authorized on behalf of

this Corporation to enter into the said contract with the State and to execute any and all

documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications

thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The foregoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked and remain in full force and

effect as of 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as the Board Chair of Greater Seacoast

Community Health this ^day of 2020.

Barbara Henry, Board Chair [
STATE OF NH

COUNTY OF STRAFFORD

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this<? dav of A/dl/. , 2020
by Barbara Henry.

Notary I^blic/Justice

5- ^

—  - lu- =My Commission Expires: = - ^
\ 1
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/KCORD

GOODCOM-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JTHAMM

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

1/10/2020

THIS CERTiFICATE IS ISSUED AS A.MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTiFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(sJ.

PRODUCER License # AGR8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

cjnjact Bret Cote
PHONE FAX
(A/C, No, Ext): (A/C,No):

AnfiR^fifl' bcote(^clarkinsurance.com

INSURERfSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC*

iNsuRERA:Tri-State Insurance ComDanv of Minnesota 31003

INdUR£D
Greater Seacoast Community Health, Inc.
dba Goodwin Community Health, Families First
SOS Community Organization, Lilac City Pediatrics
311 Route 108

Somersworth, NH 03878

tNsuRERe:Acadia 31325

INSURER c:Technoloav Insurance Comoanv 42376

INSURER 0: AIX SDecialtv Insurance Co 12833

INSURERS:

INSURER F ;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY-PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

JJB. TYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL

iuao.
SUBR

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMM/DDfYYYYl
POLICY exp
IMMmP/YYYYl LIMITS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE I X I OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE

ADV5212020-16 1/1/2020 1/1/2021 DAMAGE TO RENTED

MEO EXP (Any one i»r»on)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:

1,000.000

300,000

10,000

1,000,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AU^S ONLY

CAA5331599.12 1/1/2020 1/1/2021
SCHEDULED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Per p«fSon|

BODILY INJURY (Pef aeddwi)

?OPERTY DAMAGE
• • nT'er acddentT

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE CUA5214125-15

EACH OCCURRENCE
1,000,000

1/1/2020 1/1/2021
AGGREGATE

1,000,000

RETENTIONS

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIve

If yes. describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

T / n

0
TWC3844860 1/1/2020 1/1/2021

y PER
^ STATUTE

OTH-

.EB

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
1,000,000

FTCA GAP Liability

FTCA GAP Liability

LiV-A671986-05

UV-A671986-05

1/1/2020

1/1/2020

1/1/2021

1/1/2021

Each Occurrence

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Remarks Schedule, may be anached If more space Is required)

CERTiFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
Contracts and Procurernent Unit

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

\

ACORD 25 (2016/03) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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BerryDunn

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Goodwin J
Community Health^

Families First
lor i.tT li-i ,ill

FINANCIAL STAtEMENTS

December 31, 2018

With l^jdependent Auditor's Report
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|-5 BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Seacoast Community Health /the
Organutaiion). which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31. 2010. and the related statements
of o^ratioris. changes in net assets, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements.

Management's ResponsibHity for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: . this includes the design

. implementatjon and'maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
iinancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
rpquire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement,

^ audit involves pertorrning.procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the. reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

■ of the finanaal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Barigor. Mg • Pouland. ME • Mat.ch«siet. NH • Glasioobuiy CT • Charle^ion, VW • Pho«nix, A2
berrydunn.com
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Board of Directors

Greater Seacoast Community Health
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Greater Seacoast Community Health as of December 31. 2018, and the results of
Its operations, changes in its net assets and its cash fiows for the year then ended In accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Emphasis-of-Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements under the sub-heading "Organization". Greater
Seacoast Community Health was formed on January 1. 2018 as a result of the merger of Goodwin
Community Health and Families First of the Greater Seacoast. Our opinion is not modified with respect
to this matter.

h[cytcU^ f

Portland. Maine
May 20, 2019
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Balance Sheet

December 31. 2018

ASSETS

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible

accounts of $422,413
Grants receivable
Inventory
Pledges receivable
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investments

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited-as to use'
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Patient deposits
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities and total liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 3.896,613

1,560,698
424,642

143.250
263.557

57.987

6,346.947

1,112,982
'.:-;?.-j98,201

■  1.421.576

g.lQ7.219

$15.026.925

$  172,852
1.075.463
173,105

Lm

1.428.689

11,824.495
1.773.741

13598.236

$15.026.925

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

•3-
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statement of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Operating revenue and support
Patient sen/Ice revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Grants, contracts, and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Total operating revenue and support

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating defidt

Other revenue and (losses)
Investment Income
Loss on disposal of assets
Change In fair value of Investments

Total other revenue and (losses)

Deficiency of revenue over expenses and decrease In net assets without donor
restrictions

$11,353,111
^51.7001

10,701,411

7,713,908
368.017
634.931

14.715,120
4,446.874
349.661

19511.855

mm)

48,204
(6,874)

mm)

%_MLm

y  The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4-
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Deficiency of revenue over expenses and decrease in net assets
without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions-

Contributions, net of uncollectible pledges
Investment Income

Change in fair value of investments
Net assets released from restriction for operations

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

S  f147.304^

44,649
37,790

(147,099)
f634"93H

(699.5911

(846.895)

H.445.131

$13.598.236

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

.5.
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change In net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change In net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability company
Change in fair value of Investments
Loss on disposal of assets
(Increase) decrease in

Patient accounts receivable
Grants receivable

Inventory
Pledges receivable
Other current.assets

Increase (decrease) in
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related amounts
Deferred revenue

Pab'ent deposits

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital acquisitions
Proceeds fi'om sale of investments
Purchase of investments

Net cash used by Investing activities

Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents

Cash arxt cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$  (846,895)

651,700
349,661

2.395

242,345
.6,874

(971.354)
304.713

101,604

300.635
(1.155)

(138.262)
33,819
(2.1.17)
6.790

40.753

(21.463)
198.456
^294.519>

f 117.5^4)

(76.771)

JLSZ15M

$ 3.696.613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-6-
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GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Oraanization

Greater Seacoast Community Health (the Organization) is a non-stocK. rxjl-for-profit corporation
organized in New Hampshire. The Organization is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) that
provides fully integrated medical, behavioral, oral health, recovery services and social supDon for
underserved populations.

On January 1. 2018. Goodwin Community Health (GCH) and Families First of the- Greater
Seacoast (FFGS) merged to become Greater Seacoast Community Health. GCH and FFGS were
not-for-profit wrporations organized in New Hampshire. GCH and FFGS were both FOHCs
proyidjpg^^mllar services in adjoining and overlapping service areas and have worked

• collaboratjvely In the provision of healthcare services in the greater Seacoast area for many years
Given the compatibility of their missions, the adjacency of their service areas and their shared
charitable missions of providing healthcare services to Individuals living within the greater
Seacoast service area. GCH and FFGS came to the conclusion that the legal and operational
integration of their respective organizations into one legal entity would result In a more effective
means of providing healthcare services In their corhbined service area.

The following summarizes amounts recognized by entity as of January 1, 2018:

Assets

Cash end cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable
Grants receivable

inventory
Pledges receivable

-  Other current assets
Investmonjs,; •..5
Inveslnicnl ilri^HSijed liability company
Assets limited as'to use
Property end equipment, net

GCH FFGS Total

$  3,379.361 % 594.223 S 3.973.584
906.747 334.297 1.241.044
571.752 157.603 729,355
244.854 . 244.654

- 564,192 564.192
33.159 23.673 56,832

1.085:684 18,019 1,103,703
20.298 20.298 40.596

• 1.577,139 1.577.139
5

Total assets

Liabilities

Accounts payable end accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Patient deposits
Deferred revenue

Total nabilhies

Net assets

Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net.assets

.883.017 6.442.291

$ 12.124.872 S 3.648.718 $ 15.973.590

$  125,513 $ 185,601 S 311,114
626.521 415.123 1,041,644
87.632 78.683 166,315
7.386 2.000 9.386

5  947.P$2 S 681 407 s 1.5^8.459

11.277,820 893,979 11.971.799
. 2.473.332 2.473.332

% 11.277 820 5 3.167.311 $ 14.445.131

There were no significant^adjustments made to conform the Individual accounting policies of the
merging entitles or to eliminate Intra-entity balances.
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Acquisition of Lilac CItv Pediatrics. P.A.

Emotive July 1, 2018, the Organbation entered into a business combination agreement with Lilac
City Pediatrics, P.A. (LOP), a New Hampshire professional assodation providing quality pedialric
healthcare services In the region served by the Organization. The agreement required the
Organization to hire LCP employees, assume equipment and occupancy leases, and carry on the
operations of LCP. The business combination provides the Organization's patients with additional
and enhanced pedlatric healthcare services, consistent with the Organization's mission. There was
no consideration transferred as a result of the business combination and the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed were not material. • ^

Basts of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor-imposed restrictions In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 958, Not-For-Pfofjt EntHles, as described
below. Under FASB ASC Topic 958 and FASB ASC Topic 954. Health Care. EnUtiee, all not-for-
profit healthcare organizations are required to provide a balance sheet, a statement of operations,
a statement of changes .In net assets, and a statement of cash flows. FASB ASC Topic 954
requires reporting amounts for an organization's tola! assets, liabilities, and net assets In a balance
sheet, reporting the change In an organization's net assets In statements of operations and
changes in net assets, and reporting the change In Its cash and cash equivalents In a statement of
cash flows.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended (or any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those rwtrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated .the funds be maintained In perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as Increases In net assets with donor restrictions.
When a restriction expires, net assets are reclasslfied from net assets with donor restrictions to net
assets without donor restrictions in the statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncement

In August 2018, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14. Presentation of
Financial Statements of Not-for-profit Entities (Topic 958), which makes targeted changes to the
not-for-profit financial reporting model. The new ASU merits the completion of the first phase of a
larger project aimed at Improving nol-for-profii financial reporting. Under the new ASU, net asset
reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three category classification of net assets is
replaced with a simplified mode) that combines tomporarily restricted and permanenth/ restricted
Into a single category.called 'net assets with donor restrictions.'
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The guidance for ciassifying deficiencies-in endowment funds and on accounting for the lapsing of
restrictions on gifts to acquire property and equlpment'has also been simplified and clarified. New
disclosures highlight restrictions on the use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets
unavailable (or meeting near-term financial requirements. The ASU also imposes- several new
requirements related to reporting expenses. The ASU is effective for the Organization for the year
ended December 31, 2018.

Income Taxes '

.The Organization Is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC).
As a public charity, the Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income
eam^ in accordance with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state
and federal Income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and
concluded that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that,
require adjustment to the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The^'preparation of financial statements iri conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
•principles (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets .and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements.-Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eoulvalants

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and petty cash funds.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectability of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past history and identifies trends for each funding source, in addition, patient balances
receivable in excess of 90 days old are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews data about
revenue In evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts. Amounts not
collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are applied against the
allowance for uncollectible accounts.

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts at December 31, 2018 follows:

Balance, beginning of year S 270.416
Provision 651,700
Write-offs (499.703)

Balance, end of year $ 42^.413
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Grants Receivable

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.

Inventory

Inventory consisting of pharmaceutical drugs Is valued first-in, first-out method and is measured at
the lower of cost or retail.

Investments

.The-Organization reports Investments at fair value. Investments include donor endowment funds
and assets held for long-term purposes. Accordingly, investments have been classified as non-
current assets in the accompanying balance sheet regardless of maturity or liquidity. The
Organization has established policies governing long-term investments, which are held within
several Investment accounts, based on the purposes for those Investment accounts and their
eamlngs.

The Organization has elected the fair value option for valuing its Investments, which consolidates
all investment performance activity within the other revenue and gains section of the staterhent of
operations. The election was made because the Organization believes reporting the activity In a
single performance Indicator provides a clearer measure of- the investment performance.
Accordingly, investment Income and the change in fair value are included in the. deficiency of
revenue over expenses, unless otherwise stipulated by the donor or State Law.

Investments, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as Interest rate, credit, end overall
market volatility risks. As such, it Is reasonably possible that changes In the values of Investments
will, occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported In
the balance sheet.

Investment In Limited Llabllltv Comoanv

The Organization Is one of seven members of Primary Health Care Partners. LLC (PHCP). The
Organization's Investment In PHCP Is reported using the equity method and the investment
amounted to $38,201 at December 31, 2018.

Assets Limited As To Use

Assets limited as to use Include investments held for others and donor-restricted contributions to
be held In perpetuity and eamlngs thereon, subject to the Organization's spending policy as further
discussed in Note 6.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed on the straight-line
method.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such'as land, ljuildings. or equipment, are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions and excluded from the deficiency of revenue over expenses unless explicit donor
stiputatlons specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must
be us^ to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent
explicit donor stipulations about how lor>g those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations
of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in
service.

Patient Deooslts

Patient deposits consist of.payments made by patients in advance of significant dental work based
on quotes for the work to be performed.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered. Including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-parly payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis In the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.

340B Dfua Pricing Program

The Organization, as an FQHC. is eligible to participate in the 3408 Drug Pricing Program. The
program requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHC's and other identified
entities at a reduced price. The Organization operates a phaimacy and also, contracts with local
pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies dispense drugs to eligible patients of the
Organization and bill Medicare and. commercial insurances on behalf of the Organization.
Reimbursement received by the contracted pharmades is remitted to the Organization, less
dispensing and administrative fees. Gross revenue generated from the program is Included In
patient service revenue. Contracted expenses and drug costs incurred related to the program are
induded in olher operating expenses. Expenses related to the operation of the Organization's
pharmacy are categorized in the applicable operating expense classifications.

Donated Goods and Services

Various program help and support for the daily operations of the Organization's programs were
provided by the general public of the communities served by the Organization. Donated supplies
and services are recorded at their estimated fair values on the date of receipt. Donated supplies
and services amounted to $41,119 for the year ended December 31, 2018.
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Donor-Restflcted Gifts

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
• promise Is received. Conditional promises to give and indications of intentions to give are reported
at fair value at the date the gift is received and the conditions are met. The gifts are reported as
net assets with donor restrlctJons If they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of
the donated assets. When a donor restriction expires (that Is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction la eccompHshed). net assets with donor restrictions ere reclassified to
net assets without donor restrlcUons and reported In the statements of operations as "net assets
released from restriction." Oonor-restricted coritributions whose restrictions are met in (he same
year as received are reflected as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to t>e collected In future years are recorded at
the present value of their estimated firture cash flows. All pledges receivable are due within one
year. Given the short-term nature of the Organization's pledges, they are not discounted and a
reserve for uncollectible pledges has been established In the amount of $2,000 at December 31.
2018.. Conditional promises to give are not included as revenue until the conditions are
substantially met.

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The statement of operations reflects the deficiency of revenue over expenses. Changes In net
assets without donor restrictions which are excluded from the deficiency of revenue over
expenses, consistent with Industry practice. Include contributions of long-lived assets (including
assets acquired using contributions which, by donor restriction, were to be used for the purposes
of acquiring such assets).

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through May 20. 2019, the dale that the financial statements were
available to be Issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Avaliabllltv and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet Its operating needs ano other
contractual commitments, while also striving to optimize the Investment of its available funds.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-mon:h
period, the Organization considers ail expenditures related to its-ongoing activities and gerieral
administration, as well as the conduct of services undertaken to support those activities td' be
general expenditures.
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In addition to financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next 12 months, the
Organization operates with a balanced budget and anticipates collecting sufficient revenue to
cover general expenditures not covered by donor-restricted resources.

The Organization had worlting capital of $4,918,258 at December 31. 2018.-The Organization had
average days (based on normal expenditures) cash and cash equivalents on hand of 74 at
December 31. 2018.

.Financial assets and liquidity resources available within one year for general expenditure, such as
operating expenses, were as follows as of December 31, 2018;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,896,013
Investments 1,112,982
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,560,698
Grants receivable ' 424 642
Pledges receivable 263.657

Financial assets available for current use

The Organization has certain long-term investments to use which are available for general
expenditure within one year in the nornrial course of operations. Accordingly, these assets have
been Included in the Information above. The Organization has other long:term investments and
assets for restricted use. which are more fully described in Note 3. that are not available for
general expenditure within the next year and are not reflected in the amount above.

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use

Investments, stated at fair value, consisted of the following:

Long-term investments $1,112,982
Assets limited as to use 1 421 576

-Totalinvestments $ 2534.558

Assets limited as to use are restricted for the following purposes:

Assets held in trust under Section 457(b) deferred
compensation plans $ 26.763

I

Assets with donor restrictions 1.394,813

Total $ 1.421.576
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic 820, Pair Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would t>e
received, to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) In an orderly transaction
between market participants and also establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to
maximize the use of.observable inputs and minimize the use of unobsen/able inputs when
measuring fair value.

The fair value hierarchy vrithin ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of Inputs that may be
utilized when measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2; Significant observable Inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices in markets that ere not active, and other
Inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Signrficant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use In pricing an asset or liability.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Organization's
investments at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,810 $ - $ - $ 13,610
Municipal bonds • 238,679 - 286,679
Exchange traded funds 411,147 - - 411,147
Mutual funds 1.820.922 : : 1.820.922

Total investments $ 2.245.879 S 288.679 $ $ 2.534.556

Municipal bonds are valued based on quoted market prices of similar assets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2016:

Land $ 718.427'
Building and Improvements ' 5,857,426
Leasehold improvements 311,561
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2.667.663

Total cost 9.555.079

Less accumulated depreciation 3.447.860

Property and equiprhent, net S-SJSLZIS
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The Organization's facility was built and renovated with federal grant funding under the ARRA -
Capital Improvement Program,and ACA • Capital Development Program. In accordance with the
grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) was required to be filed in the appropriate
official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed to notify any
prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in the real
properly acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not be used for any
purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and applicable regulations;
that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral without the written
■permission of the Associate Administrator of the' Office of Federal Assistance fwlanagement
(OFAM) and the Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the property
may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the Associate
Administrator of 0FAf\4 and HRSA.

5. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes;

Specific purpose
Program services $ 115,371

Passage of time
Pledges receivable 263,557
Investments to be held in perpetuity, for which the income is

without donor restrictions 1.394.813

Total S 1.773.741

Net assets released from net assets with donor restrictions were as follows:
I

Satisfaction of purpose • program services $ 270,530
Passage of time' pledges receivable 291,364
Passage of time - endowment earnings 73.017

Total S 634.931

6. Endowments

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization's endowments primarily consist of an investment portfolio rrianaged by the
Investment Sub-Committee. As required by U.S. GAAP, net assets associated with endowment
funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.
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The Organization has interpreted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institulionar Funds Act
(UPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endONvment funds, absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of
this Interpretation, the Organization classifies as a donor-restricted endowment (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent donor-
restricted endowment gifts and (c) accumulations to the donor-restricted endowment made in
accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift Instrument at the time the accumulation
is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund, if any. Is
classified as net assets with donor restrictions until those amounts are appropriated for
expenditure In a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribe by UPMIFA.

In accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization considers the following factors in making a
determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund;
(2) The purposes of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund;
(3) Genera) economic conditions;
(4) The possible effect of Inflation and deflation;
(5) The expected total return from Income and the appreciation of investments;
(6) Other resources of the Organization; and
(7) The Investment policies of the Organization.

Spending Policy
1

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for expenditure an amourit equal to 5% of the
endowment fund's average fair martcet value over the prior 20 quarters. The earnings on the
endowment fund are to be used for operations.

Funds with Deficiencies

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment
funds may fall below the level that the donor requires the Orgdnizatlon to retain as a fund of
perpetual duration (underwater). In the event the endowment becomes underwater, it Is the
Organization's policy to not apprcpriale expenditures from the endowment assets until the
endowment is no longer underwater. There were no such deficiencies as of December 31, 2018.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that
attempt to provide e predictable stream of funding to programs supported by-Its endowment while
seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment.assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Organization must hold in perpetuity. Under this
policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner
that is intended to produce results that exceed or meet designated benchmarks v/hlle incurring a
reasonable and prudent level of investment risk.

-16-



DocuSign Envelope ID; BSCEB6A2-3EB5^20C-B540-908795BE8D81

GREATER SEACOAST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Notes to Financial Statements
f

December 31, 2018

Strategies Employed for Achieving OblectivBs

To satisfy Its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total retum strategy
in which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and
unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset
allocation that places a balanced emphasis on equity-based and Income-based Investments to
achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

The Organization's endowment consists of assets with donor restrictions. only and had the
following related activities for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Endowments, beginning of year

Investment income
Change in fair value of investments
Spending policy appropriations

Endowments, end of year

7. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue follows:

Medicare

Medicald

Third-party payers and self pay

Total patient service revenue
Contracted pharmacy revenue

Total

$ 1,577,139

37,790
(147,099)

_J21Q17)

S 1-394.813

$ 1,173,771
4,107,002
4.753.946

10.034.719
1.318'392

S11.3S3.111

Laws and regulations governir>g the Medicare and Medicald programs are complex and Subject to
interpretation. The Organization believes that It Is in compliance with all laws and regulations.
Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and
Interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action Including fines, penalties and exclusion from
the -Medicare and Medicald programs. Differences between amounts previously estimated and
amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are included in patient service
revenue in the year that such amounts become Known.
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A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the medical care of qualified patients on a prospective basis,
with retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment Is based on a
gcographlcolly-adjusted rate determined by Federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement Is subject
16 a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Medicare cost reports for GCH and FFGS have been
audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through June 30. 2010 and June 30, 2017,
respective^. . ' '

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization also has entered Into payment agreements with Medicaid and certain
commercial insurance carriers, health maintenance organizations and preferred provider
organizations. The basis for payment to the Organization under these agreements includes
prospectively-determined rates per visit, discounts from established charges and capitated
arrangements for primary care sen/Ices on a per-member. per-month basis.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify for charity care, they are not reported as
net patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing
charily care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by
the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for the sliding
fee disMunt. The estimated cost of providing ser/ices to patients under the Organization this
policy amounted to $1,756,052 for the year ended December 31. 2018.

The Organization Is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

8. Retirement Plans

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under IRC Section 401 (k) that covers
substantially at! employees. For the year ended December 31. 2018. the Organization contributed
$194,214 to the plan.

The Organization has established a unqualified deferred compensation plan under IRC Section
457(b) for certain key employees of the Organization. The Organization did not contribute to the
plan during the year ended December 31. 2018. The balance of the deferred compensation plan
amounted to $26,763 at December 31.2010.
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9. Food Vouchers

The Organization acts as a conduit for the State of New Hampshire's Special Supplemental Food
Program for Women. Infants and Children (WIG). The value of food vouchers distributed by the
Organization was $1,136,875 for the year ended December 31, 2018. These amounts are not
Included In the accompanying financial statements as they are not part of the contract the
Organization has with the State of New Hampshire for the WIC program.

10. Concentration of Risk

The Organization has cash deposits in major financial institutions which exceed federal depository
insurance limits. The Organization has not experienced losses in such accounts and management
believes the credit risk related to these deposits is minimal.

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. At December 31, 2018, Medicald represented
37% of gross accounts receivable. No other individual payer source exceeded 10% of the gross
accounts receivable balance.

The Organization receive? a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the year ended December 31. 2016, grants from DHHS (Including
both direct awards and awai-ds passed through other organizations) represented approximately
63% of grants, contracts, and contributions.

11. Functional Expense

The Organization provides various services to residents within Its geographic location. Given the
Orgahization is a service organization, expenses are allocated between healthcare services and.
administrative support based on Ihe percentage of direct care wages to total wages, with the
exception of program supplies which are 100% healthcare In nature. Expenses related to providing
these services are as follows for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Healthcare

Services

Administrative

and Support
Services

Fundraising
Services Total

Salaries and benefits -
Other operating expenses

Contract services

Program supplies
Software maintenance

Occupancy
Other

Depreciation

Total

$ ■l2.688.419 $ 1,453,660 $ 568,041 $ 14,715.120

925,980 144,869 15.112 1,085,961
1.217.994 - - 1,217,994

460,634 52,938 20.620 534.192
502,635 57,765 22,500 582.900
862,256 68,360 75.211 1,025,627
301.513 34.651 13.497 349.661

$ 16.S59.431 $" 1.837.243 $ 714981 S 19.511.655
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12. Commitments and ContlnQenclBs

Medical Malpractice Insurance

The Organization Is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice Insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of the year ended
December 31. 2018, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opiniori of
management, will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and additional medical
malpractice Insurance coverage, nor are there any unasserted claims or Incidents which require
loss accrual. The Organization Intends to renew the additional medical malpractice Insurance
coverage on a daims-made basis and antidpates that such coverage will be available.

Leases

The Organization leases office space and certain other office equipment under noncancelabie
operating leases. Future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

2019 $ .289.273
2020 76.992
2021 33.990

Total
S  400.255

Rental expense amounted to $258,695 for the year ended December 31. 2018.

-20-
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CREAieR S6AC0AST COMMUNITY HEALTH

Goodwin
CwBfflUoliy HulUi

u

Board of Directors

CaJeodar Year 2019 '

OccupationFhooc/EmailNome/Address

Chair

Barburn He Retired Newspaper Publisher

Vice Chair

Valeric Goodwin Retired Business

CoDiumer

Boarti Treasorer

Dennis Veiileux Accouotisg Manager

Doard SecrctaiT

Jennifer GUdden DHHS Admia Supervisor
Cociumer

r
Export Manager

Consunier

MatkDoulanger
Raicbe & Compan CPA

Don Chick Photographer
CcnsTimer

isaH
Retired Accountant

0 JordoD Emergency Management

Abieail Sykas Karoutas Attorney

CooEofficr

AJuson Education Consultant

Consumer

ohn Pelieticr Retired Truck DnverA^cleran
Consumer

YuliaRotheoberg Educatioo .Consultant
Consumer

Rev. 1/2019
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JANET M. I-AATSCH

Objecttve: To aHUze my Jeaderslilp ddlls to create a dynamle, raftaiDable noinproiSt
oiBanfaatioo.
WORKEXPERm<CE:

Goodfvtn CaiimiiQiityHeatt& (GCB)
SomcrewDrth, NH 2001-Fr^eat
CWefKxecotivo Officer ZOOS-Preaent

AccoznpIishmentB:
•  Siiocesstuli7ie(aiiiedaUI>irectoiBaQdI1iy8i(aazis
• BoHtrelatiQiish^'wMi donors, ioTindaliQDS, local and state

reprBS8D(atiVB3 and o&er ooo'profit and fbr-piofit arganizBticais
• Ratrationofansctive Board ofDirectors

•  Improvemcoitofpafiaitoiilcamfis
•  SnirewtbT^nqdementedmeoJalhealfli mtegratjaapiogiam
•  SoccessMty acquired a Ar-ptofit menial heat&oxganjzaliQii
• Devetoped a newpartnea'sh^ with Noble Sdbool
V Developed a new parbiec^pwifliSoiitfacfistamNHScsvlces
• OlrtainfidiiBwgtsnt£mifingofovsr$7.0zDillioD

• Bspansion of donor base
• Developoient of a cmparate conyHance piogiam
• Met^tbepoblicbealdi and aaiety council under AOCHC

Retponsfltflities:
• Ovcnigbtofi^Mmliana, finance^ personnel and food development
• Qnoit writing and donor developmeiit
• New business development
•  C(niq)liancewidi all federal and state ngolations
• Build relationsiij^ and partnerships locally and statewide
•  Strategio planning
•  Itcpoitdhecfytofhe Board of Directore

PSnance Director 2002-2005
A^WIlMpTtgllTTlftllfWy

• Broughtin.crvBr$3.GniilUaningtant jundsfeirdieotganization
• Obtained Federally QoalifledHealdlOQntBr status in 2004
« Designed and implemented a successftil new dental program
• Achieved a finamaalsinphisannnalty

Responalbilhlea:
• SAspansfblefea* all financial transactions, billing collections, patient

aoconnls

•  Sfrwf^wplminingHR TtmltrtftH tn cqrital ftrndrng
• Bndgrt devriopment, cost/benefit analysis ofexisting pmgnanB mH

potential new programs
• Devekquneait and inq)IcniBDtatioEofan annual development plan
• Research, write, submit and provide tbllow-upiepor&fer grant fimds
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• Oveisee human resonrcefimctioM of the mganizatian.
Grant Writer^er])icza]|^inve 2001-2002

Grant Writing Serrtoa,
N. Hampton, NH
Sole Proprietor 1599-2001

AccompUsbmenfs:
•  SuccosafuUy researched and suinnittBd grarrts fbr healOi and

QTgBDizafions totaKng over $150k
BesponribiStleo:

• Research prxvatD^todastiy, state and fisdoral&adsibrnoQ-iuofit
arganizarions

. Norrii Shore Medical Center (Partnere Health Care) 1591-1995
Salem, MA

Chief Operarians Officer for Oie
North Shore OommimifyHjcalfl! Center 1997-1999

•  SucoessMly submitted their ooDq>etitiva Federal grant and other
Etete grants

• Recnnted a medical diieotor and Ton^tialBd existing provider
conlracts to prodnotivify standards

• Re-dfisigoedopemtiaiistD inquoveprodDctivrty
•  IncorpoaalDdflwhoqnial's medical icsidcnciy program mto the

Healfli Center

• Achieved a finanmal siupIusibrdiB.first tone in five jeais
• Developed a (piafity program and fiamswodc

KeaponsiblBtles;
•  Placed at the Ceotor hy fiie North Share Medical Center to

levanq) operations and improve the cash flow fi>r the cagaiUzation
• Belted dicectfyto the Board of Director

EDTTCmON:

Untveirity ofNwv Hampshire; M3A.
Dnihanj, NH. Conconlratian In Finance 1991

Northern Iffiridgan University: B.S.N.
Maiqaette^ML Mmor in Biology 1981

IJCEaNSKS/CERTIBICAXES:
Real Estate Broker

NJR. Nursing License

FROHESEOI^ ^
Member offiie Natianal AssociatioTi of Comnnmily Efeaffli Centers
Previpns Board member ofthe United ̂ ey oftfae Greater Seacoast
Treasmw for the HeaJA and Safety ConnDil of Straflbrd a>unty
Board member of the Cmmmmity Healfe Network Access (CHAN)
Board member of the JtochesterRotary, slotted for President in 2011
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Erin E. Ross

Objectire
Obtain a position in l&alth Care, ̂ ch will contfniift to bmld knowledge and skills finm bofli edocatian and «q)aiences

gained.

Qoalificatioiis
Mfltnie, energetio individual possessing management experience, organizational skQls, multi-tasking abilities, good woik

inillatxve and commumcales well with intemaj and external conlacts. Flx)ficieiit in computer skills witii a sirongbackground nmng
bH qiplicalions witiun ̂ crosoft OfBce programs.

Edacation
Sqitembex 1998 -M^2002 Bachelor of Science in Health Management & Policy •

IhiivcrsiQr ofNew Hanq)shire
Durham, New Eany)shire 03824

Related Expmence
Auguri 2006—Preset Service Espanslon Director

Avis Goodwin Community Health Center
• Responsible for die overall fimcdon of die Winter St locslion ofAvis Goodwin Community Healtii

Center.

•  XfHTTifafn all clinical equipment and order all necessary
•  rnnrrtrnflfrt thw cr>wiiilTTig filTninwl and pdiriTTilghTtrivft gtftff m
•  Assist witti die contianed integration of dental services and nowmemalhcaMi services tn eiTigrtng

primary care services.
•  As^widi the integration ofprivateOB/GYN practice into Avis Goodwin Community Healdi Center.
•  Organize patient outcome data collection and quality inqiroveinent measures to monitor mult^le

aqiecfs and assure sustainability for Avis Goodwin Comnmnity Healtii Center.

2005 - Angufft 2006 Site Manner, Dover Location
Avis Goodwin Comzminity Health Center

•  Responsible &a the overall fbnction ofthe Dover location ofAvis Goodwin Community Wwaifh Center.
• Maintain all clinical equipment and order all necessary st^lies.

•  Assist with die continued integration of dental services andnow mental health services to existing
primary care services.

•  Coordinate die scheduling of all clinica] and administrative staffin the ofBce.
•  Organize patient outcome data collection and qoality improvement measures to monitor mult^le

aspects and assure sustainability fiir Avis Goodwin Community Health Centw.

January 2005—November 2005 Front OfiSce Manager
Avis Goodwin Community Healtii Ceoiter

•  Siqiervise, hire and evaluate fiunt office staff ofbotii Avis Goodwin Comrnunity Center
locations.

•  Develop andin^lementpoliciesandproceduresforthesmooliifUBctioningofdieffontofGce.

May 2004 — Present Dental Coordinator
Avis Goodwin Community Health Ceoitar

■  Supervise hire and evaluate dental staf^ fnchidfng Denial Assistant and Hygienists.
•  Acted as general contractor during construction end renovation of eristing &clljty for 4 dental exam

rooms.

•  ResponsibJe for the operatians ofthe dental center, development ofeducational programs forproviders
and staff and supervision of the sc^ol-based dental program.

•' Developed policy and procedure manual, jnchidingOSHA and Infection Control protocols.
•  Organize patient outcome data collection end quality improvement measures to monitor dental progrmn

and assure sustainability.
• Maintam all dental equipment and order aR dental si^plies.
•  Coordinate grant fund requireiments to multiple agencies on a quarterly basis.
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•  (>/srseeaU aspects ofbilljzig for deaiM services, incMding training existing billing dq^artment Staff.

July 2003-May2004 Adminlrtrattve Asristant to Medical Director
Avis Goodwin Commuiiity Heahh Center

docomcnting all aspects oftiie agenda and reporting quarterly data followed by the ageaicy.
•  Generate a monflilyrqxntrefloctiag provider prodnctiyity including number patients seen by each

provider ""d no sbow and cancellfltinn rates of appoiiilmeids.
•  Served as a liaison between patioDts and Chief7inancial Officer to o:&ctively handle all patieot

concerns 'wid con^tbznsits.
•  Established and re-created varions forms and wortahoets used by many dq)aitmea3ls.

December 2002-May 2004 Billing Assoclato
' Avis Goodwin Community Healdi Center

•  OrgazdzB ̂  respond to correspondence, r^ections and payments from multiple insnrance conffitniea.
• ' Created an Insurance Manual for Front OfdceStaffandfotake Specialists as an aide to educatepadents

on their insurance.

•  Kesponsible for credentialjng and Re-credentialingofproviders, including physicians. nnrM
practMonere and physician assistants, within foe agency and to mult^le insurance companies.

«  App]y knowledge of computer inrJndfng hficrosoft Office, Logician, FCN and Centricdty.
•  niMrignftd w tn generato from an existing Microsoft Access database for patjemts on payment

pTmw to receive monfoly statements.
•  Assist Office Staff during times of planned and unexpected staffing shortages.

Juno2002-December 2002 Billing Associate
Aufomated Msdical Systems
Salem, Now Bampshlre 03079

•  Communicate insurance ben^ts and eoq^Iain payments and rejections to patients about their accounts.
• Responsible for azgani23ng and responding to correspondfince recoved for multiple doctor ofGces.
• Detennine effi^cdve ways for rejected insurance claims to get paid foroughcomnmnicating with

insurance companies and patients.
•  ApplyknowledgeofconqnitBrsldlls, including Microsofi Office, Accutenn and Docstar.

Work F.^perience
October 1998-May2002 Buflding Manager

Memorial Ifoion Building—UNH

Durham, New Hanqiahirc 03824

• Recognized as a Siqiervisor, May 2001-htey 2002.
•  Siqicivised Building Manager and Information Center staffi
•  HnCTwnwitfrigdqiflTtmenl monetary transactions.
•  Or^nized and led employee meetings on a weddy basis.
• Established policies and procedures for a^oth functioning of daily events.
•  Oversaw daEy operatians of student union building, including meetings canqius evo^.
•  Served as a liaison between foe Xhiiwsity ofNew Hampshire, students, feculty and craimiimity.
•  anA T^Hwrfnined fl weakly list ofrental properties available for stodents.
• Developed and administered new ideas for increased customex service efficiency.

References
Availahle tqion request
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laraawniaid

^ FBSRSaOHfllERPOIQieE
Somofswort/i Main Siraet Inc., Somersworth, New Hampshire
Execu^ Director; August 2001 - 2004
•  Founded and Directed a 501 (c)3 non profit organization dedicated to revftaTizing a

downtown commercial district
•  Energized local planning, historic preservation, economic and real estate development
• Wodced with public and private Interests to achieve common downtown renewal goals
•  Developed and Implemented strategic marketing and public relations programs,

^ndrai^rs ar>d public planning sessions
•  Created and coordinated high visibility downtown events and beautiflcatlon projects
•  Responsible for budget management and all day to day program operations

LDVIf Public Relations

Setfi-Employed Marketing/Communications Consultant; May 2000 - August 2001
•  Enhance creattvity, profiBssionaQsm and frequency of outbound

marketing/communications and public relations effbrts
• Organize mix of publicity, promotion, advertising and Internet presence for milestone

company events such as venture capital fonding, new store openings, web casts, direct
. marketing campaigns and celebrity endorsements.
•  Drive brand awareness and message consistency through creation of unique and

compelling copy for web sites, catalogs, executive s'peisches, press releases and direct
marketing collateral

•  Significantly Increase media exposure with key audiences resulting in a multitude of
Image enhancing feature news stories with leading media outlets like the Wall Street
Journal, The Red Hem'ng, The Associated Press and ESPN.

•  Conduct media training with company executives
•  Clients include 1800FACEOFF.Com.and General Linen Service, Inc.
•  Chairman of Somersworth Main Street Program communications dommittee

Unisphere Networks, Inc,, Wsstforxi, MA
Senior fhibtic Relations Manager, April 2001 - November 2001
•  Responsible for managing and creating results-driven public relations programs for

multiple product lines and business initiatives
•  Successitil development and execution of strategies that position the company and Its

spokespeople as thought leaders in trade and business communities
•  Oiganize Industry events to leverage and maximize impact of corporate messaging with

key audiences
•  Manage outside agency to achieve public relations goals
•  Corislstentiy create and edit high-qualtty, Influentia! materials like press releases, launch

plans, abstracts and contributed articles
•  Produce stellar coverage results In key media outlets
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LOW PubHc Relations ^ I
Self-EmployBd Marketing/Communications Consultant; May 2000 - August 2001
•  Enhance creativity, professionalism and frequency of outbound

markeUng/communications and public relations efforts _
•  Organize mix of publicity, promotion, advertising and Internet presence fbrmilestona w

company events such as venture capital funding, new store openings, web casts, direct p
marketing campaigns and celebrity endorsements. w

•  Drive brand awareness and message consistency through creation of unique end ®
compelling copy for web sitas, catalogs, executive speeches, press releases end direct ^
marketing collateral o

•  Significantly Increase media exposure with key audiences resulting In a multitude of ®
image enhancing feature news stories with leading media outlets Ilka the WaU Street 9
Journal. The Red Herring. The Associated Press and ESPN. S

•  Conduct m^a training with company executives g
-  aients Include 1800FACEOFF.Com and General Unen Service, Inc. ro
•  Chairman of Somersworth Main Sheet Program communications commntee §

Unisphere Networks, Inc,, Westford, MA
Senior Public Relations Manager; April 2001 - November2001
0  Responsible for managing end creating results-driven public relations programs for

multiple product lines and business Initiatives
0  Successful development and execution of strategies that position the company and Its

spokespeopla as thought leaders in trade and business communltias
0  Organize Industry events to leverage and maximize Impact of corporate messaging with

key audiences
0  Manage outside agency to achieve public relations goals
0  Consistently create and edit high-quality, influantial materials like press releases, launch

plans, al!>strBCts and contributed atlicies
0  Produce stellar coverage results in key media outlets

o

Cabletron Systems. Rochester, NH
Public Relations Manager; June 199B - April 2000
Public Relations Specialist, July 1997 - June 1998
0  Oversee North American Public Relations program for software business unit
0  Provida strategic counsel to marketing, engineering and top-level executives
0  Guide launch team efforts to create. Implement and evaluate corporate communications

programs and product launches
0 Write and edft press materials, speeches, scripts, messages end quotes for both

technology and business audiences
0  Consistently deliver excellent and rpeasurable results with trade and business media as

well as leading Industry analysts
0  Coordinate detailed media events, trade shovrs and press tours
0  Manage searches for and relationships with ou^de agencies

The Weber Group, Inc., Cambridge, MA
AsslstantAccountExecutIve;September19^~ July 1997 ^
0 Write end edit pitch letters, speaker abstracts, press kits, briefing binders end media

releases under tight deadlines
0  Management and supervision offntems and account coordinators
0  Responsible for developing and maintaining editorial end speaking calendars to

generate client exposure
0  Create and pitch story angles to media
0  All activity necessary to meet and surpass client expectations
0  Clients Included 3Com and DCI



Cabletron Systems, Rochester, NH
Public Relations Manager; June 1998 - April 2000
Public Relations Spedali^ July 1997- June 1998
•  Oversee North American Pirb(ic Relations program for software business unit
•  Provide strategic counsel to marketing, engineering and top-level executives
•  Guide launch team efftxts to create, implement and evaluate corporate communications

programs and product launches
• Write and edit press materials, speeches, scripts, messages and quotes for both

technology and business audiences
•  Consistently deliver excellent and measurable results with trade and business media as

well as leading industry analysts
•  Coordinate detailed media events, trade shows and press tours
•  Manage searches for and relationships with outside agencies

The Weber Group, Inc., Cambridge, MA
Assistant Account Executive; September 1996 - July 1997
• Write and edit pitch letters, speaker abstracts, press kite, briefing binders and media

releases under tight deadlines
•  Management and supervision of Interns and account coordinators
•  Responsible for developing and maintaining editorial and speaking calendars to generate

client exposure
•  Create and pitch story angles to media
•  All activity necessary to meet and surpass client expectations
•  Clients included 3Com and DCI

^uDuiiinmuiHuiffleE
Somersworfd Inc., Somersworth, New Hampshire,
Founding Board of Directors Member/Columnist; 2002-2004

Greater Somersworth Chamber of Commerce, Somersworth New Hampshire
Board of Directors Member, 2001-2004

AEDUSflnOfiU
Johnson & Wales University, Providence, Rhode Island
•  B.S. Advertising/Communications; 1994-Cum Laude
• AS. Advertising/Public Relations; 1992-Cum Laude
•  Trimester in The Hague; Development of the European Community

Brown University, Providence, Rhode Island
•  Copywiting Internship; 95.5 WBRU

^Imaginative <PS1rateglc ^Effective
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Greater Seacoast Commuiilty Health

Regional Publi^Health Network
Key Persnnnel
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Name Job Title Salary % Paid finm

this Contract
Amount Paid from

^ Contract
Janet Laatscb Chief Executive OlEBcer $213,574 0% $0
Erin Ross Qiief Financial OfBcer $146,973 0% $0
LaraWillaid Director of Marketing &

Public Relations

$95,584 0% SO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services

This 5*^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Sen/ices (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and the Partnership for Public Health,
Inc. (d/b/a Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health), (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a
nonprofit, with a place of business at 67 Water St., Ste 105 Laconia, NH 03246.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5. 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DDA'YYY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$792,716.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting It in Its entirety and replacing it
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-17, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing it in Its
entirety with Exhibit B-17, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #5. which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

tt
Lakes Region Partnership for Public Heallh. Amendment #5 Contractor initials _

11/17/2020
SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-06-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/17/2020

Date

D»uSlgn*d by:

08J»PBCByC/*4AO,

Name: Lisa m. Morns

Title. Division of Public Health Srvcs.

11/17/2020

Date

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.C—DocuStgntd by:
-?8BA7gOOD4aS«CO

Name: Tamera carmichael

Executive Director

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc. Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-06-A05 Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

-OocuSlgnad by:

11/19/2020

Date

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc. Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-06-A05 Page 3 of 3



OocuSign E/welope 10: f704B63A-CFQe-4370-6F9P-98EUB4A4DS5

*eW «WeW* U>ii6h Nogr*«n hiAdiftt> Am«Adm«m fS

•MM FImM Tm« Cmmc«

Cm«>W«
Pnwf ifcMM

KWklMtiCfM

"—■■MM

Eairii»»i|
^rtpv^n*** •AJMt

HM
Muinu Mum

Cimxi—i «l C»»

1  mm
rii ■ini
Evatotfav* Vmtn»i)ii CM*

Clip 1 1 ii*<<
PMmhMV PraaanM

"lull*
VtMkiaacn einki

2019 i 1

2021 ftiAmn t  Mown t  M rseea »  n,m« 1  «»»roo t  44S.I« t  Moeen »  li«J» »  *0<IM »

tfar wiiiBv»c

iiiao«»>An

jt
11/17/2020



OocuSign Env«<op« ID: F704863A-CP9e-4370-eF9F-e8E11B4A40eS

Exhibit B-17. Amendment #5

Ntw Hampshlr* Dflpsrvnani of Hoalth and Human Sarvlcaa

eiddarffregm H«m: PAATNCMHIP FM PUBUC HCALTH. INC. f/K/i L«k«> Region PartiwreMp lor PubUc HooRh. Inc.

Budgcl Rcgueu for Young Adutl Stntoglcc

Budgol Portod: SPY 21 (71100 • BQO/211

Comnctot Slw* I Mcicii

btrvo ln«rMI Teu

I. VotalSobf^cpoc

Olrcci

IrvcrcmenUI

ImMroct

FtMd

5515
Inoomenud

■nduoct
Fbod

3i.o»ao |{ 40«eooo
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Coo»uil4t»~
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Educctiordl
U»

Ofico

Tra^
OccxiofieY
Ctrfwc E^por—c

03800
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^O^MiiVolingi^mnHnM
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o^_W|Ofj«£2S£.22S£JI!Sl22!2D2i

MwlJnO*'™ —TSTO" r
u.wu r

-T!5:Jo —

•tmsm10,42100 TWaOTTdT»l
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Lakoc Region Pertncifiip lor ftjbic HeeUi
Eil8b4 B-17. Amenomen eg
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Conrecior kMiab
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

!. William M. Gardner. Sccrciary of Slate of ihc State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC

HEALTH, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 21, 2005. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this oflkc is concemcd.

Business ID: 534847

Certificate Number: 0004903018

SI

So.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 29th day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Lisa Dupuis , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC: cannot be contract signatory)

(

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _Partnership for Public Health. Inc. (PPH)
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _October 22 , 2020_, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That _Tamera Carmichael (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: / 0 j O j
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Lisa Dupuis
Title: Vice President. PPH Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMfOD/YYYY)

02/24/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadowbrook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAMF*^^ Eleanor Spinazzola
[Kr.,,. 293-2791 (603)293-7188
Ai^t^ESS- El^anorspinazzoiaQesinsurance.net

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAJCD

INSURER A: ^''^at American insurance Group GAIG

INSURED

Partnership for Public Health, inc.

67 Water Street. Suite 105

Laconia NH 03246

INSURER B: insuance Co 29459

INSURER c - '-'"'^ad Stales Fire Insurance Co.

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 20-21 REVISION NUMBER:

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
POLICY EFl' POLICY EXP

LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

X

POLICY NUMBER

COUMERCUL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY □
OTHER:

PRO
JECT □LOC

MAC3793453-14

(MMfl)0/YYYYl

03/10/2020

(MWP0/YYYY1

03/10/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMACe TO RENTES
PREMISES lEa occufrencel

MED EXP (Aay cna p«f»on)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGO

Professional Liability-

1.000.000

300,000

10.000

1.000.000

3.000.000

3.000,000

1.000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

GOMQINeO SINGLE LIMIT
lEa aeeldentt

1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNEO
AUTOS ONLY

CAP1898681-10 03/10/2020 03/10/2021 BODILY INJURY (Per ecddeni)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accklenti

Uninsured motorist 1,000.000

X UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LUB

OED X

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

eac'iTocTurrIn^ 1,000.000

UMB3793454-15 03/10/2020 03/10/2021 AGGREGATE 1.000.000

RETENTION S 10.000
OTH-
_ERWORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OPFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mendetory in NH)
If yet, detcrlbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

STATUTE

E 04WECRJ0009 01/01/2020 01/01/2021 E.L. EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT 500.000

Accident/Healtb
US1275178 03/10/2020 03/10/2021

DESCRIPTION OP OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddlUonel Remerkt Schedule, mey be etuched II more tpace It required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Human and Health Services

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

129 Pleasant St
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord

1

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

<S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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PARTNERSHIP FOR

PUBLIC HEALTH

CELEB'Ri

Mission Statement

To improve the health and well being of the region

through inter-organizational collaboration and

community and public health improvement activities.
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Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for

Public Health, Inc.

Financial Statements

June 30,2019 and 2018

and

Independent Auditor's Report
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sVachon Clukay
& Company PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
608 Chcsinut Sireci • Manchester. New Hampshire 03104

(603) 622-7070 • Fax; (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and
2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the .audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor, considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purf>ose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence w'e have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial 'statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

'Vt

Manchester, New Hampshire
November 7, 2019
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Statements of Financial Position

June 30,2019 and 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Cash, restricted

Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURR£NT ASSETS

2019

$  103,502

3,143,898

210,239

11,168

2018

(restated)

$ 255,153

3,296,596

109,064
19.440

3.468.807 3.680,253

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT. NET

4,561
14,510

19,071
(17,741)

1,330

4,561

14,510

19,071

(17.379)

1.692

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments

Investments, restricted

Investment in LLC

Deposit

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

102,528

305,362

1,334

2,981

412,205

100,717

300,211

639

3.236

404.803

TOTAL ASSETS $ 3,882,342 $4,086,748

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other expenses

Refundable advances from contractors

Fiduciary funds
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$  360,403

41,533

30,763

20,140

2,981,016

3,253

3,437,108

3.437.108

;  278,821

37,961

19,537

39,793

3.273,829
9,842

3.659.783

3,659,783

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undcsignated

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

351.356

93,878

445,234

326,865

100,100

426,965

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSE TS

See notes tofinancial statements
3

$ 3,882,342 $4,086,748
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH. INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership Tor Public Health, Inc.
Statements of Activities

Torihc Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

CHANCES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions

Private grants and awards
Net assets released from donor restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

2,945

82,202

(91,369)

2019 2018

(restated)
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WrTHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Contributions $  10,682 $  8,408
In-kind support 53,195 41,606

Federal funds 1,674,127 1,202,368
State funds 1,267,823 799,768
Private grants and awards 32,963 17,878
Special events 2.494 2,294

Agent fees 142.698 174,465
Miscellaneous income 1,507 1,900

Interest income 40,388 12,138

Net assets released from donor restrictions 91,369 95,666

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 3,317,246 2,356,491

EXI'ENSES:

Program services 3.062,731 2,096,284
Supporting services:
Management and general 226,062 220,722

Fundraising and development 3,962 1,153

Total supporting services 230,024 221,875

TOTAL EXPENSES 3.292.755 2,318,159

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 24,491 38.332

8,380

99,649

(95.666)

(6,222) 12,363

CHANQR IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS. JULY 1, AS RESTATED

NET ASSETS. JUNE 30

18,269

426,965

50,695

376.270

445,234 $ 426.965

See notes to financial siaiements
4
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PA.RTNERSH(P FOR PUBLfC HEALTH, INC.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

SuDDonint; Services

Management Total

Program and Supporting Total
Service.<! Gei^eral Fundrnisine Servicflg Exhcnscs

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:;
Salaries S  821,401 S  176,855 $  3,282 S  180.137 $ 1,001,538
Employee benefits 92,610 9,219 . 9.219 101,829
Payroll taxes 61,095 13,328 210 13,538 . 74,633

975,106 199.402 3,492 202,894 1,178,000

OTHER EXPENSES:

Contract services 63,790 14,107 . 14,107 77,897
Contract and grant subcontractors 1,767,075 . 1,767.075
Discretionary funds 6,000 . 6,000
Insurance 7,174 4,977 4,977 12,151
Fundraising

- - 50 50 50
Occupancy 59,515 14 . 14 59,529
Operations 66,012 2,552 360 2,912 68,924
Supplitt 31,908 608 - 608 32,516
Travel and meetings 84,728 2,240 . 2,240 86,968
Miscellaneous 1,423 1,800 60 1,860 3,283
Depreciation

- 362 - 362 .362

Total S 3,062,731 S  226,062 $  3,962 J  230.024 S 3,292.755

See notes tofinancial statements

5
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30,2018

SALARJES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Contract services

Contract and grant subcontractors
Discretionary funds

Insurance

Fundraising
Occupancy
Operations
Supplies

Travel and meetings
Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total

ProBrnin Services

Program

Services

$  763.954

95,176

59,802

918.932

70,507

880,367

6,080

9,388

68,543

48,083

46,946

46,771

667

Stipporting Services

Management

and

General

S  179,039

9,868
13,159

202;066

8,982

2,052

1,986

338

3,020

1,975

303

Fundraising

876

66

942

205

.6

Total

Supporting
Services

$  179,915

9,868
13,225

203,008

8,982

2,052

205

1,986

338

3.020

1,981

303

Total

Expenses

943,869

105,044
73.027

1,121,940

79,489

880,367

6,080

11,440

205

68,543

50,069

47,284

49,791

2,648
303

$  2.096.284 $ 220.722 ' $ 1,153 $  221,875 S 2,318,159

See notes tofinancial statements
6
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2019 2018

(restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets $  18,269 S  50,695
Adjustmenls to Reconcile Increase in Net Assets to
to Net Cash (Used) Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 362 303

Change in assets and liabilities:
Contracts receivable (101.175) 19,106

Prepaid expenses 8,272 (401)
Deposit 255 250

Accounts payable 81,582 250,434
Accrued liabilities (4.855) (41,493)
Refundable advances from contractors (292,813) 744.758
Fiduciary passthrough (6.589) (370)

Net Cash (Used) Provided by Operating Activities (296,692) 1,023,282

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments (7,657) (400,593)
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (7.657) (400.593)

Net (decrease) increase in cash (304,349) 622,689

Cash, beginning of year 3,551.749 2,929.060

Cash, ending of year J 3,247,400 53,551,749

Supplemental Disclosures:

In-kind donations received S  53,195 S  41,606
In-kind expenses (53.195) (41.606)

S S

See notes to financial statements

7
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

Partnership for Public Health, Inc., formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.,
(the Entity) was organized on May 21, 2005 to improve the health and well-being of the Lakes Region
through inter-organizational collaboration and community and public health improvement activities.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Entity conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities, except as indicated hereafter. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis ofPresentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions arc
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions arc reclassificd to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Revenues from program services are recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues are recorded
upon receipt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2m 2018
As presented on the Statements of Financial Position -

Cash and equivalents $ 103.502 $ 255,153
Cash, restricted 3,143,898 3,296,596

$ 3.247.400 $ 3,551,749

Restricted Cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of advanced funding received from the State of New Hampshire
for the Integrated Delivery Network (IDN), donor restricted contributions and fiduciary funds.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of certificates of deposit with terms of one to three years, are
carried at their approximate market value at June 30,2019.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for equipment
and major improvements and to charge to operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at
rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Leasehold improvements 10-15
Furniture and equipment 5-15

Depreciation expense was $362 and $303 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Entity working full-time and part-time employees working at least 20 hours per week
are entitled to paid time off (PTO). PTO is earned from the first day of work. A maximum of 160 hours
can be earned based on years of service while 80 hours can be carried over and accumulated to the next
year. Accumulated PTO is payable upon termination of employment with proper notice. The Entity
accrues accumulated f^O wages accordingly.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

The Entity receives significant volunteer lime and efforts. The value of these volunteer efforts, while
critical to the success of its mission, is not reflected in the financial statements since it does not meet the
criteria necessary for recognition according to generally accepted accounting principles. Donated
facilities, supplies, equipment and staff support are recorded as "in-kind" contributions if the services (a)
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or(b) require specialized skills, are performed by people with those
skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the Entity. Donated goods and professional services are
recorded as both revenues and expenses at estimated fair value, see Note 10.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that arc attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include salaries, payroll taxes,
employee benefits, office supplies, fundraising, operations, and insurance, which are all allocated on the
basis of time and effort, as noted previously. In addition, there are some indirect costs which arc
allocated based on square footage or as a percentage of total expenses.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. No allowance has been recorded as of
June 30, 2019 and 2018, because managernent of the Entity believes that all outstanding receivables are
fully collectible.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain lax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2018 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that
need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements

10
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, investments, contracts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are
carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-
term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which
for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate
liquidation.

Reclassljications

Certain rcclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The rcclassifications had no impact on
previously reported net assets.

Change in Accounting Principle

On August 18, 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities
(Topic 958) — Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the
complexity and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in infomiation about liquidity
and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about
expenses and investment return. The Entity has implemented ASU 2016-14 and has adjusted the
presentation in these financial statements accordingly.

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in certificates of
deposit to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and-liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following:

11
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash S 3,247,400 $ 3,551,750
Investments 407,980 400,928

Contracts receivable 210,239 109.064

Total Financial Assets 3,865,619 4,061,742
Less:

Obligations from contractor restricted funds (371,033) (287.252)
Net assets with donor restrictions (93,878) (100.100)
Refundable advances from contractors (2,981,016) (3,273,829)
Fiduciary funds (3.253) (9.842)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  416,439 S  390,719

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Entity also could draw uf)on $125,000 of its available
line of credit, as further discussed in Note 6.

NOTE 3—CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The Entity's
demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of
$250,000. As of June'30, 2019, all of the Entit)''s bank deposits were fully insured and as of June 30,
2018, the balance in excess of federally insured limits was $118,484.

NOTE 4—INVESTMENT IN LLC

In January 2016, the Entity became a member of a newly-established limited liability corporation.
Community Health Services Network, LLC ("CHSN"), to support the enhancement of behavioral health
services integration in the region. The Entity will provide financial and administrative services to CHSN.

NOTE 5—REFUNDABLE ADVANCES FROM CONTRACTORS

Refundable advances from contractors of 32,981,016 and $3,273,829 as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively, represents unearned grant revenue oh contracts from various funding agencies.

NOTE 6—LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has a $125,000 line of credit with Bank of New Hampshire. The interest rate for the credit line
was 7.50% at June 30, 2019, and 7.00% at June 30, 2018. The interest rate is based on the Wall Street
Journal Prime Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal. At June 30,2019 and 2018, the balance of the
line of credit was $0.

12
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, L\C.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

NOTE 7—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following donor restricted funding at June 30, 2019 and
2018:

2019 2018

Family Caregivers Network $  2,866 $  2,769
ScrviceLink 7,749 8,550
Volunteer CERT 1,477 1.402
N4A 1,006 1,006
CERT 18,968 17,177
NH Charitable Foundation 12,185 8,461
Tufts Momentum 6,033 .

DSRJP Incentive 8,486 .

Endowment for Health 12,000 .

Other 23.108 60,735

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions $  93.878 S lOO.tOO

NOTE 8—CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Entity
recognized revenue of $2,941,950 (88.7%) and $2,002,136 (85.2%), respectively, from fees and grants
from governmental agencies. Revenue is usually recognized as earned under the terms of the grant
contracts and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. However, in the years ended June 30, 2019 and
June 30, 2018, the Entity received $1.8 million and $1.9 million, respectively, in capacity building funds
on a five-year, $12.8 million governmental contract waiver to enhance behavioral health integration in the
region. This revenue is anticipated to be recognized over a five-year period through fiscal year 2021,
dependent on the receipt of State matching funds, achievement of performance metrics and other criteria.
Other support originates from other program services, contributions, in-kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 9—LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Entity entered into a lease for office space located in Tamworth, NH with monthly lease payments of
$1,134 through December 2018. The lease was renewed through June 30, 2020 with payments of $1,008
through December 2019 and $1,048 thereafler, through June 2020. Lease expense for the years ended
June 30, 2019 and June 30,2018 were $12,483 and $13,604, respectively.

The Entity also has two leases for office spaces in Laconia, NH. The first lease has monthly payments of
$2,089 through August 31, 2018. An updated agreement was entered into with required payments of
$2,147 through August 31, 2019. The second lease for additional office space was entered into on June 1,
2018. Under the terms of the agreement, monthly payments will be $780 per month through May 2019.
The updated agreement efTeetive June 1, 2019 reflects payments of $795 through May 2020. Lease
expense for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 for these two leases was $35,013 and
$36,583, respectively.

13
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

The following is a schedule, by years, of the future minimum payments for operating leases:

Year Ended Annual

June 30. Lease Commitments

2020 $ 25,375
2021 6,288

$  31.663

NOTE 10—DONATED SERVICES, MATERIALS AND FACILITIES

The Entity receives various donated services, materials and facilities. For the years ended June 30, 2019
and 2018, there has been $53,195 and $41,606, respectively, of in-kind donations recognized as revenue.
The following amounts of these donations have been included as functional expenses in these financial
statements:

2m 2018
Supplies $  2,241 $  . 1,820
Contract services 34,132 7,542
Occupancy 600 5,500
Travel and meetings 3,450 3,600
Operations 10,950 10,950

Contract and grant subcontractors 1.822 12.194

S  53.195 S  41,606

NOTE 11—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be detennined at this lime, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 12—RESTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

During the year ended June 30, 2019, it was- noted that refundable advances from contractors was
overstated and net assets with donor restrictions was understated. The impact of this restatement on net-
assets as of July I, 2017 and 2018 is as follows:

Net Assets - July 1,2017, as previously reported $ 311,894
Amount of restatement due to:

Overstatement of refimdable advances from contractors 64.376

Net Assets - July 1, 2017, as restated

Net Assets - July 1,2018, as previously reported $ 352,751
Amount of restatement due to: *

Overstatement of refundable advances from contractors 74,214
Net Assets - July 1,2018, as restated $__£26j9^
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

NOTE 13—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through November 7, 2019, which Is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Current Board List Feb 2020

1. Karin Salome, Pres. LRGH Public Health Nurse

2. Sandi Moore- Beinoras, Secretary Psychiatric Nurse -Private Practice

3 Rich Crocker Retired CEO, Lakes Region Community Services
4. Trish Stafford, VP MR Director • Town of Meredith

S Maureen MacDonald Public Health Nurse - DHHS

6 Brandon Archibald Financial Manager • Ivy League Advisory Group
7. Susanne Chlsholm Attorney, Partner
8 Lisa Oupuls, treas. CEO, Central NH VNA and Hospice
9. Brian Lamontagne Branch Branch Manager FSB
10. Sarah Stanley Public Infomration Veteran's Home
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Shelley M. Carita, CFRE

Highly motivated leader with over 20 years successful leadership experience in
Individual and corporate fundralsing, marketing, corporate, foundation and federal
grant writing, program development, volunteer recruitment, strategic planning

and organizational development

Professional Experience

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Partnership for Public Health, Laconia, NH jan 2017 - Present
Organization Leader for a regional public heaith agency serving New Hampshire's Lakes
Region. Responsible for resource development, grants/contracts management, program
development and implementation, strategic planning and community relations. Provides staff
supervision and all human resource activities.

VICE PRESIDENT FOR DEVELOPMENT
New Hampshire Association forthe Blind Concord, NH June 2006-Jan 2017
Fundralsing and marketing leader for a statewide organization serving the blind and visually
impaired. Develops and manages a comprehensive de\^lopment program raising over
$1.2 million dollars annually. Works closely with Board of Directors and Regional Advisory
Committees to organize fundralsing and awareness events across the state. Identifies
opportunlUes for foundation and corporate support. Cultivates and stewards major gift and
planned giving prospects. Supervises professional fundralsing and marketing staff.
Notable Accomplishments:
•  Created state-wide marketing and public education plan that provides broad outreach to

service clubs, retirement communities, eye care professionals, the media, and the community
at large.

•  Created a sustainable revenue source for Agency by developing project introducing
occupationa! therapy as a sustainable revenue source.

,• Secured foundation grant funding of over $500,000 annually including two awards in excess of
$100,000.

•  Identified key major/planned giving donor prospects and initiated a successful donor cuitivation
strategy resulting In the receipt of slgnificanl gifts and gift expectancies.

•  Recruited and motivated volunteers across the state to establish regional advisory committees
in Manchester, Portsmouth. Concord and Lakes Region. Commlttees raise money In their
respective regions through "Dinners In the Dark" ar»d other third party fundralsing events.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DEVELOPMENT AND MARKETING DIRECTOR 2001-2006
American Red Cross

Laconia and Concord, New Hampshire
Developed and managed a comprehensive fund development and marketing program for
two merging Red Cross chapters. Coordinated all fund development programs including
planned giving, direct mail, major gifts, special events, grant writing and marketing.
Developed and monitored agency budget. Supervised staff and coordinated volunteers for
disaster response as well as public relations and special event assignments.
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Notable Accomplishments:

•  Promoted to Executive Director from Furvj Development Director-
•  Decreased operating budget while expanding service delivery level.
•  Doubled munldpal revenue allocations by educating communities about Red Cross seivices.

Summary of Prior Non-Profit Management Experience

Case Management Supervisor. (1998-2000) Lakes Region Community Services
Councii, Laconia, NH - Provided training and supervision to case managers and family
home providers serving adults with developmental disabilities. Wori<ed closely with
public guardians to ensure services were carried out according to ISP. Negotiated
contracts with vendors.

Director of Social Services, (1996-1998) Dover Housing Authority, Dover. NH
Developed and implemented all social service programs for seniors and families living in
Dover's public housing community. Supervised program staff and volunteers.
Negotiated contracts with service agencies. Raised over 1 million dollars in federal
funding. Worked collaboratively with agencies throughout Strafford County.
Manager of Housing Services, (1993-1996) Strafford Guidance Center. Dover, NH
Established intensive supported housing programs for adults with severe mental illness.
Worked closely with doctors and treatment teams to ensure smooth transition from state
hospital to community based model. Supervised department with over 30 direct service
providers. Secured funding through federal grants and state Medicaid program. Served
as HUD'S administrator of federal homeless housing funds for Strafford County.
Director of Family Services, (1991-1993) Manchester Housing and Redevelopment
Authority. Manchester, NH - Developed and managed all family empowerment and
drug prevention programs in Manchester's 3 family public housing communities.
Created State's first small business training program for public housing residents.
Secured federal grant funding for all programs including a model after-school program.

Education

Master of Business Administration (MBA) -1996
Southern New Hampshire University, Graduate School of Business Manchester. NH

M.S. Community Economic Development -1993
Southern New Hampshire University, Graduate School of Business, Manchester. NH

B.A. Marketing • 1984
New Hampshire Cdilege, Manchester, NH

Volunteer Activities/ Memberships
•  Certified Fundralsing Executive -CFRE
•  Reviewer. National Accreditation Council for Agencies Serving People with Blindness

or Visual lmpalnment (NAC) - 2009 to present
American Red Cross - Trainer - Lakes Region Disaster Action Team, 2006 to 2009

•  Board of Directors - Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health 2005-2006
•  Past President- Gilford Rotary Club, Paul Harris Fellow
•  Past Officer, Horseshoe Pond Toastmasters inlernationai. Concord. NH
•  PGNNE -Planned Giving Council of Northern New England
•  Upper Valley Planned Giving Gounci2l

1
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Marie L. Tula. CPA, MSA

Educational Experience

CPA -continuing professional education - 40 hours annually
Bentley University - MS in Accountancy
University of Vermont - BA degree

Work Experience

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Laconia, NH 2013 - Current
Finance Director

•  Prepare and analyze monthly financial statements
•  Develop budgets and forecasts, and manage cash flow
•  Responsible for contract billing and reporting
•  Responsible for annual financial statement and compliance audits
•  Supervise accounting staff.

Melanson Heath & Company, PC,Nashua,NH 1994-2013
Manager
•  Planned, supervised, and prepared audited GAAP financial statements and

compliance reports for nonprofit and commercial clients.
•  Performed fmancial statement and data analytics, reconciled general ledger

accounts, prepared audit schedules and adjusting entries.
•  Documented accounting systems, evaluated client internal controls, and prepared

management letters of recommendations.
•  Proficient in Microsoft Excel, Word, PowerPoint, QuickBooks, and Fixed Asset

software.

•  Conducted presentations to Boards and audit committees of financial statements
and compliance audit results.

Price Watcrhouse Coopers, LLP, Manchester, NH 1989 - 1994
Senior Accountant

•  Planned, supervised, and perfonned audits, reviews, and compilations of financial
statements.

•  Clients included manufacturing, financial, and higher educational institutions.
•  Performed Federal compliance (A-133) audits of sponsored research programs.

The Donoghue Organization, Hoiliston, MA 1986- 1988
Controller/Financial Analyst
•  Prepared and analyzed montlily financial statements for newsletter publishing

company.

•  Supervised accounting staff including general ledger, accounts receivables,
payroll, and accounts payables functions.

(  I
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•  Prepared budgets and forecasts, and managed cash flow.
•  Responsible for human resource function.

Dennison Computer Supplies, VValtharn, MA 1984 - 1986
Payroll Administrator
•  Responsible for payroll function including filing monthly and quarterly ta.x

reports (Fonns 940,941)
Billing Coordinator

• Responsible for invoicing all shipments, rentals, and maintenance contracts. Filed
sales & use tax retunis.

Senior Accounts Payable
•  Processed invoices and prepared vendor checks.

Accounts Receivable

•  Applied cash receipts to AR ledger and researched discrepancies.

VoluDtccr Experience

NH Society of Certified Public Accountants May, 2010-Present
Committee Chair

Greater Nashua Mental Health Center - Treasurer March, 2011 - Present
Audit & Finance Committee Chair

Various local nonprofits - Treasurer, Trustee 2001 -2013

References • Available upon request.
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Kelleen Gaspa

QUALEFICATIOtN HIGHLIGHTS

>

■>

Experienced in vvprking vviih and advocating for al-risk populations
Strict adhereoce with organization confidentiality policies
Exceptional commuaicQiion, interviewing and assessment skills
Demonstrated excellence in coininunity outreach and education
Excellent organizational and time management skills
Experienced in working with the Strategic Prevention Framework
Accomplished public speaker

Partnershin for Public Health NH
A

Professional Experience

ssistant Director/Director of Substance Use Disorder Systems Integration ] 1/2016-Prcsent
■  Support stale & regional initiatives across the SLID continuum of care
"  Develop and maintain regional assets & gaps analysis
■  Promote evidence-based strategies for prevention, intervention, treatment & recovery
■  Facilitate regional leadership team meetings

Serve as a content expert on the Winnipesaukee Public Health Council
Build capacity & expand service delivery in the Winnipesaukee Region of New Haranshire

■  Increase awareness and access to SUD services
■  Plan & facilitate quarterly regional Educator's Prevention Summits
•  Maintain records and submit data for federal reporting
■  Supervise Regional Substance Misuse Prcvcolion Team

Regional Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator 08/2015-11/2016
Provide education, training & technical assistance to schools, organizations & local coalitions
Facilitate Connect Suicide Prevention Trainings throughout the region
Increase awareness of best practices in prevention, intervention, treatment & recovery
Organize DEA Rx Drug Take Back and other various community events throughout the reaion
Identify, build and maintain community partnerships in various sectors
Support regional work across the Continuum of Care
Advise Partners in Community Wcllness Team
Maintain records and submit data for federal reporting (PWITS)

AscentriaCnre Ailinnrp Manchester, NH 2013 2015
Outreach/Eipploymcnt Specialist, Health Profession Opportunity Project (HPOP)

■  Recruitment and enrollment into the HPOP program
■  Facilitate Information Sessions throughout New Hampshire
•  Determine participant eligibility
■  Assess participant need and provide links to relevant community resources
•  Ideritify, build and maintain community partnerships
■  Design and facilitate participant professional development training
■  Assist in employment placement of trained participants
•  Maintain records and submit data for federal reporting

Projecl EXTRA/r.M5^ Papn, > flf-nnia MH 2f)nr 9nn
Site Director Pleasant Street School, Project EXTRA Program

•  Manage daily operation of program
■  Oversee curriculum links to Common Cure Standards
•  Supervise 12 lend staff, junior staff, volunteers and subcontractors
•  Handle case sensitive infoitnation including disclosures of abuse and neglect

Develop and implement behavior modincation plans tailored to student needs
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John J. Beland

SUMMARY

•  Proven professional with experience in all ranks of municipal fire department
operations, administration, and community relations efforts.

•  Proven participant in improving the quality of life for others through civic activities
and service organizations.

•  Dedicated team player with high code of conduct and integrity.

AREAS OF EXPERIENCE

DEVELOPMENT

•  Develop and administration of 1.8-million-dollar municipal fire department budget.

•  Plan, develop, execute, and direct all phases of fire department administration
and operations including but not limited to, budget development and
administration, delivery of high quality emergency services in a safe, efficient and
effective manner, development and enforcement of Standard Operating
Guidelines, Rules & Regulations and administration of town policy, provide
training and educational opportunities for 15 career personnel and 30 call
company personnel.

•  Pursue local, state and federal grant opportunities to enhance response
capabilities through equipment purchases, training and exercise delivery.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

•  Build and maintain strong working relationships with internal/extemal customers,
political/civic leaders.

•  Leadership rote to raise approximately $30,000.00 to construct the Gilford Fire-
Rescue Training Facility.

•  Strong ability to build working relationships with various organizations,
customers, community individuals and professionals.
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WORK EXPERIENCE

Partnership for Public Health
Emergency Preparedness & Response Coordinator
January 2018-Present
67 Water St. Suite 105

Laconia NH 03246

Lakes Region Mutual Fire Aid
Deputy Coordinator
October 2011 -January 2018
62 Communication Drive

Laconia, New Hampshire 03246

Town of Gilford-Fire-Rescue Department
June 1983-September2011 (Retired)
39 Cherry Valley Road
Gilford, New Hampshire 03249
Live-In Student, Career Firefighter. Lieutenant. Captain, Deputy Chief, Fire Chief

NH Fire Academy
Senior Staff Instructor

1987-Present

Lakes Region Mutual Fire Aid
Training & Education Committee
Late 1980's-2018

NH Community College
Laconia NH

Adjunct Professor
1993-2012

EDUCATION

New Hampshire Technical College Notre Dame College
Laconia, NH Manchester, NH
A.S. Fire Protection 92 Credits toward B.S. Degree
1981 -1983 In Elementary Education

1999-2001

Certified Public Manger
NH Bureau of Training & Education
Concord NH

2010-2011
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Position Relevant Certifications:

IS-00800.b National Response Framework; ICS 402 Overview for Executives & Senior
Officials; G775 EOC Management & Operations. Command & General Staff Functions
for Local Incident Management Teams; IS-007G3 NIMS Resource Management; IS-
00700; National Incident Management System; Incident Command System-Instructor
National Fire Academy-Incident Command System; Emergency Management Institute-
IS-00120.An introduction to Exercises; Homeland Security Exercise & Evaluation
Program: Incident Management Symposium-Phoenix A2
Strategic National Stockpile - Center for Domestic Preparedness. Anniston AL
L0489 Managing Spontaneous Volunteers - Homeland Security & Emergency
Management

(

CERT, Train the Trainer; CERT Team Manager; Essentials of POD's, Train the Trainer;
FEMA, Management of Volunteers

'Certificates available upon request.

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Certified Public Managers Association
2011-Present

NH Fire Instructor and Officers Association

Past Director, Past President
I

Leadership Lakes Region
Board of Directors

2006-Present

Gilford Rotary Club
Board of Directors-Present

President 7/2018-6/2019

Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health
Board of Directors

2011-2014

Lakes Region St. Baldrick's-Event Organizer
Childhood Cancer Fundraiser

Gilford NH/Monrovia. CA

2004-Present

AWARDS

Gilford Fire Department Fire Officer of the Year
John T Ayers-FIre Instructor of the Year Award
NH Fire Academy Award
Proclamation-John Beland Day, City of Laconia, Lakes Region Respite Project
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NH Law Enforcement/Fire Service; Firefighter of the Year
Knight of the Bald Table-St. Baldrick's Foundation, Childhood Cancer Treatment and
Research

Gilford Rotary Club-Paul Harris Fellow+1

I  I
I
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Tamera S. Carmichael

SUMMARY

A Proven program administrator with 29 years of experience developing effective social support programs.
Secured over $1.4 million in program funding to rectify the social detriments of health for underserved
families and individuals. Served on over 15 boards and coalitions to establish inter-organizational
partnerships and foster community collaboration. Supervised 5 diverse programs with 25 team members to
create and implement holistic public policies.

EDUCATION

Unlversit)' of South Florida Tampa, PL
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology \ 988

Saint Petersburg College

Associate of Arts Degree
Clearwater, PL

1986

Gainesville, PL

2008 - Present

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

State of Florida Department of Health

Program Development Administrator

^ Responsible for development and management of 5 public health programs whose budgets exceed $2 million
Establish and monitor contracts for North Central Florida Health Department Consortium

Effective management and development of 25 diverse employees, interns, and volunteers

^ Over 8 years member of CHIP/CHA Steering Committee and Performance Management Council

Bay Area Bail Bonds & Investigations, Inc. Clearwater, PL
Owner/Operator 2001-2008

Qualified and wrote more than $2 million monthly in commercial bail indemnities

^ Managed 9 employees of diverse backgrounds as well as payroll, accounts receivable, and accounts payable.
Served as Secretary of the Pinellas County Bail Bond Association

^ Used investigation techniques and critical analytical skills to locate and retrieve delinquent sureties

Mease Manor Inc. Dunedin, PL
Social Sen'ices Director 1998 - 2001

^ Monitored compliance and documentation per State and Federal Regulations in a long-term care facility
Established interdepartmental plans of care for residents and supervised multiple employees of diverse
backgrounds and responsibilities

Inaugural winner of the Florida Healthcare Association's Social Service Worker of the Year award

Established family/caregiver support group

Collaborated with community services to provide quality care and ensure psychosocial well-being of residents
and responsible parties

Highland Pines Nursing Manor Clearwater, PL
Social Sen'ices Director 1995 - 1998

Monitored compliance and documentation per State and Federal Regulations in a long-tenn care facility

^ Established interdepartmental plans of care for residents and supervised multiple employees of diverse
backgrounds and responsibilities

Coordinated quality care and psychosocial well-being for residents and responsible parties
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Suncoast Hospital Largo, FL
Patient Sen'ice Coordinator I 1993 - 1995

^ Monitored compliance and documentation per State and Federal Regulations in a skilled nursing and acute
.  care facilities

Provided individualized discharge planning and interdepartmental coordination for patients

On-call rotation as Patient Service Coordinator for all hospital departments (surgery, Maternity, ICU, etc.)

Family Resources, Inc. St. Petersburg, FL
Youth Care Worker III \ 990 — 1993

Care and Supervision of children 9-18 years old in a crisis/runaway shelter, phone crisis counsel

^ Supervised staff and volunteers, recruited and trained volunteers, marketing and fund raising
^ Interfaced with law enforcement, child protective services, and victims' advocates

^ Supervised visits with parents and children

^ Completed necessary documentation for a non-profit organization per guidelines

LICENSURE AND CERTIFICATIONS

State of Florida Notary Public

Florida Certified Contract Manager

State Certified Contract Administrator

SKILLS

Soft: Program Development, Employee Recruitment and Empowenuent, Community Collaboration, Effective
Communication, Public Speaking, Strategic Planning, and Quality Improvement
Hard: Microsoft Office Suite, Proprietary Software, Database Management, Financial Management, Regulatory
Compliance, Contract Administration, and Grant Writing
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

K-ev Personnel

FY 2019-FY 2021

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Shelley Carila/
Tamera Camiichael

Executive Director $ 80,000 37% $ 62,368

Marie Tule Finance Director $ 74,641 16% $ 24,573
Kelley Gaspa/
ICiinbly Wade

Director of Behavior Health

initiatives, Substance Misuse
& Suicide Prevention Mgr

$ 50,000 97% S 99,869

John Beland Emergency Preparedness &
Response Manager

$63,000 100% $ 119,178
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services

This 5"^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Lamprey Health Care, Inc.,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 128 Route 27
Raymond, NH 03077.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E). as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DDA^YY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these sen/ices; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$856,467.

2. Modify Exhibit 8-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #5, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

11/13/2020
SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-07-A05 Page 1 of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain in full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/16/2020

Date

Signad by:

.V. owtw

Name'

Title: Director, Division of Pub lie Health Srvcs.

11/13/2020

Date

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
—OocuSignad by:

(Wufc

Nrme:^^^<^ white
Title: CEO

Lamprey Health Care. Inc.

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-07-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

11/17/2020

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSlgntd by;

— DSCA9202E32C4AE...

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-07-A05 Page 3 of 3
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M.-Gardner, Sccrctflry of Suwc of ilic Scale of New Hampshire, do hereby ecitify iliol LAMPREY HEALTH CARE,'

INC. is a Now Hampshire Nonprofii Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshircon August 16, 1971.1 further

certify (hat nil fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTicc have been received and is In good standing as far as

this ofTicc is concerned.

Business ID: 66382

' Certificate Number; 0004926074

IB

%

Aa.

%

JP

7-8

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

1 hcieio set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 28th day of May A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Thomas Christopher Drew . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc..
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 25, 2020", at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Gregory A. White ^ (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty
(30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the posltion(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: November 3, 2020

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Thomas Christopher Drew
Title: Secretary, Board of Directors

Rev. 03/24/20
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/\C:ORD'
LAMPHEA<01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ASTOBERT

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

7/1/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In llou of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER License # 1780862
HUB International New England
276 US Route 1
Cumberland Foreslde, ME 04110

(wc^No.Extj; (207) 829-3450 fwc.No):(207) 829-6350

INSURERIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A PhlladelDhia Indemnity Insurance Comoanv 18058

INSURED

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
207 South Main Street

Newmarket NH 03857

INSURER B Atlantic Charter Insurance Comoanv 44326

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOWHAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADOL
INSD

8USR
WYR POUCY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
rMM/nnATYYVt

POUCY EXP
rMM/nnnrvYYt LIMITS

A X COMMERCIAL GtJIERAL UABIUTY

>E 1 X 1 OCCUR PHPK2149654 7/1/2020 7/1/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
j  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED

MED EXP (Any one oersonl

,  100,000
1  siooo

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY
,  1,000,000

GENl AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAl AGGRFGATR
,  3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 |lOC
OTHER;

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
,  3,000,000

s

AUTOMOBILE LUBILiTY
COMBINED SINGLE UMIT

s

ANY AUTO

HEOULEO
rros

BODILY INJURY (Per oerson) $
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

a1?^ only

sc
AL BODILY INJURY (Per eccidenn s

WtOPERTY DAMAGE
(Per eccideniT s

s

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR •

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGRECiATE s

DEO 1 RETENTIONS s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY ^ ̂
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 1 j

LJ
lives, describe under
DFSCR1PTION OF OPERATIONS below

N/A

WCA00545408 7/1/2020 7/1/2021

Y ! PER OTH-
^ 1 RTATIJTF FR

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
,  500,000

E.L DISEASE ■ EA EMPLOYEE
j  500,000

E L. DIRFARE . POLICY LIMIT
,  500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS /STEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramark* Schadula, may b« attaehad If mort apaca ii raqulrad)
Evidence of General Liability and Workers Compensation coverage.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

ACORO 25(2016/03)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

Our Mission
The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on prevention and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of
ability to pay.

♦ We seek to be a leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we serve.

♦  Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such barriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

•  Lamprey Health Care's commitment to the community extends to providing and/or coordinating access
to a full range of comprehensive services.

•  Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the highest level of patient satisfaction through a personal
and caring approach and exceeding standards of excellence in quality and service.

Our Vision
We will be the outstanding primary care choice for our patients, our communities and our service area,
and the standard by which others are judged.
We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle improvement, quality of life.
We will be a center of excellence in service, quality and teaching.
We will be part of an integrated system of care to ensure access to medical care for all individuals and
families in our communities.

We will be an innovator to foster development of the best primary care practices, adoption of the tools of
technology and teaching.
We will establish partnerships, linkages, networks and referrals with other organizations to provide
access to a full range of services to meet our communities' needs.

Our Values
We exist to serve the needs of our patients.
-We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.
We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities' health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professional and personal growth, and healthy lifestyles
of our employees.
We provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patients and employees as well as for those
seeking training in primary care.
We succeed by utilizing a team approach that values a positive, constructive commitment to Lamprey
Health Care's mission.

Affirmed 12/18/2019
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

September 30, 2019 and 2018

With Independent Auditor's Report
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health'Care, Inc.. which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design.
Implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Maine • New Hampshire • Massachusetts ■ Connecticut ■ West Virginia • Arizona

berrydunn.com



DocuSign Envelope ID; 4D596196-8700-46DC-9FCCM1A52E4A38B1

Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Change in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of
Lamprey Health Care, Inc. adopted new accounting guidance, Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Updates No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities (Topic 958) and No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230). Our opinion is not modified with
respect to these matters.

Other Maffer

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30, 2019
and 2018, and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes of additional analysis rather than to present the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Portland, Maine
January 17, 2020
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

2019 2018

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

$ 1,422,407 $ 1,341,015
1,237,130 1,330,670
452,711

236,798
228,972

172,839
Inventory
Other current assets

81,484

78.405

72,219
139.568

Total current assets 3,508,935 3,285,283

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

19,101

2,943,714
13,512

7.608.578

22,590

3,205,350

7.584.923

Total assets $14,093,840 $14,098,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

$  641,818
961,024
85,418

106.190

$  438,830
919,690
117,696

102.014

Total current liabilities 1,794,450 1,578,230

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swap

2,031,076 2,134,337

13.404

Total liabilities 3.825.526 3.725.971

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

9,732,208
536.106

10,061,029
311.146

Total net assets 10.268.314 10.372.175

Total liabilities and net assets $14,093,840 $14,098,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-3-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue $ 9,143,768 $ 9,426,185
Provision for bad debts (398.5441 (354.4601

Net patient service revenue 8,745,224 9,071,725

Grants, contracts and contributions 6,104,270 5,538,925
Other operating revenue 1,637,578 769,240
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 75.197 118.447

Total operating revenue 16.562.269 15.498.337

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages 10,584,157 9,941,188
Employee benefits 1,993,787 1,688,571
Supplies 646,774 715,862
Purchased services , 1,731,988 1,569,327
Facilities 580,711 594.355
Other operating expenses 697,570 537,414
Insurance -145,114 143,338
Depreciation 461,062 459,716
Interest 107.855 96.431

Total operating expenses 16.949.018 15.746.202

Deficiency of revenue over expenses (386,749) (247,865)

Change in fair value of interest rate swap 26,916 ' 365
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition 31.012 16.651

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions $ (328.821) $ (230.849)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Heatthcare

Total

Healthcare

Administration

and Support
Sen/ices AHEC/PHN Transoortalion Services Services Total

Salaries and wages $ 8,599,722 $  418,785 $ 127.054 $ 9,145,561 S 1,438.596 $ 10,584.157

Employee benefits 1,531,182 76.015 23,346 1,630,543 363.244 1,993.787

Supplies 614,628 12,839 47 627,514 19,260 646.774

Purchased services 892,684 225.590 407 1,118.681 613,307 1,731,988

Facilities 4,020 477 23,155 27,652 553,059 580,711

Other 283,801 157,524 120 441.445 256,125 697,570

Insurance - - 8,922 8,922 136,192 145,114

Depreciation - - 27,509 27,509 433,553 461,062

Interest - - - - 107,855 107,855

Allocated program support 886,269 - - 886.269 (886,269) -

Allocated occupancy costs 714331 34.319 4.531 753.181 (753.1811 .

Total 5. 13.526.637 S  925.549 % 215.091 $ 14.667.277 $ 2.281.741 $ 16.949.018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-
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^  LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Healthcare

Services AHEC/PHN Transportation

Total

Healthcare

Services

Administration

and Support
Services Total

Salaries and wages $  8.000,572 S 411,320 $ 120,008 S 8,531.900 S 1,409,288 S 9,941,188

Employee benefits 1.315,582 70,805 20,049 1,406,436 282,135 1,688,571

Supplies 684,828 7,051 40 691,919 23,943 715,862

Purchased services 815,843 139,400 - 955,243 614,084 1,569,327

Facilities 4,402 480 20.945 25,827 568,528 594,355

Other 253,564 87,005 39 340,608 196,806 537,414

Insurance - - 8.696 8,696 134,642 143,338

Depreciation - - 28,093 28,093 431,623 459,716

Interest . ♦ . . 96,431 96,431
Allocated program support 825,266 - - 825,266 (825,266) -

Allocated occupancy costs 930.169 36.593 4.831 971.593 <971.5931 -

Total $  12.830.226 $ 752.654 $ 202.701 $ 13.785.581 $ 1.960.621 s 15.746.202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

• 6.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions

Deficiency of revenue over expenses $ (386,749) $ (247,865)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap 26,916 365
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition 31.012 16.651

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions (328.82H (230.849)

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions 205,027 71,205
Grants for capital acquisition 126,142 16,651
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (75,197) (118,447)
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition (31.012) (16.651)

Increase (decrease) in net assets with donor restrictions 224.960 (47.242)

Change in net assets (103,861) (278,091)

Net assets, beginning of year 10.372.175 10.650.266

Net assets, end of year $10.268.314 $10.372,175

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-7-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ (103,861) $ (278,091)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts 398,544 354,460
Depreciation 481,062 459,716
Equity in earnings of limited liability company 3,489 (2,292)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap (26,916) (365)
Grants for capital acquisition (126,142) (16,651)
(Increase) decrease in the following assets;

Patient accounts receivable (305,004) (614,015)
Grants receivable (223,739) 247,179
Other receivable (63,959) (87,482)
Inventory (9.265) (8,640)
Other current assets 61,163 21,378

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,215 42,545
Accrued payroll and related expenses 41,334 39,213
Deferred revenue (32.2781 28.656

Net cash provided by operating activities 99.643 185.611

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital acquisitions (306.9441 (173.7451

Cash flows from financing activities
Grants for capital acquisition 126,142 16,651
Principal payments on long-term debt (99.0851 (104.4891

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 27.057 (87.8381

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (180,244) (75,972)

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 4.546.365 4.622.337

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $ 4.366.121 $ 4.546.365

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,422,407 $ 1,341,015
Assets limited as to use 2.943.714 3.205.350

$ 4.366.121 $ 4.546.365

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for interest $ 107.855 $ 96.431

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable $ 177.773 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) whose primary purpose is to
provide high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern
New Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State
of New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the
property occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket. New Hampshire.
LHC is the sole member of FLHC.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary, FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958),
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The ASU marks the
completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for-profit financial reporting.
Under the ASU, net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three category
classification of net assets was replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions." The guidance on accounting for the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property
and equipment has also been simplified and clarified. New disclosures highlight restrictions on the
use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial
requirements. The ASU also imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses
which resulted in the expansion of the consolidated financial statements to include statements of
functional expenses. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly. The ASU has been applied retrospectively to 2018. The adoption had no effect on the
Organization's total net assets, results of operations, changes in net assets or cash flows for the
year ended September 30, 2019. The adoption did result in a reclassification of net assets
previously reported as net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.
This related to gifts received and used to acquire property and equipment and the restrictions on
these gifts were previously released over the useful life of the acquired assets. Previously reported
net assets with donor restrictions of $109,370 and $115,620 at September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, have been reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

In November 2016, FASB Issued ASU No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230), \A/hich requires
that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents.
Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should
be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2018. The Organization adopted ASU No. 2016-18 in 2019,
and restated its 2018 statement of cash flows to conform to the provisions thereof.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to report
information in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications;

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the

same year as received are reflected as contributions without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and
gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHC are public charities under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has no unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibility of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In addition,
patient balances in excess of 120 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
revenue and payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after all reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are

applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Sen/ices (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30, 2019 and September 30, 2018,
grants from DHHS (including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations)
represented approximately 76% and 76%, respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions
revenue.

Investment in Limited Liability Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners (PHOP). The purposes of PHCP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to influence the design and testing of emerging payment
methodologies: (ii) to achieve the three part aim of better care for individuals, better health for
populations and lower growth In expenditures in connection with both governmental and non
governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that Is
aligned with the FQHC model; and to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the
negotiation of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method and the investment
amounted to $19,101 and $22,590 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents set aside under loan agreements for
repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, assets designated by the
Board of Directors for specific projects or purposes and donor-restricted contributions as
discussed further in Note 7.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is
computed on the straight-line method.

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for sen/ices rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

340B Drug Pricing Program

LHC, as an FQHC, is eligible to participate in the 340B Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies
dispense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bill insurances on behalf of LHC. Reimbursement
received by the pharmacies is remitted to LHC net of dispensing and administrative fees. Revenue
generated from the program is included in patient service revenue net of third-party allowances.
The cost of drug replenishments and contracted expenses incurred related to the program are
included in other operating expenses!

Functional Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or more
programs or supporting functions of the Organization. Expenses which are allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities and related costs which are allocated based upon square footage
occupied by the program, and direct program support (billing and medical records) which is 100%
attributable to healthcare services.

Deficiency of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses.
Changes in net assets without donor restriction which are excluded from this measure include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of
an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 17, 2020, the date that the financial statements
were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Availabilitv and Llauiditv of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit.

The Organization had working capital of $1,714,485 and $1,707,053 at September 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand
(based on normal expenditures) of 31 and 32 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows;

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,422,407 $ 1,341,015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,237,130 1,330,670
Grants receivable 452,711 228,972
Other receivables 236.798 172.839

Financial assets available $ 3,349,046 $ 3,073,496

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the qualitative
information above. The Organization has other assets limited to use for donor-restricted purposes,
which are more fully described in Note 7, are not available for general expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected in the amounts above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of 30 days.

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit, as discussed in more detail in Note 5.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2019 2018

Patient accounts receivable $ 1,397,194 $ 1,386,791
Contract 3408 pharmacy program receivables 75.586 197.976

Total patient accounts receivable 1,472,780 1,584,767
Allowance for doubtful accounts (235.6501 (254.097)

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 1,237,1^ $ 1,330,670

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year $ 254,097 $ 233,455
Provision for bad debts 398,544 354,460
Write-offs (416.991) (333.818)

Balance, end of year $ 235,650 $ 254,097
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows;

2019 2018

Medicare 17 % 18 %

Medicaid 19 % 14 %

Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield * 13%

* less than 10%

4. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2019 2018

Land and improvements $ 1,154,753 $ 1,154.753
Building and improvements 11,048,899 10,943,714
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1.799.636 1.723.627

Total cost 14,003,288 13,822,094

Less accumulated depreciation 6.667.847 6.237.171

7,335,441 7.584,923

Construction in progress 273.137

Property and equipment, net $ 7,608,5^ $ 7,584,9^

During 2019, the Organization began to make renovations to the clinical building In Newmarket,
New Hampshire. The project is estimated to cost approximately $780,000 and is expected to be
completed and placed in service in December 2019. The project has been funded primarily
through donor restricted contributions and debt.

The Organization has made renovations to certain buildings with federal grant funding. In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NF!) was filed in the
appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI is designed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial interest in
the real property components acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not
be used for any purpose inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and
applicable regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance
Management (OFAM), Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the
property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the
Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 31 2021, with an interest rate of 5.50%. The line of credit is collateralized by all business
assets. There was no outstanding balance as of September 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. LonO'Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2019 2018

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. $ 851,934 $ 875,506

5.375% promissory note payable to United States Department of
Agriculture. Rural Development {Rural Development), paid in
monthly installments of $4,949. which includes interest,
through June 2026. The note is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization. The note was paid off

'  through refinancing that is effective in October 2019; see
details below. 335,509 371,976.

4.75% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $1,892, which includes interest,
through November 2033. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 231,091 242,438

4.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $5,000, which includes interest,
through December 2036. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 718.732 746.431

Total long-term debt 2,137,266 2,236,351
Less current maturities 106.190 102.014

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2,031,07J $ 2,134,33J7

The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with monthly principal payments of $1,345 plus interest at
85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through January 2022 when the balloon payment
is due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 4.13%. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was an
asset of $13,512 and a liability of $13,404 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Effective October 2, 2019, the Organization obtained a $2,100,000 note payable with a local bank,
which repaid the notes payable due to Rural Development in the amount of $1,285,332, and the
additional financing was used to renovate the Organization's Newmarket clinical building as
discussed in Note 4. The note has a ten-year balloon and is to be paid at the amortization rate of
30 years, with monthly principal payments plus interest at the greater of the Wall Street Journal
Prime rate or the weighted average of the rate of overnight Federal funds with members of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0.5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment is
due. The note is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 3.173%.

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under various
•  loan agreements Included above. The Organization failed to meet one of those loan covenants at

September 30, 2019 and has received a waiver of default from the bank.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter (adjusted for the refinancing as
discussed above) are as follows;

/

2020 : $ 106,190
2021 50,783

2022 832,321
2023 28,439
2024 29,264

Thereafter 1.090.269

Total $ 2.137.266

7. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes:

2019 2018

Undesignated $ 7,019,181 $ 7.377,112
Repairs and maintenance on the real property collateraiizing
Rural Development loans 142,092 142,092

Board-designated for
Transportation 16,982 16,982
Working capital 1,391,947 1,391,947
Building improvements 1.162.006 1.132.896

Total $ 9.732.208 $10.061.029
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes:

2019

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements
Community programs
Substance abuse prevention

$ 326,567

181,151
28.388

2018

231,436
54,643
25.067

Total $ 536.106 S 311.146

8. Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Gross charges
340B contract pharmacy revenue

Total gross revenue

Contractual adjustments
Sliding fee discounts
Other discounts

Total patient service revenue

$13,786,408 $13,683,357
1.139.085 1.327.156

14,925,493 15,010,513

(4,793,060) (4,534,268)
(964,485) (1,030,666)
(24.1801 f19.394)

$ 9.143.768 £ 9.426.185

The mix of gross patient service revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows for
the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Medicare 17% 17%

Medicaid 31% 27%

Blue Cross Blue Shield 17% 18%

Other payers 21% 24%

Self pay and sliding fee scale patients 14% 14%

100% 100%

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included in patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on a prospective basis, with
retroactive settlements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
geographically-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overall, reimbursement was and
continues to be subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost
reports have been audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30, 2018.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization is reimbursed by Medicaid for the care of qualified patients on a prospective
basis. Overall, reimbursement is subject to a maximum allowat^le rate per visit. The Organization
also has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. Under these arrangements, the
Organization is reimbursed based on contractually obligated payment rates which may be less
than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Chahtv Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost amounted to approximately $1,053,562 and $1,041,596 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $300,572 and $157,605 for the years ended September 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. The Organization's Board of Directors voted to suspend the employer
contributions to the plan in April 2018 and resume contributions in January 2019 subsequent to the
adoption of revisions to the employer contribution component of the plan documents.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

10. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30,
2019, there were no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts in excess of both FTCA and medical malpractice insurance coverage,
nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.

11. Litigation

From time-to-time certain complaints are filed against the Organization in the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's'actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2019

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables

Inventory
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

$  453,924 $ 968,483
1,237,130

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

452,711

236,798
81,484
78.405

59,797

2,540,452 1,028,280

19,101

2,861,010
13,512

5.718.217

82,704

1.890.361

$11.152.292 $ 3.001.345

(59,797)

$ 1.422,407
1,237,130
452,711
236,798
81,484

78.405

(59,797) 3,508,935

19,101
2,943,714

13,512

:  7.608.578

$  (59.797) $14.093.840

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 701,615 $
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

961,024

85,418
40.773

$  (59,797) $ 641,818
961,024
85,418

Total current liabilities 1,813,474 40,773 (59,797) 1,794,450

Long-term debt, less current maturities 1.122.027 909.049 . 2.031.076

Total liabilities 2.935.501 949.822 (59.7971 3.825.526

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

7,680,685
536.106

2,051,523 - 9,732,208
536.106

Total net assets 8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

Total liabilities and net assets $11,152,292 $ 3.001.345 $ (59.7971 $14,093,840
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2018

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare, Healthcare, 2018

Inc. inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 656,379 $ 684,636 $ 1,341,015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,330,670 - 1,330,670
Grants receivable 228,972 - 228,972
Other receivables 172,839 - 172,839
Inventory 72,219 - 72,219
Other current assets 139.568 - 139.568

Total current assets 2,600,647 684,636 3,285,283

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

22,590
2,920,876
5.585.290

284,474

1.999.633

22,590

3,205,350
7.584.923

Total assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $14,098,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

$  438,830
919,690

117,696
63.027

$

38.987

$  438,830
919,690
117,696
102.014

Total current liabilities 1,539,243 38,987 1,578,230

Long-term debt, less current maturities
fair value of interest rate swap

1,184,455
13.404

949,882 ̂ 2,134,337
13.404

Total liabilities 2.737.102 988.869 3.725.971

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

8,081,155

311.146

1,979,874 10,061,029
311.146

Total net assets 8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

Total liabilities and net assets $11,129,403 $ 2.968.743 $14,098,146

-22-
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages.
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare Healthcare, 2019

Inc. Inc. Eliminations Consolidated

$ 9,143.768 $
(398.5441

8,745,224

6,104,270

1,637,475

75.197

16.562.166

10,584,157
1,993;787
646,774

1,731,860
808,327

694,558

145,114

351,790
64.197

17.020.564

(458,398)

26,916

31.012

227,916

103

128

300

3,012

109,272

43.658

71,649

(227,916)

-  $ 9,143,768
^  (398.5441

8,745,224

6,104,270
1,637,578

75.197

228.019 (227.9161 16.562.269

(227,916)

10,584,157
1,993,787
646,774

1,731,988
580,711
697,570
145,114

461,062

107.855

156.370 (227.9161 16.949.018

$  (400.4701 S 71.649 $.

(386.749)

26,916

31.012

$  (328.8211

-23-



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4D596196-8700-46DC-9FCD-4lA52e4A38B1

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc. Eliminations

2018

Consolidated

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts
$ 9,426,185

f354.460)

$ $  ■ - $ 9,426,185
(354.4601

Net patient service revenue 9,071,725 - - 9,071,725

Rental Income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for

operations

5,538,925
769,148

118.447

227,916

92

(227,916)
5,538,925
769,240

118.447

Total operating revenue 15.498.245 228.008 (227.9161 15.498.337

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

9,941,188
1,688,571
715,784

1,569,171
816,102
535,414

143,338
353,293
60.447

78

156

6,169

2,000

106,423
35.984

(227,916)

9,941,188
1,688,571

715,862
1,569,327
594,355
537,414
143,338
459.716
96.431

Total operating expenses 15.823.308 150.810 (227.9161 15.746.202

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (325,063) 77.198 - (247,865)

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

365

16.651

- - 365

16.651

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions $  f308.0471 $  77.198 $ $  (230:8491
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30. 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions

'  (Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets without donor
restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Lamprey
Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care, Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2019

Consolidated

$  (458,398)
26,916

$  71,649 $  (386,749)
26,916

31.012 31.012

f400.470^ 71.649 ^328.821)

205,027

.  126,142

(75,197)

- 205,027

126,142
(75.197)

f31.012^ f31.0121

224.960 224.960

(175,510) 71,649 (103,861)

8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

$ 8.216.791 $ 2.051.523 $10,268,314

-25-



OocuSign Envelope 10: 4D596196-8700-46DC-9FCD-41A52E4A38B1

LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc.

2018

Consolidated

Net assets without donor restrictions

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

$  (325,063)
365

16.651

$  77,198 $  (247,865)
365

16.651

(Decrease) increase in net assets without
donor restrictions (308.047) 77.198 (230.849)

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

71,205
16,651

(118,447)

(16.651)

- 71,205

16,651
(118,447)

(16.651)

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions (47.242) (47.242)

Change in net assets (355,289) 77,198 (278,091)

Net assets, beginning of year 8.747.590 1.902.676 10.650.266

Net assets, end of year $ 8.392.301 $ 1.979.874 $10,372,175
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Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

2020 Board of Directors

Frank Goodspeed (President/Chair)

Term Ends 2020

Raymond Goodman, III (Vice
President)

Term ends 2021

Arvind Ranade, (Treasurer)

Term Ends 2021

Thomas "Chris" Drew (Secretary)

Term Ends 2022

Audrey Ashton-Savage (Immediate Past
Chair/President)

Term Ends 2021

Michelle Boom

James Brewer

Term Ends 2022

Michael Chouinard

Term Ends 2022

Elizabeth Crei eau

Term ends 2021

Robert Gilbert

Term Ends 2020

Carol LaCross

Term Ends 2021

Andrea Laske^

Term Ends 2022

Term Ends 2022

1  I P a g e Update February 27, 2020
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MawaReyis

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Innovative senior level director with over 15 years of versatile non-profit management and
social services experience. Demonstrated track record of managing financially
sustainable federal, state and private foundation programs with measurable outcomes
and community impact. Resourceful experience overseeing youth and adult community
programs in a variety of settings including health, social services, public schools, libraries
and other institutions. Over twenty years' experience of substance abuse and mental
health counseling, case management, and community education in both
inpatient/outpatient psychiatric and substance abuse treatment with diverse populations.

Skills and knowledge include:

•  Health/cultural competency training
•  Strategic planning
•  Public Speaker/consultant
•  Community Outreach
•  Substance Abuse and Mental Health

•  Community mobilization

• Government, state and private grant management
• Outcome measurement

YWCATulsa Tulsa, Oklahoma

Director of Immigrant and Refugee Center ^ 2000-April 2015
Responsible for the direct oversight of a team of 25+ diverse professionals from over 10
countries and all operations. Diversified agency funding portfolio thru fee for service,
augmented new foundation dollars thru solid community/donor relationships, and
generated state/local government funding from $450,000 to 1 million plus. Responsible for
direct oversight of core program services: Immigration legal services, English Language
classes to adult immigrants, refugee social services and numerous community
projects/collaborations that provided health education and outreach to underserved
communities. Forged solid partnerships and collaborations to implement community
projects that address community health issues such as substance misuse/abuse, diabetes
prevention, American Heart Association. Parenting skills, HIV/Aids, Alzheimer's
awareness and others.

Highlights:
•  Instituted first medical Spanish elective course at Oklahoma State University

Osteopathic College of Medicine for first and second year medical students.
•  Reputation as skilled collaborator with strong partnerships-key member of

community wide coalition that helped facilitate a one million dollar Robert Wood
Johnson Foundation grant for Latino diabetes prevention health program.

•  Spearheaded diabetes prevention academy of health for first generation Spanish
speakers.

•  Selected to participate and implement state wide Meth-360 program thru Drug
Free America Campaign.

Maria Reyes
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mtrhollvlane55@Qmail.com

Tulsa Community College Tulsa, Oklahoma
Adjunct Professor, Part-Time 2003-2006
•  Taught Chemical Dependency and Treatment Course to community college students.
•  Community presenter on culture and mental health/substance abuse education to

Tulsa's immigrant populations.
Parkside Hospital, Tulsa, Oklahoma
Oklahoma Certified Drug and Alcohol Counselor #226 1990-2000
•  First mental health professional in Tulsa to create and implement community

depression screenings to limited English proficiency populations.
•  Launched the first Spanish-speaking case management caseload in the hospital's

history.

•  Provided group and individual counseling, case management and education to adults
in inpatlent and outpatient treatment/aftercare.

•  Vital member of multidisciplinary team that assisted with court order evaluations and
treatment placement.

CREDENTIALS

EDUCATION Plymouth State University, Plymouth New Hampshire-B.A. Spanish,
Latin American Studies

University of Valencia Spain-Junior Year Abroad program

CERTIFICATION Certified Oklahoma Drug and Alcohol Counselor since
(current) #226-Hospital based two year certification program
(Maintain 20 CEU's yearly in addiction/mental health)
Oklahoma Non-Profit Management Training

1990,

SKILLS Proficient in Microsoft products, bilingual in Spanish and English
Public Speaking, Teaching

ACHIEVMENTS YWCA Tulsa Community Outstanding Service Award-2015
Tulsa Partners-Language Cultural Bank Volunteer of the Year 2011
Tulsa Mental Health Association Education Award 2005

Parkside Hospital Employee of the Year 1985
Plymouth State University, New Hampshire- Foreign Language
Award

COMMUNITY Vice President of Coalition of Hispanic Organizations
Board member of Tulsa Mental Health Association

Board member and Co-President of Tulsa Language Cultural Bank
Appointed Commissioner for the Tulsa Mayor's Commission on the
Status of Women

References available upon request
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MARY R. COOK, M.Ed, CHES

WORK EXPERIENCE:

July 2015 to Present Public Health Emergency Preparedness Manager
Seacoast Public Health Network/ a program of Lamprey
Health Care Inc.

A. Responsible for the management and implementation of grant-funded work plans/scopes of services
associated with the Public Health Network. Pandemic Planning, and related emergency response as well as
public health grants, on schedule and within budget; serves as the conduit between funders and planning
partners on plan requirements and ensures compliance with stale and federal regulations as appropriate.

B. Schedules, convenes and facilitates regular meetings of the Seacoast Emergency Preparedness Team.
Prepares meeting minutes and provides follow-up. Responsible for the coordination of Point of Dispensing
(PODs) in the seacoast region during a disease outbreak as a means to get medication to residents in the 23
town region.

C. Provides requisite planning activity reports, budget submissions, and/or other required documentation for
federal and state emergency response funding sources. Attends in-state meetings of grantors as appropriate.

D. Engages community partners in public health improvement process; develops and implements
communications plan for public health and emergency response preparation initiatives.

E. Manages and Updates the Regional Public Health Emergency Annex to meet Centers for Disease Control
planning guidelines and local standard operating guidelines.

F. Prepares and manages an annual-Medical Countermeasure Operational Readiness Review (MCM ORR) as
required by the CDC Division of Strategic National Stockpile (DSNS). The MCM ORR outlines planning
elements specific to managing, distributing and dispensing Strategic National Stockpile (SNS) materiel
received from the CDC during a public health emergency. Revise and update the RPHEA, related appendices
and attachments based on the findings from the MCM ORR.

G. Supervises the Medical Reserve Corps Coordinator and the Medical Reserve Corps program of volunteers.
Oversees other subcontractors as work dictates.

H. Oversees the Climate Change funding and coordinates a community workgroup that establishes lick trainings
for camp counselors at area camps. Oversees subcontracts for this initiative.

May 1, 2011 to June 2015 Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinator
Exeter Fire Department and the Seacoast Public Health
Network

•  Responsible for providing Regional Public Health
Preparedness, Response, and Recovery for the Seacoast Public
Health region

Medical Reserve Corps Director

•  Seacoast Public Health Advisory Council co-facilitator

December 2008 to April 2011 York Hospital and the Healthy Maine Partnerships
District Tobacco Coordinator

Provided support, guidance and trainings to the York District Healthy
Maine Partnerships assuring that a comprehensive and evidence based approach to
tobacco prevention and control is implemented throughout York County.
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Februai*)' 2005 to
December 2008

Ciiy of Portsmouth, NH
Public Health Coordinator

Provided coordination of the Greater Portsmouth Public Health Network that

includes the towns of New Castle, Rye, Newington, Greenland and the City of
Portsmouth in assessment, policy development, and assurance of the Ten Essential
Services of Public Health. Responsible for development of All Health Hazard
Community Response Plan, Pandemic Plan, Isolation and Quarantine, Point of
Distribution, Risk Communication, Medical Surge and Volunteer plans for the
Greater Portsmouth Emergency Planning Response Team. Designed, conducted,
and evaluated a series of workshops, table tops and full scale e.xercises to test the
region's communications, command and control, emergency operation center and
response to all health hazards.

June 2003-February 2005

November 2003-June 2003

2000-November 2003

1991-1999

EDUCATION:

American Red Cross Great Bay Chapter
Director of Health and Safct>' Services

Provided coordinated planning, implementation, and evaluation of Health and
Safety Services within the chapter's jurisdiction. Responsibilities included needs
assessment, marketing, program and human resources development, managed a
$200,000 budget.

American Red Cross Great Bay Chapter
Tobacco Prevention Director for The

Rochester Tobacco Free Coalition:

Developed and coordinated a coalition whose mission was to
promote and advocate for a tobacco free lifestyle by providing
education, awareness and support to youth and families in
Rochester.

Supervised two youth coordinators who coordinated youth
mentoring programs at the Rochester Middle School.
Established goals and objectives with coalition members.

Dover Police Department, Dover, N.H.
Substance Abuse Prevention Coordinator:

Youth Advisor for a 250-member coalition

Instructor for tobacco education classes

Coordinator of educational activities/programs
related to substance abuse issues

Representative for state and local tobacco advisory committees

Franklin Regional Hospital, Franklin, N.H.
Health Educator

Safety and Wellness Instructor for adults and teens
Smoking Cessation Specialist
Women's Health Educator

Coordinated youth tobacco-free coalition
Coordinated annual Health and Safety Fairs

Notre Dame College, Manchester, N.H.
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Business Education, 1984

Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H.
Master's Degree in Education/ Health Promotion and Wellness Management, 2002



LINDSEY MESSINA

Passionate young adult wltti over two years of experience on the ground in prevention and

advocacy efforts. Can manage multiple tasks at hand while maintaining and working toward the

mission and vision of an organization. Looking to be more hands on and involved in community
prevention efforts in the seacoast and surrounding counties.

Experience

Substance Misuse Prevention Coordinator; Seacoast Public Health Network — 2019 Present

•  Works in every region of the state to promote effective population level substance misuse

prevention policies, programs, and practices.

Coordinator, Programs and Education; Addiction Policy Forum — 2018-Present

•  Jan 2018 - May 2018 National Coordinatar for the northeast. Scheduled introductory phone

colls, follow up emails and provided resources to families in crisis.

•  Assisted CEO in creating eBooks and online toolkits for community educators, first

responders and professionals in the field of addiction.

o  i.e. Addiction and the Brain, Rx Disposal Toolkit

•  Assisted and traveled around the country with the Executive Vice President of Community

Relations in partnership with NDAA to bring trainings to District Attorneys on addiction and

criminal justice reform.

•  Assisted the Chief of Staff in administrative efforts and communication with national

partners i.e. NDAA, FAVOR, CADCA etc.

o  Kept organized online files and created work-plans in Excel, Word and PowerPoint.

•  Create, schedule and coordinate social media content for current and future online

advocacy.

Volunteer Director; AustinlTHouse — 2017-Present

•  Built a non-profit from the ground up including infrastructure, mission/vision and funding.

•  Network with partners in the Seacoast and Rockingham County to collaborate on

prevention, treatment, recovery and advocacy efforts.

• Wrote grants and other proposals to organizations to sustain current and future programs.

•  Created and implemented extended learning opportunities and programs for youth two

nights a week.

•  Schedule and host educational community workshops for youth and parents, i.e.

understanding teen depression, suicide prevention, drug and alcohol prevention.

•  Create and schedule social media content for Focebook, Instogrom and current website.

• Manage volunteers including scheduling, training and staff appreciation.

Certifications

• Signs of Suicide (SOS) Train the Trainer Certification (12 hour)
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National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) Train the Trainer for Young Adults (12 hours)

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention Train the Trainer (2 hour)

Youth Mental Health First Aid Certification (8 hours)

Emotional CPR (eCPR) training by Dr. Fisher from Notional Empowerment Center (14 hours)

Teen Empowerment Youth Development Training Certification Program (18 hours)

New Hampshire Children's Behavioral Health Collaborative Advocacy Training

National Wellness Institute Resilience and Thriving Train the Trainer Certification (6 hours)

Notional Wellness Institute Empowered Health Consciousness Train the Trainer Certification (6

hours)

Education

Great Bay Community College-2013 to 2015
•  Liberal Arts Business

Southern New Hampshire University - 2015 to 2017
•  AS Marketing with High Honors (CPA: 3.818)

o  Introduction to Psychology

o  English Composition

o  Introduction to Humanities

o Consumer Behavior

o  Financial Accounting

o  Services Marketing |
Skills

Self-motivated leader

High communication skills with the ability to speak in front of large groups of people

Ability to facilitate and/or work on a team

Generate flyers and marketing materials for events

Proficient in Microsoft Office including Word, Excel and PowerPoint

SEC Marketing

Awards and Acknowledgements

10 To Watch Awards 2019

10 lo Watch each year honors young professionals who make positive contributions to social and
economic development in the Seacoast.
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Paula K. Smith, MBA, EdD

EDUCATION Rivier University, Nashua NH
Doctoral Program in Education, Leadership and Learning. May 2018

American Evaluation Association/Centers for Disease Control, Summer Institute, June 2012

The Dartmouth Institute of Health Policy and Clinical Practice. Coach the Coach: The Art of Coaching and
Improving Quality, Microsystems Process Improvement Training, 2009

American Society of Training & Development, Professional Trainer Certificate Program, Concord, NH, 2002.

Cultural Competency: Training of Trainers Program, CCHCP Training Institute, Seattle, WA,2000

University of Massachusetts. Boston. Harbor Campus, Boston, MA 02125
Masters in Business Administration, 1991

Boston University School of Public Health, Boston, MA
Negotiation and Conflict Resolution for Health Care Management
(Training Program), 1991

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
Bachelor of Science, Health Administration and Planning, 1985

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Februar)' 1998 Direcfor, Soufhern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center (AHEC)
Present Lamprey Health Care, Raymond, NH

Coordinates, plans and supervises the establishment and operation of a new AHEC center and programs designed to increase
access to quality health care in southern NH.

Partners with community-based providers and academic institutions to improve the supply and distribution of primary health care
professionals and facilitates student placements in the community with an emphasis on medically underserved areas.

Provides training opportunities for residents, nurse practitioners, social worker, physician assistant, nursing and medical students,
as well as practicing providers.

Develops and coordinates health care awareness programs for high school students with a focus on minority and disadvahtaged
populations.

Coaches health center microteams in quality improvement initiatives.
Oversees implementation of "Better Choices, Better Health" Chronic Disease Self-Management Program, including marketing,
reporting, recruitment and management of leaders, and coordination of NH CDSMP Network, a learning community of leaders.

October 1995 to Regional Services Coordinator
February 1998 New England Community Health Center Association, Woburn, MA

•  Provided technical assistance, policy analysis, and other membership services to state primary care associations in New England
and the community health centers they serve;

•  Coordinated educational sessions for primary care clinicians and administrators on a variety of health care topics; assisted in
developing program for two community health conferences a year, as well as one-day programs;

•  Acted as liaison for members of MIS/Fiscal Directors and other regional committees;
•  Wrote grants, including concept development, implementation plans and budget, for government and foundation proposals;
•  Designed survey instruments, analyzed data, and wrote reports for region-wide surveys of community health centers, including

compensation survey, needs assessment for locum tenens, survey on management information systems, and survey on
productivity and staffing ratios;

•  Acted as Project Director of Phase II! ofthe Mammography Access Project;

•  Wrote and distributed quarterly newsletter to health centers and public health organizations throughout New England.
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February 1992 to Program Director
October 1995 Department of Medical Security, Boston, MA
Paula K. Smith

Page 2

•  Managed the Labor Shortage Initiative, a S23 million state-wide program providing education and training opportunities in health
care occupations; oversaw the allocation of funds to participating hospitals, colleges and universities, and community
organizations; supervised the development of contracts; monitored program achievements.

•  Developed, implemented, and managed the Children's MedicalScciiriiy Plan, a health insurance program for uninsured children
under the age of 13; negotiated and monitored contracts totaling nearly $12 million with participating insurers; coordinated public
relations and outreach activities related to the program; acted as a liaison with various advocacy groups.

•  Managed CenterCare, a $4 million managed care program providing services through contracts with 30 community health centers
across the state; allocated resources to participating centers; developed and conducted training sessions on CenterCare program
operations for health center staff; analyzed demographic and utilization date of participants.

May 1990 to Contract Manager
Februar}' 1992 Department of Medical Security, Boston, MA

•  Coordinated the procurement process for both CenterCare and the Labor Shortage Initiative, which included writing Requests for
Proposals (RFPsK reviewing and analyzing proposals, monitoring the contracting and administration of funded proposals, and
acting as a liaison between interested parties;

•  Monitored CenterCare by coordinating payments to contractors, conducting site visits at participating community health centers,
and reporting on program status; managed administrative procedures and acted as a liaison between agencies for all contracts in
accordance with regulations.

October 1988 to Contract Specialist
May 1990 Office of the State Comptroller, Boston, MA

•  Assisted and instructed departments in the process of contract approval, as well as utilization of the state-wide automated
accounting systems (MMARS);

•  Developed policies in support of state regulations pertaining to contract approval.
•  Supervised contract officers in the review and approval of statewide consultant contracts; created reports to monitor departmental

activities; organized special projects.

January 1988 to Contract Officer
October 1988 Office of the State Comptroller, Boston, MA

•  Reviewed and approved transactions on MMARS submitted by departments throughout the Commonwealth;

•  Managed Tax Exempt Lease Purchase program of all departments in the Commonwealth;
•  Utilized word processing and spreadsheet programs.

September 1985 to Administrative Assistant
January 1988 Joseph M. Smith Community Health Center, Alston, MA

•  Provided assistance to the Executive Director in overall administration of health center,

•  Assisted Finance Director in management of accounts, and prepared monthly invoices for all grant reimbursement, utilizing word
processing and spreadsheet programs.

•  Supervised the payroll system and managed personnel files for 60 employees;
•  Acted as liaison between outside vendors and health center;

•  Interviewed candidates for support staff positions.

AFFILIATIONS

Endowment for Health Board of Advisors, 2013-Present

Recipient of 2007 NH Office of Minority Health Women's Health Recognition Award
NH Leadership Board: American Lung Association, 2007-present
Recipient of 2006 National AHEC Center for Excellence Award in Community Programming
Leadership New Hampshire 2003 Associate
Member of National AHEC Organization
Organizational Recipient of 2002 Champions in Diversity Award for Education

References Available Upon Request
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Julia B. Meuse

Education

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH May 2019
Bachelor of Science: Health Management and Policy CPA: 3.53
Dean's List: Spring 2017, Fall 2017, Spring 2018, Fall 2018, Spring 2019

Experience

Lamprey Health Care, Raymond, NH
Program Coordinator July 2019- Present
Program Assistant September 2018-July 2019
Intern May 2018-August 2018
•  Assist in the process of developing and implementing a tickbome illness prevention project with the Seacoasi Public

Health Network

•  Collaborated in planning programs for health professionals with the Southern New Hampshire Area Health Education
Center

•  Coordinate Lamprey Healthcare's Nurse Practitioner Fellowship Program

Family Centered Counseling of New England, Nashua, NH May 2017- August 2018
Remote Office Assistant
•  Demonstrated time management skills and self-motivation from working remotely
•  Mastered insurance claim process

•  Responsibly managed patient payments

Pinnacle Rehabilitation Network, Multiple Locations
Office Coordinator '

> Exeter Sport and Spine Therapy, Exeter, NH May 2016- August 2016
> Hampton Physical Therapy of Seabrook, Seabrook, NH June 2012- August 2015

•  Provided courteous and knowledgeable front-end assistance
•  Was responsible for managing copays, scheduling appointments, completing insurance verifications, and data entry

Certifications

Community Health Worker Course June 2018- July 2018
Received certificate for completing Southern NH AHEC's 56 hour Community Health Worker training. Trained in healthcare
service coordination, cultural effectiveness, community assessment skills, etc.

Child and Infant CPR Certified July 2018
Completed objectives and skills in accordance with the American Heart Association CPR AED program for child and infant
certification

Campus Involvement

Member of Student Organization for Health Leadership September 2015-Present
Attend meetings, healthcare panels, and network with Health Management and Policy alumni

Volunteer Experience

The Fabulous Find Resale Boutique June 2017- Present
Partnered with non-profit boutique to sell my original artwork and donate profits to local community charities. Currently
maintain inventory and fill special orders
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

% Paid Amount Paid

from this from this

Name Job Title Salary Contract Contract

Paula K. Smith AHEC Director $110,055 11% $12,106

Maria Reyes CDC Facilitator $61,410 85.5% $54121.53

Mary Cook EP Manager $60,772 100% $60,772

Lindsey Messina Substance Misuse Preyention

Coordinator

$46,800 85% $39,780

Julia Meuse Program Coordinator $37454.40 26.4% $9900
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services Contract

This Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Services contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Mid-State Health Center, (hereinafter
referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 101 Boulder Point Drive, Suite 1
Plymouth, NH 03264.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DDA^YY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$775,378.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit B-11, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #5, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

— D8

Mid-State Health Center Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

11/9/2020

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-09-A05 Page 1. of 3 Date
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/9/2020

Date

^DopiStgnad by:

.D93aDDFBaCA54A0..

Name: Lisa Morris

Title: Director

Mid-State Health Center

11/9/2020

Date

r—OocuS)gn«d by:
■ t>CAfteBEB9aSA490

Name: Robert MacLeod
Title: ceo

Mid-State Health Center

83-2019.DPHS-28-REGION-09-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

OocuSlgnM by;

11/10/2020

Date Name: Catherine Pinos
Title. Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Mid-State Health Center Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-09-A05 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit B-11 Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Mid-State Health Center / Central NH PHN

Budget Request for: Young Adult Strategies

Budget Period: FY2021

Total Prooram Cost

Line item
Direct indirect Total

inrmmAntal FUart

1 Tolfll X X

% X X

« X X

4 Pnninmwnl- Si X X

« X X

X X

s X X

Si X X

s X X

Si X X

Phflrmarv X X X

s X X

OffirA X X X

X X X

X X X

fl Oirrenf F*nAn«A« X X X

X X X

X X X

X X  • X

X X X

X X X

BoAtrl FxnAfiSAS X X X

X X X

in MarVAfinn/fV»mmiinirfltinn< X X X

X X X

X  on nnn nn X X  qn nnn nn

X X X

X X X

X

$ $ $

TOTAL S  90.000.00 $ S  ■ 90.000.00

indirect As A Percent of Direct 0.0%

Contractor Initials

Exhibit B-l I Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-RECION-09-A05 Page I of
11/9/2020

Date
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that MID-STATE HEALTH

CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January 09, 1998. I

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 285492

Certificate Number: 0005024776

Bo.

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7ih day of October A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Peler Laufenberg, hereby certify that:
{Nanift of the eiocted Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Mid-State Health Center.
(Corporation/LLC f^ame)

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 22, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Robert MacLeod. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name ant! Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Mid-State Health Center to enter Into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
posltlon(8) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with iKe Sta^f New Hampshire,
at! such limitations are expressly slated herein. ,j y/"

Dated:

Signature qf'gf^ctejf^fficer /) . ^
Name; f VdU
Title; U> ^ 4-

/;!

KATHLEEN GRAO. Notary Public
Stale ol New Hampshlru

My Commlselon Explfoe Novombor 10,2021

Rev. 03/24/20



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
Date:

09/10/20

Administrator:

New England Special Risks, Inc.

60 Prospect St.
Sherborn, Ma. 01770 .

Phone: (508)561-6111

This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and

confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does
not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies

below.

INSURERS AFFORDING COVERAGE

Insured:

Mid-State Health Center

101 Boulder Point Dr.- Suite 1

Plymouth. NH. 03264

Insurer A: Medical Protective Insurance Co.

Insurer B: AIM Mutual Insurance Co.

Insurer C:

Insurer D:

Insurer E:

Coverages
The policies of insurance listed below have been issued to the insured named above for the policy period indicated. Notwithstanding any requirement,
term or condition of any contract or other document with respect to which the certificate may be issued or may pertain, the insurance afforded by the

policies described herein is subject to all the terms, exclusions and conditions of such policies, aggregate limits shown may have been reduced by paid
claims.

INS.

LTR.
TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

Policy

Effective

Date

Policy

Expiration LIMITS

A

General Liability

HN 030313 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

Each Occurrence $. 1,000,000

L£| Commercial General Liability
1  1 Claims Made Q Occurrence

□
□

General Aggregate Limit Applies Per;

0 Policy (0 Project [0 Loc

Fire Damage (Any one fire $ 50.000

Med Exp (Any one person) $ 5,000

Personal & Adv Injury $ 1,000,000

General Aggregate $ 3,000,000

Products - Comp/Op Agg $ 1,000,000

Automobile Liability Combined Single Limit
(Each accident) $

1  1 Any Auto
Q All Owned Autos
0 Scheduled Autos
1  1 Hired Autos

□

Bodily injury (Per person) $
Bodily Injury (Per accident) $
Property Damage
(Per accident) $

Garage Liability Auto Only - Ea. Accident $
1  1 Any Auto
n

Other Than
Auto Only:

Ea. Acc $
Agg $

Excess Liability Each Occurrence $
!_) Occurrence LJciaims Made

[0 Deductible
n Retention $

Aggregate $
$
$
$

B

Workers Compensation and
Emolbvers' Llabllltv

ECC-4000079-2018A 10/1/2020 10/1/2021

1 j [Slatutory
Limits

□ Other

E.L. Each Accident 500,000
E.L. Disease-Ea. Employet $ 500,000
E.L. Disease • Policy Limit $ 500,000

A Entity Healthcare Professional and
Employed Physicians Professional
Professional Liability

HN 030313 10/1/2020 10/1/2021 Per Incident $1,000,000
Aggregate $3,000,000

Description of operations/vehicles/exclusions added by endorsement/special provision

Evidence of Currenl General, Heallhcare Medical Professional Liabilily and Workers Compensation Insurance Coverage for Ihe Insured.

Certificate Holder

State Of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St.
Concord, NH. 03301

Should any oi the above policies be canceled betore the expiralion dale thereof,
the Issuing insurer will endeavor to mail 10 days written notice to the certificate

holder named to the left, but failure to do so shall impose no obligation or liability
of any kind upon Ihe insurer, its agents or representatives.

Authorized Representative



11/29/2020 Planned Giving to Support our Mission - Mid-State Health Center

Need more information on COVID-IS?

(https://v/ww.cdcgov/coronavlrus/2019-nCoV/lndex.html)

Bristol Office (https://goo.gl/maps/gmaKTNeNWlT2)

(603) 744-6200 {J)(tel:(603)744-6200)
'  ̂ Roble Road, Bristol, NH 03222 (https://goo.gl/maps/gmaKTNeNWlT2)

HEALTH Center

Whgrt your cart comts together.

"Hours: M ■ W: 7.30AM - 5:30PM. Th £. F: 8:00AM - 5:00PM

Lab Hours: M • F: 7:30AM • 11:45AM, 1:15PM - 4:00PM

• Plymouth Office (https://goo.gi/maps/LZQrg2u91wQ2)

•  (603)536-4000(C)(tel:(603)536-4000)
• 101 Boulder Point Drive, Plymouth, NH 03264 (http$://goo.gl/maps/LZQrg2u91wQ2)

• Hours: M - Th: 7:30AM - 5:30PM, F: 8:00AM - 5:XPM

• Hours (cont): Sat: 8:00AM - 12:00PM

• Lab Hours: M - F: 7:30AM -11:45AM. 1:15PM • 4:00PM

T

•«*

Search site

Planned Giving to
Support Mid-State's
Mission

PLANNED GIVING TO SUPPORT OUR MISSION

As part of your estate plan, you can specify a gift to Mid-State Health Center in your will or trust.

When you include the Mid-State as part of your estate plans, you will become a member of our legacy society.

If you wish to name Mid-State Health Center in your will or estate plan, we should be named as:

Mid-State Health Center, a nonprofit corporation, organized and existing in the State of New Hampshire

with principal business address of 101 Boulder Point Drive, Suite 1, Plynwuth, NH 03264

Our tax identification number Is; 02-0487172

Making a gift to Mid-State Health through your will or revocable living trust Is a way to support our mission.

If you have chosen to include Mid-State Health in your estate plans, please let us know so we can thank you!

For more information about planned giving and ways to support Mid-State and its mission, contact:

Wendy Williams, Grants and Programming Director

603-536-4000 Ext: 1009

wwilllams@midstatehealth.org (mailto;wwllliams(gmldstatehealth.org)

Len.ices (htips: /.•.'Av.rfiidsiilel'reaith.ofg sec.ices') Meet Ouc Pro. iders ii'ittps: .'..iriidstaietieakh.org rrieet-our-pro.iders i

For Patients ihltps: VA-Axnidstatehedlth-org become-a-patierit-dc-niid-iiate ' HedlthC".' ellness iiiltps: v-iTiidsrdcehedlth.org hedlth-.'.elliiess *

.Abojl Us (httpi:"\'.\ A/.rnids(dlel"^di!h.uig dbouf-us ) Cdreer s ihttps: a a A.midscdtehiedlth.crg cdieets )

(https:/
Oi020MiO-S(.'t-Herfiin '.tuti

https://wvAv.midstaleheafth.org/about-us/planned-giving-to-support-mid-states-mission/ 1/1
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended

June 30,2019 and 2018

Supplemental Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended June 30,2019

and

Independent Auditors* Report

Mjd-State
HEALTH CENTER
A non-profit cor-poriilion
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rVLKU, SIMMS & ST. SAUVKUK, CPAs, I'.C
(.'rriinnl I'lilriif .SrfuuniiM^ K llu>it)p» Onsabiarv

Independent Auditors* Report

To the Donrri of Trustees of

Mid-Stoic Health Center and Subsidiary':

Report on the ConsoVutoteti Financial Sttitetnenix

We hove audited the occoinpanying consolidated financial statements of Mid-Stole Health Center and
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated slfllcmenis of rmancial position as of June 30. 2019 and
2018, und the related eonsolidulcd siatemcnls of operations and changes in net assets, functional
expenses and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Manafie/iieni's ResponsihUity for the ConxoliJated Fmandal Statements
J

Management is rcspon.siblc for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
slotemems in accordance with accoiinting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, intplcmcntation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements ihot arc free from material misstntcment,
whether due to fraud or error.

A ntiitor's RcsponsibUity

Our responsibility is to c.xpress an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America end the srandards applicable to financiol audits contained in Governtiieni Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatcmcnt.

An audit involves pcrfonulng procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatcmcnt of the consolidated financial sintcmcitts,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those, risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Organization's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that ore opproprinte in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the cfTcctivcncss of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used end the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by mnnagcmcnt. as well ns
cvflliialing (he overall prcsentaiion of the consolidated financial stntcmcnis.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

lyU'f. .->1. ."iauviriir. I'.C. • 19 .Nloriraft Utiv.- • l-chaiiiirt. NU ■ III. ■ I'a.s



Emphasis of Matter

Changes in Accounting Principle

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mid'State Health Center and Subsidiary as of June 30, 2019 and 2018,
and the results of their operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as" a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code ofFederal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. The consolidating information is also presented on pages 30-33
for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of the Organization's management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated
financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the informaiion is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

As discussed in Note I to the consolidated financial statements, as of June 30, 2019, the Organization 8
>adopted Accounting Standards (ASU) 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-profit

Entities. The update addresses the complexity and understandabiiity of net asset classification, o
information about liquidity and availability of resources, methods used to allocate costs and direction for ^
consistency about information provided about expenses and investment return. The adoption of the T
standard resulted in additional footnote disclosures and changes to the classification of net assets and ^
disclosures related to net assets. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards -

In accordance wiih Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report dated November 19, ^
2019, on our consideration of the Organization's Internal control over financial reporting and on our tests g
of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other o
matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over ^
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the O
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report ®
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In T
considering the Organization's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. ^

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19, 2019



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY 5

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 3

As of June 30,2019 and 2018 q
(O
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2Q19 2Mfi
Assets

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 1,764,253 $ 1,453,543
Restricted cash 69,659 53,419
Patient accounts receivable, net 570.448 683,199
Estimated third-party settlements 88,708 98,348
Contracts and grants receivable 475,746 291,932
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 379,974 357.533

Total current assets 3.348.788 2.937.974

Long-term assets
Properly and equipment, net 5.832.126 6,022,468
Other assets 18,263 -

Total long-term assets 5.850,389 6.022.468

Total assets 9.199.177 $ 8.960.442

Liabilities and net assets
Current liabilities

Accounts payable s 204,907 S 122,653
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 66,462 71.462
Accrued payroll and related expenses 374,802 350,636
Accrued earned time 308,765 354,444
Current portion of long-term debt 160,374 160,342
Current portion of capital lease obligations 591 7.460

Total current liabilities 1,1 15,901 1.066.997

Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion 4,195,066 4,348,832
Capital lease obligations, less current portion - 791

Total long-term liabilities 4,195,066 4,349,623

Total liabilities 5,310.967 5.416.620

Commitments and contingencies (See Notes)

Net assets without donor restrictions 3,888,210 - 3.543.822

Total liabilities and net assets s 9.199.177 s 8.960.442

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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The accompanying notes to financial statements are on integral pan of these statements.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY 5
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets g
For the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018 p

-  y,

to

o

Changes in net assets without restrictions ^
■nRevenue, gains and other support

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances ^
and discounts) $ 6,721,349 $ 7,064,450

Provision for uncollectible accounts 241,053 280,637 K
Net patient service revenue 6,480,296 6,783,813 o

CO

Contracts and grants 2,464,156 2,260,034 §
Contributions 13,987 13,903 2
Other operating t:evenue 1,834,609 1,308,807
Net assets released from restrictions ♦ 11.958

Total revenue, gains and other support 10,793,048 10,378.515

Expenses
Salwies "and wages 6,115,133 6,490,478
Employee benefits 1,378,376 1,469,123
Insurance 33,090 137,116
Professional fees 939,846 563,056
Supplies and expenses 1,472,424 1,348,770
Depreciation and amortization 306,383 297,293
Interest expense 203,408 ^9-',

Total expenses 10,448,660 10,509,25)

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 344,388 (130,736)
Changes in net assets with donor restrictions

Net assets released from restrictions - (11,958
Change in net assets with donor restrictions - (11,95?

Change in net assets 344,388 (142,694)
Net assets, beginning of year 3,543,822 3.686,516
Net assets, end of year $ 3,888,210 $ 3,543,822



MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Slatenienl orPuncliooal expenses
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program Stfvicc Supponing S«rwc«

Medical Dental

Behavioral

Iteallh

Emerjeney

Prep,

Moniasori

Center

Total

Progrvn

Serviee

A^in aitd

General Fundraising

Total

Etrpenses

Salaries and uages S  }.57}.}3I S 396,792 S 756,610 S  60.951 S  169,102 5 4.956.786 S  1.138,04! i  20.307 S 6.II5.I34

Employee bcneflts 122.119 113,606 2(0.897 14.304 46,585 1.207,511 166.662 4,202 IJ78.375

Insinnee M.794 281 1,909 4,000 977 21,968 11.123 33.091

Praressional tees 525,174 48,356 68.799 216.416 - 158.745 11,101 939.846

Supplies and expenses l,099.IU 120,679 93,303 9.755 12,712 1,335.562 136.161 1.472,423

Depreciation and emonlzation 235.417 42,663 19J99 • 1.758 297.437 1.946 306.313

Interest ei^ensc 164,255 17.982 12,787 - . 195,024 1.384 203.401

Total expenses S 6,432.2(13 S 740,366 S 1.163.904 5  305,426 5  231.134 S 8,173,033 S  1,551.(18 S  24.509 S 10.448.660

The accompanying notes to finarKlal statements are an integral part of these statements
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Supporting Scrvica

Medical Dental

Behavioral

Health

Education

and

Outreach

Emagency

Prep.

Monlessori

CettiCT

Total

Program

Service

Admin and

General Fundraising

Tola)

Expenses

Salaries and »igcs S  3.919.619 S 433,697 J 756.546 S  149,122 S  60.620 5  157,192 5 5,546,866 S  926,864 5 16,748 $ 6.490,478

Employee benefits 924,393 120,726 210,233 36,570 13,617 39,9.48 1,345,487 120,036 3.^ .J,469,I23

Insurance 113,359 984 . - . 1,002 115,345 21,771 137,116

Professional fees 214,511 19,579 26,438 233,623 494,228 60,298 554,526

Supplies and expenses 1.032,953 98,213 90,123 12,510 7.732 8,523 1,250,054 98,7)6 1,348,770

Oeprecitfion and amortization 213,489 51,642 22,001 • -
1.746 288,878 8,415 297.293

Interest expettse 165,455 16.226 .  13,069 - - - 194,750 17,195 21 ■•,945

.Total expenses S 6653,926 $ 741.067 S 1.118,410 S  198.202 S  315,592 S  208.411 ] 9,235,608 $  1,253,295 S 20,348 S 10,509,251

The accompanying rtotcs to rinancial statements are an integral part of these statements
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY

Consolidated Statements of Cash F^lows

For the Years Ended J,une30,2019 and 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities

2019 2018

$  344,388 $ (142,694)

Depreciation and amortization 306,383 297,293
Amortization reflected as interest 2,668 2,667

Provision for uncollectible accounts 241,053 280,637

(Increase) decrease in the following assets:
Patient accounts receivable (128,302) (294.199)

Estimated third-party settlements 9,640 (1,685)

Contracts and grants receivable (183,814) 43,531

Prepaid expenses and other receivables (22,441) 366,359

Other assets (18,263) -

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable 82,254 25,157

Accrued payroll and related expenses 24,166 21.907

Accrued earned time (45,679) 11,178

Accrued other expenses (5.000) (258,431)

Net cash provided by operating activities 607,053 351,720

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1 16,041) (36,228)

Net cash used in investing activities 016,041) (36,228)

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments on capital leases (7,660) , (4,630)
Payments on long-term debt (156,402) (195,444)

Net cash used in financing activities 064,0625 (200,074)

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and
restricted cash 326,950 115,418

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning
ofyear 1,506,962 1,391,544

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $  1,833,912 $ 1,506,962

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash consisted of the following as of June 30:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents J  1,764,253 S 1,453.543

Restricted cash 69,659 53,419

S  1,833,912 $ 1,506,962

The accompanying notes to financial statements arc an integral part of these statements.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Supplemental Disclosures of Gush Flow Information

2019 2018
Cash payments for:

Interest : J 200,740 S 200.748

SuDolemcntwl DisclosurciofNon-Cnsh Trftnanctiona

During 2018, the Organization entered into a capital lease agreement to acquire equipment
totaling $7,676.

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

I. Summary ofSignlficant Accounting Policies;

Or2anization

Mid-State Health Center ("MSHC") is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) which provides health
core to a large number of Medicare, Medicaid and charity care patients on an outpatient basis. MSHC maintains
facilities in Plymouth and Bristol, New Hampshire.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mid-State Community Development
Corporation (MSCDC), collectively, "the Organization".

Effective September 23, 2010, the Organization was transferred a sole member interest in MSCDC, which
owns the 19,500 square-Toot operating facility that was developed to house the Organization, providing medical
services to the undcrserved community in the Plymouth, New Hampshire region.

During the year ended June 30, 2012, after having participated in a pilot program with the New Hampshire
Citizens Health Initiative (NHCHI), the Organization was o^cially recognized as a medical home.

Basis of Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America. The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared consistent with the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Audit and Accounting Guide.
Health Care Organizations (Audit Guide). All significant intercompany transactions between MSHC and MSCDC
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Effective July I, 2018, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14 Not-for'
Profit Entities (Topic 958). The ASU amends (he current reporting model for nonprofit organizations and enhances
their required disclosures! The major changes include: (a) requiring the presentation of only two classes of net assets
now entitled "net assets without donor restrictions" and "net assets with donor restrictions", (b) modifying the
presentation of underwater endowrnent funds and related disclosures, (c) requiring the use of the places in service
approach to recognize the expirations of restrictions on gifts used to, acquire or construct long-lived assets absent
explicit donor stipulations otherwise, (d) requiring that all nonprofits present an analysis of expenses by function
and nature in either the statement of activities, a separate statement or in the notes and disclose a summary of the
allocation methods used to allocate costs, (e) requiring (he disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information
regarding liquidity and availability of resources, (f) presenting investment return net of external and direct expenses,
and (g) modifying other financial statement reporting requirements and disclosures intended to increase the
usefulness of nonprofit financial statements.

Implementation of ASU 2016-14 did not require reclassification or restatement of any opening balances
related to (he periods presented. Net assets previously reported as unrestricted are now reported as net assets without
donor restrictions. Net asset previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets are now reported as net asset
with donor restrictions. A footnote on liquidity has been added (Note 16).

10
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Sienincant Accounting Policies fcontinuedV.

Classes of Net Assets

The Organization reports information regarding its consolidated financial position and activities to two
classes of net assets; net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

(1) Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - represent those resources for which there are no
restrictions by donors as to their use. They are reflected on the financial statements as without
donor restrictions.

(2) Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - represent those resources, the uses of which have been
restricted by donors to specific purposes or the passage of time and/or must retain intact, in
perpetuity. The Velease from restrictions results from the satisfaction of the restricted purposes
specified by the donor.

Estimates

The Organization uses estimates and tusumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reponed revenues
end expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposits, petty cash funds and Investments with a maturity of three
months or less, and exclude amounts whose use is limited by Board designation or other arrangements under trust
agreements or with third-party payors.

Cash in Excess of FDIC-lnsured Limits

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. Accounts are generally guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to certain limits.
The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Rfffivabits

Patient receivables ore carried at their estimated collectible amounts. Patient credit is generally extended on a
short-term basis; thus, patient receivables do not bear interest.

Patient receivables are periodically evaluated for collectabiliry based on credit history and current financial
condition. The Organization uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible accounts receivable.

Property and Eouioment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Property and equipment donated for Organization
openitions are recorded at fair value at the dale of receipt. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed when
incurred and betterments are capitalized.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

1. Summorv of Significant Accounting Policies fcontlnued);

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed
on the straight-line method. Equipment under capital leases is amortized on the straight-line method over the life of
the capital lease. Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial statements.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:
years

Buildings 5-40
Leasehold improvements 5

- Equipment 3 • 7
Furniture and fixtures 5-15

Capital leases 3-IS

The Organization reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events
and circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted expected future cash
flows ere less than carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying value
exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered by management in performing this assessment include
current operating results, trends and prospects, as well as the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and
other economic factors.

Contractual ArranBemenis with Third-Partv Pavors

The Medicare and Medicaid programs pay the Organization for services at predetermined rates by treatment.
The Organization.is reimbursed for Medicare cost reimbursable items at a tentative rate with final settlement
determined after the submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare fiscal intermediary. Changes
in Medicare and Medicaid programs or reduction of funding levels for programs could have an adverse effect on future
amounts recognized as net patient service revenue.

The laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject to
interpretation. As o result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material
amount In the near term.

The Organization also enters into preferred provider agreements with certain commercial insurance canlers.
Payment arrangements to the Organization under these agreements include discounted charges and fee schedule
payments.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors
and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payors.

12
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued^;

Cram Revenue

The Organization recognizes support funded by grants determined to be exchange transactions as the
Organization performs the contracted services or incurs outlays eligible for reimbursement under the grant agreements.
Grant activities and outlays are subject to audit and acceptance by the granting agency and, as a result of such audit,
adjustments could be required.

Contributions

Contributions are recognized at the earlier of when cash is received or at the time a pledge becomes
unconditional in nature. Contributions are recorded in the net asset classes described earlier depending on the existence
and/or nature of any donor restriction. When a restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or
purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclossifled to net assets without donor
restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets releases from restriction. Restricted contributions that
ore satisfied in the some reporting period arc classified as net assets without donor restriction.

Charity Care

The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy with minimal
charge or at amounts less than its esuiblished rates. Because the Organization does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to quali^' as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Income Taxes

MSHC and MSCOC are not-for-profit corporations as described in Section S0l(cK3) of the imemal Revenue
Code (Code) and are exempt from Federal income taxes on related income pursuant to Section SO 1(a) of the Code.

The Organization accounts for Its uncertain lax positions in accordance with the accounting methods under
ASC Subtopic 740-10. The UTP rules prescribe a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a lax position taken in an organization's lax returt). The Organization believes
that it has appropriate support for the tax positions taken and. as such, does not have any uncertain tax positions that
might result in a material impact on the Organization's statements of financial position, activities and changes in net
assets and cash flows. The Organization's management believes it is no longer subject to examinations for the years
prior to 2015.

Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to operations when incurred. Total advertising expense for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018 was $22,105 and $23,034, respectively.

Functional AMocmion of Ex[?enses

Expenses that can be identified with specific program or supporting services are charged directly to the related
program or supporting service. Expenses that are associated with more than one program or supporting service are
allocated based on an evaluation by management utilizing measurements for time and cfrort, square footage and/or
encounter based slalislics.

13
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for ihc Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued):

Excess fPcncit^ of Revenues over Expenses

The consolidated statements of opet^tlons include excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses. Changes in net
assets without restrictions which are excluded fit>m excess (deficit) of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry

practice, include contributions and grants oflong-lived assets.

Fair Value of Financial instruments

The carrying amount of cash, patient accounts receivable, accounts and notes payable and accrued expenses
approximates fair value.

Reclassificaiions

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements to conform to the current
year presentation. These reclassifications have no effect on the previously reported change in net assets.

Liquidity

nearness

L^iquianY

Assets are presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position according to their
of conversion to cash and liabilities according to the nearness of their maturity and resulting use of cash.

New Pronouncements

The FaSB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and she Accounting Guidance for Contributions
Received and Contributions Made. The ASU which becomes effective for the Organiiation's consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ending June 30. 2020, provides guidance on whether a receipt from a third-party
resource provider should be accounted for as a contribution (nonreciprocal transaction) within the scope of Topic
958, Not-for-profit Entities, or as on exchange (reciprocal) transaction.

The FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. The ASU, which becomes effective for the Organization's
consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ending June 30, 2021, requires the full obligation of long-
term leases to be recorded as a liability with a corresponding right of use asset on the statement of financial position.

The Organization is evaluating the impact of these standards on its future financial statements.

2. Charity Core:

The Organization maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care they provide. These
records Include the amount of charges foregone for services and supplies furnished under their charily care policies.
The total cost estimate is based on an overall cosi-to-charge ratio applied against gross charity care charges. The net
cost of charity care provided was approximately $280,000 and $337,000 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

M
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

2. Charity Core (continued):

In 2019 and 2018. 364 and 533 patients received charily care out of a total of 1 1,539 and 10,771 patients,
respectively. The Organization provides health care services to residents of Plymouth. New Hampshire as well as
Bristol, New Hampshire and their surrounding areas, without regard to the individual's ability to pay for their services.

Determination of eligibility for charity care is granted on a sliding fee basis:

For dental services, patients with family income less than 100% of the Community Services Administration
Income Poverty Guidelines shell only be responsible for a nominal fee assessed by the Organization and hot the balance
of their account for services received. Those with family income at least equal to 101%, but not exceeding 125% of the
Federal Poverty Guidelines, receive a 65% discount. Those with family income at least equal to 126%, but not
exceeding 150% of the guidelines, receive a 55% discount. Those with fan\ily income at least equal to 151%, but not
exceeding 200% of the guidelines, receive 8.45% discount.

For all other services, patients with family income less than 100% of the Community Services Administration
Income Poverty Guidelines shall only be responsible for a nominol fee assessed by the Organization and not the balance
of their account for services received. Those with family income at least equal to 101%, but not exceeding 138V»ofthe
Federal Poverty Guidelines, shall be responsible for a $20 fee for each encounter. Those with family income at least
equal to 139%, but not exceeding 1.60% of the-guidelines, will be responsible for a $30 fee for each encounter. Those

• with family income at least equal to 161%, but not exceeding 180% of the guidelines, will be responsible for a $40 fee
' for each encounter. Those with family income at least equal to 181 %, but not exceeding 200% of the guidelines, will be
responsible for a $50 fee for each encounter.

3. Potient Service Revenue and Patient Accounts Receivable;

Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts (but before the provision for bad debts),
recognized was as follows for the years ended June 30:

2019

Patient

Gross Contractual Sliding Fee Service

Charges Adiustmenis Adiusiments Revenue

Medicare S  3,168,938 $  736,684 $  S 2,432,254

Medicaid 1,780,916 576,871 . 1,204,045
Blue Cross 1,943,516 681,502 • 1,262,014

Other ihird-pany payers 2,212,431 754,360 - 1,458,071

Self'pay 621,569 . 256,604 364,965

Total S  9,727,370 $  2,749,417 S  256,604 $ 6,721,349
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

3. Patient Service Revenue and Patient Accounts Receivable (continued):

2018

Cross Contractual Sliding Fee

Patient

Service

Medicare S 3.056,284 $  760,522 $  $ 2,295,762

Medicaid 1,629,184 358,716 - 1,270,468

Blue Cross 2,012.056 587,538 - 1,424,518

Other third-party payors 2,491,465 781.926 - 1,709,539

Self-pay 733.202 - 369,039 364,163

Total S 9.922.191 S  2,488,702 S  369,039 S 7,064.450

Paiient accounts receiv^le is reported net of estimated contractual allowances and allowance for doubtful
accounts, as follows, as of June 30:

2019 2018

Patient accounts receivable $ 1,247.726 $ 1.266,792

Less; Estimated contractual allowances and discounts 360.278 348,593

Less: Estimated allowance for uncollectible accounts 317.000 235,000

Patient accounts receivable, net $ ̂̂ 570^448 $

Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for doubtflil accounts, (n evaluating the coliectabiliiy
of accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes its past history and identifies trends for each of its major payor
sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts.
Management regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the
alloNvancc for doubtful accounts. For receivables associated with service provided to patients who have third-party
coverage, the Organization analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for doubtful accounts and a
provision for bad debts, if^ necessary. For receivables associated with self-pay patients, including both patients without
insurance and patients with deductible and copayment balances due for which third-party coverage exists for only part
ofthe bill, the Organization records a.significant provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis of its past
experience, which indicates that many patients are unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which they are
financially responsible. The difference between the standard rates and the amounts actually collected afler all
reasonable collection efforts have Seen exhausted is charged off against the allowance for doubtful accounts.

4. Estimated Third-Partv Settlements:

Provision has been made for estimated adjustments that may result from final settlement of reimbursable
amounts as may be required upon completion and audit of related cost finding reports under terms of contracts with
the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services and the New Hampshire Division of Welfare (Medicaid).
Differences between estimated adjustments and amounts determined to be recoverable or payable are accounted for
as income or expense in the year that such amounts become known.
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

5. Grants and State Contracts:

The Organization receives various reimbursement grants from (he federal govemment. State of New
Hampshire and other public and private agencies. The following is a summary of the grant activity for the years ended
June 30:

Grant and Stale Contract Revenue Outstanding Receivable

2019 2018 2019 2018

HRSA 330 Grant • 2018-2022 $  1,585.879 $ 1,500.224 S 284.968 $ 141,281

Si-SlBie PCA Grant 154.332 8.238 105.528 -

NH Primary Cart Contracts 153.293 150.146 25.550 38.324

Emergency Preparedness Grants 322.620 338,502 39,837 93.644

HRSA.IGNITE Grants 80,641 163,970 - •

Other Grant and Contract Awards 167,39) 98,954 19,863 18,683

$  2.464,156 $ 2.260.034 S 475.746 S 291,932

6. Pronertv and Eouinment;

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of June 30:
2019 2018

Land

Buildings
Leasehojd improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation

525.773

6,346,118
170,174

1.400.452

8.442.517

2.610,391

5,832.126

525,773

6.346,118

170,174

1,284,411

8.326.476

2.304.008

6,022.468

Depreciation and amortization expense, including amortization expense on capital lease obligations, for the
years ended June 30,2019 and 2018 amounted to $306,383 and $297,293, respectively.

7. Line of Credit;

The Organization had an available line of credit with a maximum borrowing amount of $150,000 and
$100,000 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively. The line carries an interest rate equal to 7% {prime plus 2%). The
line is secured by all business assets. The line vyas not drawn upon as of June 30,2019 and 2018.

17
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MLD-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

8. Lone-Term Debt;

Long-term debt consisted of the following as of June 30:
2019 21115

Woodsville Guarantee Savings Bank note payable, maturing
August 2033, principal and interest payable in 240 monthly
installmentsofSI8.l94 through August 2033. Interest is
charged at a rate of 3.25%. $ 2,178,682 $ 2,279,730

Woodsville Guarantee Savings Bank note payable, maturing
August 2018, principal and interest payable in 60 monthly
installments of S3,757. Interest is charged at a rate of 4%. - 7,477

United Slates of America Department of Agriculture note
payable, maturing April 2045, principal and interest
payable in 360 monthly payments ofSI0,904. Interest is
charged at a rate of 3.5% (sec Note 9b). 2.216.849 2.264.725

Total long-term debt 4,395,531 4,551,932
Less: unamortiaed deferred financing costs 40.091 42.758
Total long-term debt, net ofunamortized deferred financing costs 4,355,440 4,509,174
Less: current portion 160.374 160.342

Long-term debt, less current portion S 4 I9S Q66 $ 4.348.832

9a In September 2013, the Organization refinanced its then outstanding Woodsville Guarantee Savings
Bank interim note payable with a construction loan. The new loan hod an advancement amount of up
to 52,700,000 and called for interest only payments at a rate of 5% beginning October 2013, for 23
consecutive months, and I balloon payment of principal and accrued unpaid interest due September
2015. In April 2015, the Organization entered into a long-term debt arrangement with the United
States of America Department of Agriculture ("USDA") totaling $2,423,000. The proceeds from the
loan were used to refinance the construction loan balance and unpaid accrued interest and to satisfy
outstanding invoices related to the construction of the Bristol property. The loan is secured by the
Organization's property located in Bristol, New Hampshire. The loan agreement requires (he
Organization to establish a reserve account which is to be funded in monthly installments of $1,090
until the accumulated sum of reserve funding reaches $130,848, afier which no further funding is
required except to replace withdrawals. As of June 30, 2019, the reserve account totaled $69,659,
reflected on the consolidated statement of financial position as restricted cash.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows as of June 30.2019:

2020 $ 160,374

2021 168,229

•2022 176,256

2023 184,679

2024 193.328

Thereafier 3,512,665

$  4,395,531
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

9. Caoitnl Lease Obligations:

At of June 30. 2019, (he Organization had an ouUianding capital iease obligation for a certain piece of
equipmeni. The lenn of ihc lease tgreemeni ts for • period of 48 monihs expiring in 2019. Accordingly, the
O^enization has recorded (he (rtnsaciion as a capi(8l lease obligation. For (he years ended June 30, 20l9 and 2018,
BtTKHiization expense on (he asset acquired through capital teose totaled (2.000 and was included within depreciation
and amortization expense on the consolidated statement of (unctional expenses. The cost basis of the equipment under
capital lease as of June 30. 2019 was S8.000. Accumulated omortizaiion was S7,6d7 end S5.667 as of June 30, 2019
and 2018. respectively.

I

The following is a schedule, by year, of ftiiure minimum lease paymenu under the capital leases as of June 30:

2020

Total minimum lease payments
LESS: Amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

LESS: Current portion

Long-term capital lease obligation

600

600

9

S9I

591

iO. Mnlnractict insuroncc Coverage:

The Lf.S. Department of Health and Human Services deemed the Organization covered ui>dcr the Federal Ton
Claims Act (FTCA) for damage fc^ personal injury, including death, resulting from the performance of medical,
surgical, dental and related flmciions. FTCA coverage is comparable to an occurrence policy without a monetary cap.
Prior to being deemed for coverage under the FTCA, the Organizaiion purchased medical malpractice insurance under
a claims-made policy on a fixed premium basis. The Organization purchases primary and excess liability malpractice
insurance under occurrence p^icies for certain services and other portions of the Organization not covered ur>der
FTCA.

Claim liabilities are determined without consideration of insurarKe recoveries. Expected recoveries are
presented separeiely. Management analyzes the need for an accrual of estimated tosses of medical malpractice claims, -
irKluding an estimate of (he ultimate' costs of both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported, in such cases,
the expected recovery fhun the Organization's insurance provider is recorded within prepaid expenses end other
receivables. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018. subsequent to management's assessment of potential reported and not yci
reported claims, management delemined that its exposure for potential unreponed claims was immaterial and
consequently did not provide for an accrual. It is possible that an event has occurred which will be the basis of a future
material claim.

11. Commitments and Contingencies:

Real Estate Taxes - The Organization ertd the Town of Plymouth. NH agreed to a payment In lieu of real
estate taxes for a period of 10 years. The agreement idcmified real estate taxes previously paid by the Organizaiion to
the Town that the Organization m-es not required to pay as a result of its tax-exempt status. The sum of the
overpayments will be applied evenly on an installment basts over the 10-year period, totaling SSO.OOO. The
Organization remains subject to its requirement to timely Hie its application for tax exemption with the Town on en
annual basis.
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MID-STATE HEALTH {CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Vcars Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

11. Commitments and Contingencies (continued):

340B Revenue • The Organization participates in the 340B Drug Discount Program (the 340B Program)
which enables qualilying health care providers to purchase drugs from pharmaceutical suppliers at a substantial
discount as a Covered Entity. The 340B Program is managed by the Health Resources and Services Administration

^ (HRSA) Office of Pharmacy Affairs. The Organiulion is required to undergo a self^audit process to determine
compliance with 340B Program guidelines. The 340B statutes also explicitly authorize HRSA to audit Covered Entities
10 ensure they are compliant with the 340B Program. All Covered Entities are also required to recertify compliance
with the 340B Program on an annual basis, including an attestation to full compliance with the 340B Program. The
Organization, earns revenue under the 3408 Program by purchasing pharmaceuticals at a reduced cost to fill
prescriptions to qualified patients, the Organization contracts with certain third-party pharmacies that dispense the
pharmaceuticals to its patients. 3406 revenue is included in other operating revenue within the consolidated statements
of operations and totaled $1,476,630 and $1,062,379 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The
cost of pharmaceuticals, dispensing fees to the pharmacies, consulting fees and other costs associated with the 340B
Program are included in operating expenses in (he consolidated statements of operations and totaled $312,776 and
$333,321 for the years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

12. Concentration of Credit Risk;

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents and are
insured under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors was as follows
at June 30:

2019 2018

Medicare 11.7% 13.4%

Medicaid 22.2% 20.9%

Blue Cross 13.7% 18.6%

Patients 22.7% 14.9%

Other third-party payors ;!7,7% 30.2%

10QQ%

13. Other Operating Revenue:

The following summarizes components of other operating revenue for the years ended June 30:

2019

Other operating revenue:
Pharmacy income - 340D
Anthem shared savings

Moniessori Center

Ciher'opcroting revenue

1.476,030

83,807

153,676

1 19,096

1,834,609

2018

1,062,379

28,833

164,008

33,383

1.308,807
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

14. Retirement Progrom:

During 2007. the Organization adopted a lax-sheltered annuity plan under 403(b) of the Code for eligible
employees. Eligible employees are specified as those who normally work more than 20 hours per week and are not
classified as independent contractors. The Organization provides for matching of employee contributions, 30V» of
(he first 6% contributed. Contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30. 2019 and 2018 were S 144,309 and
SI 54.961. respectively.

15. Health Insurnnce:

Prior to the fiscal year ended June 30. 2019, the Organization offered health insurance benefits to all
employees under available Heolth Maintenance Organization (HMO) and Preferred Provider Organization (PPO)
plans.

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization began panicipation in a captive health insurance
plan (Captive Plan). The Organization is subject to a-stop-loss limit of S50,000 per participant in the Plan before
additional coverage through the captive arrangement will commence coverage of claims. Claims submitted to the
Captive Plan for reimbursement after the end of (he fiscal year with service dates on or prior to June 30 are required
to be recognized as a loss in the period in which they occurred. As such, the Organization has provided for a
liability for unpaid claims with service dates as of or before June 30 which had not yet been reported totaling
S28,500, included under the captiort "accrued expenses end other current liabilities".

Deductible requirements under the Captive Plan range from $2,000 to $4,000, depending on the coverage
selected, before the Organization, under its' health reimbursement arrangement, is obligated to pay up to $500 per
participant.

The Organization provides for an accrual based on the aggregate amount of the liability for reported
claims and an estimated liability for claims incurred but not yet reported. At June 3D, 2019 and 2018, "accrued
expenses and other current liabilities" include on accrued liability related to these plans of $20,000 and $819.
respectively.

16. LiQuiditv:

Financial assets available for general expenditures within one year of the balance sheet date consist of the
following as of June 30:

Cosh and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net

Estimated third-pony settlements
Contracts and gram receivable
Other receivables

2019 2018

$ 1,764,253 $ 1,453,543

570,448 683,199

88,708 98,348

475.746 291,932

263,318 206,716

s 3.162,473 $ 2,733.738
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDURY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

As of and for the Years Ended June 30,2019 and 2018

16. Liauldltv tcontinuedl:

As pan of its liquidity management strategy, the Organization structures its Hnancial assets to be available as
its general expenditures, liabjiities other obligations as they come due. The Organization has certain restricted cash
balances totaling $69,659 and $53,4(9 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, representing funds required to be set
aside as a building maintenance reserve for the Organization's Bristol, New Hampshire location. These balances have
not been included in the Organization financial assets available for general expenditure within one year.

17. Subsequent Events:

The Organization has reviewed events occurring after June 30. 2019 through November 19, 20)9, the date
the board of trustees accepted the final draft of the consolidated financial statements and made them available to be
issued. The Organization has not identified other events requiring disclosure that have occurred between the period
of June 30,2019 and the report date, November 19, 2019. The Organization has not reviewed events occurring after
the report dale for their potential impact on the information contained in these consolidated financial statements.

22



OocuSIgn Envelope 10:5BlCOS9C^eiC-4dCF-A2F$.2245D78AOP4e

MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For (he Year Ended June 30, 2019

Fokrel GfeniofrPMt-Throueh CfiniOf/Pfogr«n Tiilc

U.S. Dcputmeni of Heaiih and Human Scn-tcea:

HealUi Ceniet Profram (Comimmiiy Health Center), Mifrani Health Cenicn. Health

Care for the HotnelcM and Public Housing Primao' Care)

Rural Health Care Serviees Outreach, Rural Health Neiwxt Devdopmeni and'Small

Health Care Provider Qualii}' Improvemenl Program

Passed through Bl-Staie Primary Care Association, Irtc.:

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Worlferee Activities

Total passed through Bi-Slise Primary Care Associaiiort, Irtc.

Pasted through N.H. Departmenl ofHcalth and Human Services:

Block Grants for Prevention and Trcaonertt of Substance Abuse

Immunizaiion Cooperative Agreements

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Cram Funded Solely tviih Prtvcniion

and Public Health Funds (PPHP)

Hotpiiil Preparedness Progiatrt (HPP) and Public Hcaltb Emergeitcy Prepareditess

<PHEP| Aligned Cooperative Agreements

Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the Stales

Substance Abuse and Menial Health Services Projects ofRegional and

National Significanee

Total passed through N.H. Departmenl of Health and Human Services

Federal

CFOA

Number

93.224

93,912

93.23b

93.939

93.261

93.731

93.074

Comprised

or93.lt9A

93.069

93.994

93.243

Pcss4hrough Emily or

Award Idenlihrng

Number

TI2HP303I6

FAlNTIOIOOJb

FAIN H23IP000737

FArN80IOT009037

FAIN U90TP00053S

Unbtown

FAIN SP020796

Total U.S. Departmenl ofHealth and Human Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The accompanying notes to finaiKial statements are an intcgnl pan of this schedule.
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Federal

Expenditures

t0.641

325,793

Passed

Ihrottgh <0

_Subreeigienii_

1.313.179 S

154,322

154,322

Il0.3t2

10,300

5,767

49,492

39,154

110,000

2,146,637

2,146.637 S
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30,2019

I. Basis of Presentation;

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal award
activity of MSHC under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30. 2019. The information in
the schedule is presented In accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Since the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of MSHC, it is not intended to and
does not present the statement of financial position, statement of operations and changes in net assets or cash flows
of MSHC.

2. Significant Accounting Policies;

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. The Schedule includes Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFOA) and pass>through award niunbers when available.

3. Indirect Cost Rate;

MSHC elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

24



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B1CO59C-A81C-49CF-A2F5-2245D78A0F48

l YLKR, SRVIMS & ST.SAUVKUR, CI'As, I'C.
itfr(l(Wu fuMlc AcnHinltflh A- lUtiorx (.'i<as4ilitiii«

Rcporl 1

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Covernment Auditing Standards

To the Board ofTrusiccs of

Mid-Siaic Hcullh Center;

Wc hnvc audited, in nccordancc with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Uitiicd States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Covenuncm Siomhrds
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the nnancial siaicmenis of Mid-State Health
Center ("MSHC") (n nonproHi organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of
June 30. 2019, and the related stalcmcnls of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended, and the related notes to the nnancial stniemcnis. and have issued our report thereon
dated November 19. 2019.

/Niernal Control Over .Fhiancinl Reporting

In plunning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered MSHC's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumsionccs for the .purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for die
purpose of c.xprcssing an opinion on the efTeclivcncss of MHSC's internal eontrol. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the cfrcciivcncss ofMSHC's intcrnu! control.

A deficiency in internal control c.xists when the design or operation of a control does no! allow
inaniigcmcnt or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, inisstatemeius on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, In internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatemcnt of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

• timely basis. A significant deficiency is 0 deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal eontrol
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
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Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (continued)

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

CompUance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether MSHC's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government A udiiing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19,2019
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Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

To ihc Board of Trustees ol'

Mid'Siaic Hcalih Center:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Wc have audited Mid-Sraic Health Center's ("MSHC") compliance with the types of compliance
rcquircmctus described in the OMI) Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material cfTcct
on each of MSHC's major federal programs for the year ended June 3(K 2019. MHSC s major federal
programs arc idcniincd in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of
.findings and questioned costs.

Mannncment 'jr KesponsihiHty

Management is responsible for compliance with fcdcm) statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

AudUors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of MSHC's major federal programs
based on our audit of (he types of compliance requirements referred to above. Wc conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Aucliiing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United Slates; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Pan 200, Uniform Administrative Rec/uirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Ree/uhcments
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that wc
plan and perform the audit to obtain rcasonnbic assumncc about whether noncompliancc with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could liavc a direct and material effect on u major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on u test basis, evidence about MSI-IC's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as wc considered necessary in the
circumstances.

Wc believe thm our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit docs not provide a legal determination of MSHC's coinplinncc.
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Independent Auditors* Report on Compliance for Each Major Program^ and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

(continued)

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, MSHC complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on internal Control Over Compliance

Management of MSHC is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered MSHC's iniemal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to lest and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of MSHO's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or delect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely .basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that materjal noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
.internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Lebanon, New Hampshire
November 19,2019
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
As of and For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Financial Slatemcnts

Type of auditors' re|>ort issued

Inicmal control over llnancial reporting:

Material weakness identiHcd

Signincani deficiencies identined that are noi considered
to be material weaknesses

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness identified

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
10 be material weaknesses

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance

Unmodified

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X None reported

Unmodified

Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

Federal CFDA Number Name of Federnl/Locnl Program

93.224 Health Center Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No

SECTION II-FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings related to the financial statements which arc required to be reported in accordance with
generally accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS).

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

There were no findings or questioned costs for Federal awards (as defined in Section 200.516(a) of the Uniform
Guidance) that are required to be reported.
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Mm-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Con5olidalin{ SutemenI of Financbl Posirkin - Schedule I
AsofJune 30, 2019

Amu

Cuneni useu

Cash and cash equivalents

Rcsiricied cash

Palkni accounu receivable, net

Estimated third-party scniemenis
Contracts and grants receivable

Prepoid cxpettses and other receivables
Total current asseu

Long-term assets
Property ar>d equipment, net
Other asseu

Total long-term useU

Total useu

LUbililies aad net aucts

Current liabilities

Aeenunts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Accrued payroll artd related expenses
Accrued earned tiirw

Current portion o f long-term tkbl
Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities

Lease tkposils
Long-term debt, less current portion
Capital lease obligatiotu, less cunent ponton

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net asseu without donor restrictions

Total liabilities attd rtei asseu

MSHC

1,273,179

69,dS9

570.448

88,708

475,748

. 417,584

2.895,324

2,547,312

139.882

2.687.194

5.582.518

204.907

51.001

374,802

308,765

53,891

591

993.957

2.157.382

157J82

151.339

MSCDC

491,074

431.179

582j^

491.074

3.284,814

3.284.814

3,775,888

S  37.610

15,461

106,483

I59.S5~

121,619

2.037.684

2.159,303

2.318,857

1.457,031

S  3.775.888

ELIMINATIONS

07.610)

07.610)

(121.619)

(121.619)

$  (159.229) $

(37.610)

O7.6I0)

(121.619)

(159.229)

total

1,764,253

69,659

570,448

88,708

475.746

379.974

3.348.788

5,832,126

18,263

5,850.389

9.199.177

204.907

66,462

374,802

308.765

160,374

591

1,115,901

4,195,066

4.195.066

5.310.967

3,888,210
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MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Consoltdi(iR{ Stateraent of Opcntions and Changes in Net Assets - Schedule 2
For the Year Ended June 30,2019

Changes in net assets without donor restrictions
Revenue, gains and other support

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowarKCS and discounts)
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Net patient service revenue

Contracts artd grants
Contributions

Other crpenting revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Totol revenue, gains and other support

Expenses
Salaries artd wages
Employee benefits
Insuroitce

Professional fees

Supplies and expenses
Dcpreciaiion and amortization
Interest expense

Total expenses

Change In net assets without donor restrictions
.1

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, cod of year

MSHC

6,721,349
24I.0S3

6,4S0,296

2,464.156

13,987

1,913,520

10.8?'l.959

6,115,133
1,378,376

33,090

901.493
1,779,867

187.743
83.642

10,479,344

392.615

2.038.564

2.431,179

MSCDC ELIMfNATIONS

310,149

310,149

119,202

768

118,640

119,766

358,376

(48,227)

1,505,258

$  1.457.031

(389.060)

(389,060)

(80,849)

(308,211)

(389.060)

TOTAL

6,721,349

24i.053

-6,480,296

2.464,156
13,987

1,834,609

10,793,048

6,115,133
l,378J76

33.090

939;846

1,472,424

306,383

203.408

10.448.660

344,388

3.543.822

3,888.210
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Mn>-STATE HEALTH CENTER AND SUBSIDIARY

ContolidBting Stuteinent of Financial Position - ScScdule 3
As oTJune 30, 2018

AsseU

Current esseu

Cash and cash equivalents

Resincled cash

Patient accounts receivable, net

Estimated third-party settlements

Contracts and grants receivable
Prepaid esperues and other receivables

Total current assets

Long-term assets
Property and equipment, net

Deposits artd other assets

Total long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities aad net assets

Cunent liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Accrued payroll and related expenses

Accrued earned lime

Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Lease deposits

Long-term debt, less current portion
Capita] lease obligations, less current portion

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets without donor rtstrkiions

Total liabilities and net assets

MSHC

946,166
53,419

683,199

98,348

291,932

375J)33

2,448,397

2,619,014

121.376

2.740,390

S  5,188,787

122.653

55,306

350,636

354,444

51,817

7,460

942.316

2,207.116

791

2,207.907

3,150,223

2,038,564

S  5.181.787

MSCDC

507,377

507,377

3,403,454

3,403,454

3.910.831

17,800

16,156

108,525

142.481

121,376

2,141,716

2.263.092

2,405.573

1,505.258

ELIMINATION

(17,800)

(17,800)

('2'-376)

(17.800)

(121.376)

(121,376)

TOTAL

S  1,453,543

53.419

683,199

98,348

291.932

357,533

2,937.974

6.022.468

(121,376) 6.022.468

_239j^ 5^j960,4^

(17.800) S 122,653

71,462

350,636

354,444

160J42

7.460

1.066.997

4,348,832

791

4.349,623

5,416.620

3,543.822

32
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MID-STATE HEALTH CEIVTER AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidating Sutemcni of Operations and Changes in Net Assets - Schedule 2
For the Ycv Ended June 30, 2018

Changes In net assets without donor rcslrklions
Revenue, gains and other support

Patient service revenue (net of contntciusl ailoxvances
and discounts)

Provision for uncollectible accounts
Net patient service revenue

Contracts and grants
ConlHbutiotts
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from resuictions

Total revenue, gains and other support

Expenses
Salaries and v,uges
Employee bcttefits
InsurarKC

Prorcssiorwl fees

Supplies and expenses
Depreciation and amortization
interest expense

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Changes in net asiets with donar rcstrktioiu
Net assets released from restrictions

Change in net assets with donor restrictions

Change In net assets

Net assets, begioning of year

Net assets, cad of year

MSHC MSCDC ELIMINATIONS TOTAL

7.064.4S0 S
280.637

- s  s 7,064.450
280,637

6,783,813 . -  , 6,783.813

2,260.034
13,903

IJ08.265
II.9S8

308,753 (308,211)

2,260.034
13,903

1,308,807
11.958

10,377,973 308.753 ^361.311) 10.378.515

\

6,490,478
1,469.123
137,116
563,056

U48,770
297,293
203.415

6,490,478
1,469,123
137,116
554,526

1,645,044
178.653
n.275

8,530
11,937

118,640
I26.)40

(308,211)

10,552.215 265J47 i0.iM.l$l

(174,242) 43.506 . (130.736)

(11.958) < 11.958)

(11.958) . . (11.958)

(186,200) 43,506 • (142.694)

2.224.764 1.461.752 . 3.686.516

2.038.564 S 1.505.258 S  S 3.543,822

33
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MlD-SWE
Health Centir

Where your care comes together.

— BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTACT LIST —

BOARD OFFICERS (4)

Timothy Naro, President
Term Exp: 6/30/20

Todd Bickford, Treasurer

Term Exp: 6/30/20

Peter Laufenberg, Vice President
Term Exp: 6/30/20

Audrey Goudie. Secretary
Term Exp: 6/30/22

BOARD MEMBERS; ACTIVE (9)

Carol Bears, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/21

Nicholas Coates, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/21

Isaac Davis. Director
Term:Exp: 6/30/22

Sunshine FIsk, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/21

Lee Freeman, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/22

Mike Long, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/22

Joseph Monti, Director
Term Exp: 6/30/22

Carina Park. Director
Term Exp: 6/30/22

Cynthia Standing. Director
Term Exp: 6/30/21

BOARD MEMBERS. HONORARY (2)

Ann Blair. Director
Term Exp: 6/30/21

James Dalley. Director-
Term Exp: 6/30/19

Updated 02/28/2020
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Angel EkstrorP; EdD
101 Boulder Point Or. Ste. 1, Plymouth, NH 03264

(603)238-3582 • aekstrom@mtdstatehealth.org

EDUCATION

Doctor of Education • Curriculum and Instruction, Argosy University, Sarasota, Florida, 2008

Certificate of Advanced Graduate Studies - Educational Leadership Plymouth State University, Plymouth, New

Hampshire, 2004

Master of Science • Recreation Administration, University of Nebraska at Omaha, Omaha, Nebraska, 1998

Bachelor of Science • Interdisciplinary, Physical Education and Health, Southwest State University, Marshall,
Minnesota, 1996

Associate of Arts • Anoka Ramsey Community College, Anoka, Minnesota, 1993

SELECTED PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2002- June 2014 Skills Application Teacher - 90% time split position between Academic Affairs and Student Affairs

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH

Manage the challenge course. 2002-2008

Health and Human Performance Department - Adventure Education (2002-2009)

Outdoor Center Coordinator

199'8-1999 Lead Wilderness Counselor, Lathrop Park Experiential Program, Walsenburg, CO
1991 • 1996Activities Coordinator / Counselor, Robert E. Miller (REM), Inc. • Minneapolis and Bloomington, MN and

Marshall, MN

UNIVERSITY SERVICE

PAT Committees:

Athletic Council, 2004-2008, 201 1, 2012

PAT Observer to Student Senate, 2005-2006

Health & Human Performance (HHP) Department Committees;

Adventure Education Risk Management committee member, 2006-

present Faculty search committee, 2012

Center for Active Living & Wellness Case Statement subcommittee member, 2006-2008

New Majors Orientation committee member, 2004-

2006 Open House Committee member, 2003-2006

Student Scholarship Committees,

Brennan Hart Scholarship committee member, 2003-2014

Outdoor Center Student Scholarships committee chair, 2007-201 1

Leadership Effectiveness and Development Series (L.E.A.D.S.) Presenter

PE Center Planning committee member, 2006-2008

Center for Rural Partnerships; Rural Health and Wellness Working Group member, 2006
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICE
Association of Outdoor Recreation and Education (ACRE)

Board of Directors (BOD) member, 2004-2007

Executive Council of ACRE (treasurer), 2005-2007

Environmental Stewardship Committee BOD Liaison of AORE, 2006-2007

Northeast Regional Representative, 2005-2006

COMMUNITY OUTREACH, SERVICE, and CONSULTION
Center for Young Children and Families (Plymouth, NH) guest presenter: Bear Hang with Pulley System: How to Keep Food
from Bears and Other Wildlife, December 2013

20^ Anniversary for Rivers Management and Protection Programs (Plymouth, NN) August 2013
FAST Squad volunteer (Rumney, NH) 2005-2007

Fire Department volunteer (Rumney, NH) 2005-2007
Plymouth-Area Renewable Energy initiative (PAREI) member & volunteer for local energy raisers, 200S-present« Search

and Rescue Lake County volunteer (Leadville, CO) 1999-2001» Lake County Parks & Recreation (Leadvllle. CO) o board
member 1998-2000 0 Vice President 1998-2000

Leadership Leadvllle participant (Leadville. CO) 2000-2001

Challenge Course Facilitator Training & Local Operating Procedure Consulting o

University of Wisconsin, Stout o Mississippi Gulf Coast Community College

SELEaED TRAININGS

Suicide, Poslvention Suicide, and Suicide Postvention Train the Trainer (April 2015)

Voices Against Violence 30 hour Training (Feb./March 201 5)
Leave No Trace Master Educator (Leave No Trace Center for Outdoor Ethics and National Outdoor Leadership School),

2009

Trip Leader Training (American Canoe Association), 2008

High S Adventure Learning Center Adventure Practitioners Symposium (Brattleboro, VT), 2007

Instructor Course (National Outdoor Leadership School 35 day training), 2000

Advanced Skills and Standards Workshop (Projea Adventure 4 day training), 2002

Horse Packing Seminar (National Outdoor Leadership School), 2000

Women's Rock Seminar (National Outdoor Leadership School), 2000

Juvenile Detention Services training program (MN Department of Corrections), 1996
Time, Stress, and management training (Southwest Technical College, MN), 1996

RECOGNITIONS
Patricia A. Storer Award nominee (Plymouth State University) 2012

Distinguished Adjunct Teaching Award nominee (Plymouth State University, Office of the Provost and Vice President for
Academic Affairs) 2007

Leave No Trace Master Educator Course Scholarship recipient (Association of Outdoor Education and Recreation) 2008
Instructor Course Scholarship recipient (National Outdoor Leadership School) 2000

Certificate of Appreciation 1998 (U.S. Department of the Interior National Park Service, Great Sand Dunes National

Monument) 1998

Recognition for Research (NWBA/PVA National Basketball Camp) 1997
Most Valuable Player (University of N£ at Omaha Wheelchair Basketball Team) 1997
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1

DR. ROBERT J. MACLEOD, dha

Acute General Medical Rural Health Care, Long Term Care, and Behavioral Health Care
Executive with documented success developing managed care strategies, integrating delivery systems,

program and policy development, end improving quality and utilization management programs

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

Healthcare Executive with strengths in policy setting, project management, budget control, vendor
negotiations, HR, process improvements, program development, community outreach, and facility
expansion.

' Expert in staff training, development, and perfonnance management to meet operating and financial
go^s with extensive experience in workforce diversity, team building, and group leadership.
Process designer with extensive experience creating strategy and policy with stakeholders
contributing through a collaborative approach, cutting through departmental, industry and cultural
differences.

Health Services Strategist using LEAN Framework steering any business challenge into a process,
strategy and resource capabilities decision process with measurable objectives outcome.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

MID-STATE HEALTH CENTER. PLYMOUTH. NH JUNE 2018-

PRESENT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OCT 1 -

• Oversees the recruitment, development, performance evaluation of employees

• Oversees the business and financial affairs of the clinic an-d fiscal management

•  Enhances operational effectiveness, emphasizing cost containment without jeopardizing important
innovation or quality of care.

•  Ensures clinic compliance with all regulatory agencies governing health care delivery and the rules of
accrediting bodies.

•  Encourages clinic integration within the community through effective communication. Represents the
clinic in its relationships with other health organizations, government agencies, and third party payers.

•  Provides leadership in developing, planning, and Implementing the clinic's business plans.

•  Serves as a non-voting member of the governing board and responsible for developing and implementing
the clinic's mission and strategic plan, assists the board in developing and implementing strategic plans to
support the clinic's philosophy & goals, informs board about trends, problems and medical activities to
facilitate policy making.

CHIEF PROJECTS OFFICER JUNE - OCT I

Oversees a wide variety of projects within the organization and,identifies issues, provides solutions,
delegate tasks and monitor progress to stay on schedule and on budget.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. Concord. NH October 2002 -2018

ADMINISTRATOR, CLENCLIFF HOME (LTCF- DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SERVICES JUNE 2017-2018

Advisory rcsponsibililics to the Administrator of the Glencliff Home including policy review, regulatory
requirements, and CMS and USDOJ compliance.

•  Established various policies and procedures necessary to meet CMS and OCR compliance
•  Liaison for the State and USDOJ regarding Olmstead settlement to discharge residents to a less

restrictive venue.

•  Collaborate with clinical siafT improve the delivery of services to residents by using LEAN
methodology.

•  Collaborate with senior management identifying strategies to maintain productive employee and
union relations.

•  Assisting the Nursing Director to establish a LPN program partnering with an existing accredited
NH educational institution.

• Meet with residents to identify their needs and develop a plan for discharge to a community
setting.

•  Collaborate with activities staff identifying programs that are skill based.

CEO, NEW HAMPSHIRE HOSPITAL (DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES) JANUARY 201 1-
JUNE20I7

Responsible for overall operations including policy administration, regulatory compliance, and legislative
interaction for behavioral health serving patients in all geographical regions of the state. New Hampshire
Hospital is a Joint Commission accredited 168-bed inpatient psychiatric facility with 2500 admissions and
discharges per year, a S70M operating budget, and 630 employees and a 35 member medical staff.

Reduced operating budget by $8.5M in one year by consolidating support services and outsourcing
the management of transitional services.
Increased third-party reimbursement by facilitating timely authorizations and appeals, and using an
IPPS coding methodology.
Created a research infrastructure in collaboration with the Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth.

Initialed study to determine the percentage of patients admitted with substance use issues
Oversight of a project to facilitate the use of tele-psychiatry for underserved areas of the state with a
focus on child psychiatry- (Implementation ongoing).
Implemented a re-engineered post discharge program (Project Red). The first public-sector behavioral
hospital to do so in the country.
Implemented a patient-centered approach for the treatment of children and adolescents. Programming
addresses mental health and behavioral issues.

Enhanced co-occurring services for adolescent adult patients
Implemented Peer Support services
Collaborative agreement with Systemic-Therapcutic-Assessmcnt-Respite-Trcatment Program
(START)

Negotiated managed care contracts
Electronic Health Record (EHR),and Computerized Physician Order Entry (CPOEKImplct^cttiation
ongoing)
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Participaling in NHOHHS Health Information Exchange Implementation Project
Established lO-bed inpatient stabilization unit

DIRECTOR OF WEDICAL & FORENSIC SERVICES (NH DEPARTMENT OF
CORRECTIONS) OCTOBER 2002-2011

Direct the overall policy administration, regulatory compliance, and legislative lobbying for health and
behavioral services for A state correctional facilities and I secured psychiatric facility (forensic hospital)
with administrative oversight of 175 employees and $20M

SPEAR£ MEMORIAL HOSPITAL. Plymouth. NH (CAH)Januarv 1982-October2002

EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENTS CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER February 2000 - October
2002

Senior Operating Executive with full strategic planning and P&L management responsibility of S20M in
operating expenses accountable for all clinical, philanthropy, administrative, and support functions
eporting to the CEO.

Delivered unprecedented revenue for the Physician-Hospital Organization through building
relationships and leading negotiations with managed care organizations driving $7.SM managed care
operating revenues and $600K net revenues.
Chaired Organizational-wide Strategic Planning Committee strategically mapping and implementing
tactical action plans addressing financial, operational, and community program goals.
Authored and achieved a S34K School Dental Program Health Care Grant enabling prophylaxis and
reconstructive dental care for children in pre-school to high school.
Spearheaded a $I47K vocational grant process pannering with Plymouth Regional High School
achieving a vocational program to introduce and prepare students for careers in the health profession.
•Initiated and established Infirmary services with the local university directly increasing Emergency.
Radiology, and Laboratory services revenues by 5%.
Directed the full-scale design and development of 2 new physician office buildings on lime and under
budget.
Chaired and Member of hospital committees including Pharmacy and Therapeutic, Infection Control,
Board ofTrustees, Safety, Quality Improvement, and Leadership.

ASSOCIATE ADMINISTRATOR September 1995 - February 2000
Directed the daily operations and strategic planning of programs for the Nursing Department, Social
Services, Pharmacy, Materials Management, Facilit)' Services, Food and Nutritional Services, Public
Relations, and Community Wellness.

DIRECTOR, SUPPORT SERVICES January 1982-September 1995

ADDITIONAL EXPERIENCE

PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY, PLYMOUTH, NH
ADJUNCT PROFESSOR

CEISEL (DARTMOUTH) SCHOOL OF MEDICINE

ADJUNCT PROFESSOR

1999-

2014
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ACADEMIC EXPERIENCE

DHA, DOCTOR OF HEALTH ADMINISTRATION & POLICY (2003)
MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA Charleston. SO
Doctoral Project: Perspective of Hospital ChiefExecutive or Chief Operaiine OfTicers Recardinv the
Hospital Accreditation and Ceriiricaiion Process

Honors Society

MASTERS - BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (1996)
PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE Plymouih, NH

as, INTERDISCIPLINARY pEGREE - POLITICAL SCIENCE & BUSINESS MANAGEMENT
(1994)
PLYMOUTH STATE COLLEGE Plymouth, NH
Su/nma Cum Laude

ASSOCIATES IN ARTS-ACCOUNTING (1986)
NORTH SHORE COMMUNITY COLLEGE Beverly, MA

ASSOCIATIONS

•  President, Board of Directors, Mid-State Health Clinic (FQHC)
•  Fellow, American College of Health Care Executives
•  Former Member, Governor's Task Force on Certificate of Need Reform
•  Past Chair and Member, Town of Thornton School Board

•  Past Vice-Chair and Member, Pemi-Baker Regional High School Board
• Member, Waterville Valley Chamber of Commerce and Plymouth Chamber of Commerce
• Member, New Hampshire Charitable Foundation.
•  Member, New Hampshire Mental Health Commission and New Hampshire Suicide Council.
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101 Boulder Point Drive, Suite 1
Plymouth. NH 03264

<603) 536*4000

William Sweeney

Objective Seeking a challenging and rewarding job in finance and
accounting within a medical office context.

Education 5/1997 ^ Plymouth State College Plymouth, NH
Bachelor's of Science in Accounting

■ Graduated Cum Laude with a 3.33 GPA on a 4.0 scale.

• Minor in Mathematics

8/2013 Plymouth State University Plymouth. NH

Master's Degree In Business Administration

• Graduate Certificate in Health Care Administration

Professional 1/1997-Present Mid-State Health Center Plymouth, NH

experience Chief Financial Officer

• Prepare financial statements, budgets, grant
management, reconcile bank account and compile
clinician productivity which is used to calculate their salary.
Experience with billing office and hospital charges for PCP
office, management of employees, use of MS Office and
MSSQL

Chief Information Officer

• Supervse IT staff and work with contracted IT Company to
make sure system is up-to-date, performing as needed
and current hardware and software are working.
Collaborate on future goals and needs as well as IT/IS
projects.

References Available upon request.
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WENDY LASCH-WILLIAMS

Executive Profile

Dynamic advancement professional with extensive project management experience from concept to
implementation in the health care and non-profit environments. A highly-committed project leader with an
energetic personality, collatx}rative nature, the proven ability to positively inspire others. Talents include
identifying opportunities for growth; fund development; and implementing strategies to attain organization goals.

Skills Highlight

• Fund Development * Marketing & Brand Development
• Change Management • Team-oriented Leadership
• Community Engagement ♦ Skilled Facilitator

Professional Experience

DIRECTOR OF ADVANCEMENT & COMMUNICATIONS 10/2010 to Current

Mid-State Health Center Plymouth, NH
•  Established goals, objectives, and plans for advancement initiatives resulting in funding awards from private

foundations, the State of New Hampshire, and Health Resources Services Administration and other funders.
•  Lead and Implement key initiatives at the local, state and national level which result in new revenue streams.
•  Initiate and implement key communication strategies to improve public image and patient relations.
•  Executed successful branding and marketing strategies.
•  Resolved internal and external organizational communication challenges
•  Facilitated the Patient Expert Advisory Team to ensure the patient perspective is considered as part of the

organization's decision-making process
•  Cultivated relationships with Board of Directors, funders. legislative representatives and community partners

to further the mission of the organization.
•  Managed annual fund reporting for private foundations and state and federal grants totaling over a $i million

dollars each year.
•  Created a tool to analyze and assess the alignment of potential funding opportunities with the mission of the

organization.
•  Prepared submissions for major grant funding opportunities with a high rate of funding success.
•  Established several strategies to improve organizational culture.
•  Played a key role In the opening of a new facility including planning, proposal for funding, purchasing and

launch.

ADVANCEMENT & OUTREACH COORDINATOR 10/2010 to 07/2011

Communities for Alcohol and Drug-free Youth, Inc. Plymouth, NH

•  Provided contracted advancement and outreach support to CADY, Inc.
•  Conducted community-based outreach efforts as well as marketing and promotion of programs and

activities.

•  Launched a highly-successful fundraising event which is now an annual event for the organization.
•  Conducted development activities including grant research and writing resulting in new funding
•  opportunities.

ASSISTANT COORDINATOR 10/2008 to 03/2010

Greater Plymouth Public Health Network Plymouth, NH

•  Developed and supported implementation of a community outreach strategy for the regional public health
emergency activities related to H1N1 which laid the foundation for future public health initiatives.

•  Coordinated,' promoted and implemented vaccination clinics in the Region.
•  Engaged regional municipalities, health organizations, and other stakeholders to ensure successful

implementation of the project.
•  This public health outreach project required a high level of stakeholder engagement in a short amount of

time. The region's efforts were identified as one of the most successful in the State.
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ASSISTANT DIRECTOR 10/2007 to 03/2009

Belknap County Core Coalition Meredith. NH

•  Successfully developed and Implemented a variety of public relations and multi-media marketing initiatives
•  to expand Coalition membership and increase member collaboration and participation.
•  Facilitated, coordinated and led youth activities related to Coalition initiatives.

PRINCIPAUOWNER , 06/2006 to 10/2010

All That Matters, LLC Bristol. NH

«  Provided fundraising and administrative support for area non-profit organization.
•  Guided local municipality in the development of their Local Emergency Operations Plan.
•' Conducted contracted family and marital mediation and court-appointed Guardian ad Litem services.

PROGRAM YOUTH SPECIALIST 10/2004 to 06/2007

Franklin High School Franklin, NH

•  Implemented the School-to-Work curriculum, teaching employment skills, practical math and reading skills,
self-awareness skills, and life skills to high school students.

•  Coordinated support services, leadership events, community service projects, job shadowing, and work-
based learning opportunities.

TUTOR/PROGRAM ASSISTANT 08/2003 to 09/2004

Laconia Out of School Youth Program Laconia, NH
•  Implemented the national Jobs for America's Graduates curriculum, teaching employment skills, self-

awareness skills, and life skills to out of school youth.
•  Assisted in the planning and implementation of leadership activities, community service projects, and field

(rips.

ASSISTANT TO THE SUPERINTENDENT - Finarice 03/2000 to 06/2001

Newfound Area School District Bristol, NH

•  Acted as liaison to the Superintendent in special projects such as capital improvement projects, equipment
•  purchasing, annual maintenance contracts and building maintenance projects.
•  Monitored and managed general ledger entries for $14 million budget to ensure fiscal responsibility across

the organization.
•  Managed and implemented a successful conversion to new accounting software.
•  Processed bi-weekly payroll for 300-r employees and accounts payable for ISO^- vendors.
•  Started with the organization in 1997 as administrative support and was promoted to Assistant to the

Superintendent.

Education
MBA; Healthcare Administration. 2014 Plymouth State University. Plymouth. NH

Bachelor of Science: Human Services Administration. 2010 Granite State College. Concord, NH

Certificate Program; Mediation and Conflict Management, 2002 Woodbury College. Montpelier. VT

Associate of Science; Business Management, 1990 Champlain College. Burlington. VT

Interests

Stand-up paddle boarding, running and reading.

Professional Affiliations
Member & President (2015-16). Bristol Rotary Club (2011 - present)

Member. Medical Group Management Association of NH (2011 • present)

Member. Medical Group Management Association (2011 - present)

Additional Information
Active member of the Tapply-Thompson Community Center Board and NH Marathon committee. Instrumental in

the addition of a children's race as part of the NH Marathon. Co-hosted a regionally popular public access television
production to highlight interesting activities in the Newfound community for two seasons (12 +/- episodes).
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SAMANTHA HOOPERl

Objective

Efl'icicni Uusincss Administruiion major currently studying at Plyniotilh Stale Univcrsiiy with six years of work experience.

Aiming to leverage a proven knowledge of assisted living and acute care skills to fuinil a hcalihcarc management role.

Education

D.S. Business Admtnisiraiion and Professional Contmunicafions

Plymouth State University Plymouth. NH 03264 Expected Graduation Date; May 2020

Experience

Public Health Advisory Council and Communications Coordinator • Mid-State Health Center * 08/20i9-Currcnt

Develop, implcinem. and monitor PHAC workplaiis in alignment with slate goals; assist council in
completing conlmct and grant deliverables: develop relationships with key community stakeholders

Executive Intern • Meredith Bay Colony Club • 06/2019- 10/2019

Electronic medical record conversion; senior housing focused marketing: onboardlng nursing for
electronic medication charting; organizing and filing: supporting senior management team with day-to
day operations

Activities Assistant • Meredith Bay Colony Club * 02/2019-10/2019

Organize, lead, atid promote recreational activities; Confer with management to discuss, patient
complaints; Maintain attendance forms and inventory lists

Life Skills Facilitator • Rose Meadow Group • 10/2015 • 02/2019
Provide physical support to assist patients to perform daily living activities; Communicate with patients
to ascertain feelings or need for assistance and emotional support

Key Skills

lntcri)crsonol Co/tinninicatloiis Tune Manofieincni Sales

Planning Problem Solving

Microsoft Office

Adobe Acrobat

Organization

Awards and Acknowledgements

Member of Phi Kappa Phi Honor Society

Member of Delta Mu Delta Honor Society

Cilisenship A ward

President ofNational Honor Society

Recipient of Rebecca Parish Memorial Scholarship

for excellence in Business

Fuiure Business Leader of the Year presented by the

Souhegan Volley Chamber ofCommerce

May 2019-May 2020

May 2019-May 2020

June 2016

September 20N-June 2016

May 20IS

June 2015
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KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Mid-State Health Center

Name of Program: Regional Public Health Network Services

'  BUDGET PERIOD: SFY2P'V.. ■ - ■■■ " ■- L-;:
-'-'v "•• ••; ■ PSRCENY.PAID -fAMOUNT.PAID /

•  1. : i ' i from-this . FROM THIS

NAME 7: 'JOB TITLE' .. /■SALARY .. vi -CONTRACT ■ CONTRACT

Ansel Ekstrom PHN Coordinator $62,558 100.00% $62,558.00.
Roben M&cLeod CEO $180,000 0.50% .  $900.00-

Bill Sweeney CFO $130,739 1.75% $2,392.93
Wendy Lasch-Willioms Grants & Programming Director $88,400 1.00% S884.00
Samantha Hooper PHAC Coordinator $25,000 100.00% ; , $25;aoo.oo.,

$0 0.00% ■  . $a:oo-
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salatv Wages, Line item 1 of Budget request) $91,734.93'

BUDGET.PERIOD:? • .SFY:/21 --'V. ■;
• '.'i •• •• PERGENT.PAID AMOUNT PAID i
\U. f . • ; • ■ ' i ; ! . • .  : FROM-THIS FROM THIS
NAME. JOB'tITLE Ji-.V I.: SALARY. .CONTRACT CONTRACT '
Ansel Ekstrom PHN Coordinator $64,435 100.00% $64;435i00
Robert MacLeod CEO $185,400 0.05% ■-.$92.70

Bill Sweeney CFO $140,841 1.75% : $2;464.72
Wendy Lasch>Wi]liBms Grants & Programming Director $91,052 1.00% '  ■ . . /S91Q.52

Samantha Hooper PHAC Coordinator . $25,000 100.00% $25,000.00

$0 0.00% .'$0.00
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Waqes, Lino Item 1 of Budget request) $92,902.94
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U5 to the Regional Public Health Network Services Contract

This 5^ Amendment to the Regional Public Health Network Sen/ices contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #5") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and North County Health Consortium
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit, with a place of business at 262 Cottage St, Suite
230 Littleton, NH 03561.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019, (Item #78E), as amended on February 5, 2020, (Item #7), as amended on May 6, 2020
(Item # 47), as approved by the Governor on July 10, 2020, as presented to the Executive Council as an
Informational Item on August 26, 2020 (Item #L), and as approved by the Governor on MM/DD/YYYY,
which will be presented to the Executive Council as an Informational Item , the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified: and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of sen/ices to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$809,637.

2. Modify Exhibit B-1, Program Funding, Amendment #4 by deleting it in its entirety and replacing it
with Exhibit B-1 Program Funding, Amendment #5, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

3. Modify Exhibit B-13, Young Adult Strategies. SFY 2021, Amendment #1, by replacing it in its
entirety with Exhibit B-13, Young Adult Strategies, SFY 2021, Amendment #5, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

North County Health Consortium Amendment #5 Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-10-A05 Page 1 of 3 DateJ^^^^^^^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #5
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be retroactively effective to October 1, 2020 upon
the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

11/12/2020

Date

—OopiiSigned by

■ D938DBFB6CAS4A0..

Name: Lisa Morris

Title: Director

11/12/2020

Date

North County Health Consortium

-"DocuSfgntd by;

■ ?-»Bdnar7F«afmin

Name: Becky McEnany

Title:
Interim CEO

North County Health Consortium

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-10-A05

Amendment #5

Page 2 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Regional Public Health Network Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DocuSlgntd by:

11/13/2020

DSCAe?0?E3?C4AE

Date Name:'^2thenne Pinos
Title:

Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

North County Health Consortium Amendment #5

SS-2019-DPHS-28-REGION-10-A05 Page 3 of 3
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^Ofram fwndli^ Amandmanl f S

Vtndor Nama: North Country Haalth Conaortlum
Contract Nama: Raglonal Public Haalth Natwork Sarvlcaa
Raglon: North Country

Ptopram Nama and Funding Amounti

tata Fiscal Ya< Immunization

Public Haalth

Advisory
Council

Public Haalth

Cmargancy
Praparadnass

Public Haalth

Crisis

Rasponsa

Madical

Rasarva

Corps.

Subslanca

Misusa

Pravantion

Continuum oi

Cara

Young Adult
Substanca

MIsua

Pravantioln

Strataglas'

School-Basad

Vaccination

Clinics

Childhood

Laad

Poisoning
Pravantion

Community
Assassmant

Hapatltis A

Vaccination

Cilnlcs

2019 $ S $ S S $ S $  1.200.00 $  10.000.00

2020 $  30.000.00 $  66.550.00 $  50.000.00 $  10.000.00 i  77.466.00 $ 40.561.00 S  90.000.00 $  15.000.00 $  14,892.00 $  10.000.00

2021 $  10,000.00 S  30.000.00 $  86.550.00 S  10.000.00 S  77.C68.00 S  40.560.00 S  90.000.00 S  15.000.00 $10,306 $

i 809.637.00

Henh toatinww

( An»

IS JOl* O'Ht'?! «6I0N.10

CoMrM(«r Mul»'

11/12/2020
CeWKlor:
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Exhibit B-13, A/n«ndm*nl 0 5
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on October 05,

1998. 1 further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's oftkc have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 301456

Certificate Number: 0004879131

Ojs

%

A*

B&.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affi.xed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Michael Lee; hereby certify that;

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of North Country Health Consortium.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 10, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That the Chief Executive Officer and/or Board President Is duly authorized on behalf of North Country
Health Consortium to enter into contracts or agreements with the Slate of New Hampshire and any of its agencies
or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

Becky McEnany is the duly appointed Interim Chief Executive Officer of North Country Health Consortium.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
positlon(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

Signature
Name: Michael Lee
Title: Board President

lature of Elected Officer

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MWOOrYYYY)

02/24/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcyllee) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to tho terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate docs not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

Geo M Stevens & Son Co

149 Main Street

Lancaster NH 03564

NAME*^^ Patricia Bigeiow-Emery
(603)788-2555 (603)788-3901

A00RE8S: Ps^ieryQgms-ins.com
INSURERISIAPFORDINO COVERAGE NAIC«

INSURER A; Philadelphia Insurance Co
INSURED

North Country Health Consortium Inc

262 Cottage Street, Suite 230

Littleton NH 03561

INSURERS: United Financial Casualty Co. 11770

INSURER c : Western Alliance Insurance Company

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURERP:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER; CL201211615 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSUR/^NCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO VWICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAJMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

AUUL

IN8D
SUBR

WVP POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EPF

(MM/DO/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

{MM/ODrrYYYl LIMITS

A

>< COMMERCULOENERALUABIUTY

€ 1 OCCUR

PHPK2057544 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1,000.000

CUUMS-MAC

DAMAUE TUKLNIbU
PRFMISF.S rFe ftficunw*e1

1 100.000

MEO EXP [Any one oeracn)
, 5.000

PERSONAL a ADV INJURY
, 1,000,000

GEN-L AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE , 2.000,000

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 I LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS ■ COMPfOP AGO
, 2,000,000

Professional Liability % 2.000,000

B

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY

00263832-1 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

COMBINED SinGl^ LiUrf
(Pa acdrtantl

t 1,000,000

ANY AUTO

HEDULEO
rros
>N-OWNEO
TOSONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par perian) t

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X
8C BOOLY injury (Per acddon!) s

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPereixhtnnit

s

Uninsured motorist ( 1,000,000

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMSJilAOE
PHUB699475 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

EACHOCa)RR?l«E , 4,000,000

AGGREGATE $

DED X RETENTION S ^6,000 s

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIA8IUTY y, ̂
AMY PROPRIETORff'ARTNe/VGXeCUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMaeR EXaUDEO? | ' |
(Mandatory In NH)
If vM. daacrlba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS balow

N/A 01-0000114897-02 01/01/2020 01/01/2021

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E-L.EACHACaOENT
, 100,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE , 100,000

6.L. DISEASE • POLICY UMIT
, 500,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS 1 LOCATIONS t VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltlonil Rotnirkt Schaduls, may tw attacliad If tnora apaca la raqulrad)

Health Consortium

NH VUorkers Compensation-excluded officers are Michael Lee. Edward Shanshela II, Karen VAtoods

NH Dept of Health & Human Services Office of the Commissioner

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

ACORD25 (2016/03) Tho ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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NORTH COUNTRY
HEALTH CONSORTIUM

North Country Health Consortium Mission Statement:

T(0 lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region."

The North Country Health Consortium (NCHC) is a non-profit S01(c)3 rural health network,

created in 1997, as a vehicle for addressing common issues through collaboration among health

and human service providers serving Northern New Hampshire.

NCHC is engaged in activities for:

•  Solving common problems and facilitating regional solutions

•  Creating and facilitating services and programs to improve population health status

•  Health professional training, continuing education and management services

to encourage sustainability of the health care infrastructure

•  Increasing capacity for local public health essential services

•  Increasing access to health care for underserved and uninsured residents of Northern

New Hampshire.

262 Cottage Street, Suite 230, Littleton, NH 03561

Phone: 603-259-3700; Fax: 603-444-0945
wmv.nchcnh.otv • nclicO.nchcnh.ors!
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A.M. PEISQH 4C0M*PANY, LLP
± \\r^iLX

jL since 1020

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

AMP
I. SINCE 1020
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A,M. PEIS%|\cpj4-PANY, LLP
SINCE lOiO

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

& BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
Littleton, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements
of financial position as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of
activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses, and cash fiows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

401 Water Tower Circle 27 Center Street 30 Congress Street 1020 Memorial Drive 24 Airport Road, Suite 402
Suite302 P. 0. Box 326 Suiie201 St. Johnsbiuy. VT 05819 West Lebanon,NH 03784
Colchester, VT 05446 Rutland, VT 05702 St. Albans, VT 05478 (802) 748-5654 (603) 306-0100
(802)654-7255 (802) 773-2721 (802) 527-0505
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary as of September
30, 2018 and 2017, and the changes in its net assets, functional e.xpenses, and its cash flows for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26, 2019
on our consideration of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>''s internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and conipliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiar>''s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering North Country
Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

St. Albans, Vermont

March 26, 2019

VT Reg. No. 92-0000102
Ct.yi, Pjl^U (

- 2-
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net

Grants and contracts

Dental services

Certificates of deposit

Prepaid expenses

Restricted cash - IDN

$ 687.847 3

966.962

898

126.065

21.356

1,987,216

;  1,075.410

548.391

864

125,540

9,960

1,021,388

Total current assets 3.790.344 2.781.553

Property and equipment;
Computers and equipment

Dental equipment

Furnitures and fixtures

Vehicles

Accumulated depreciation

147.392

32.808

30.045

18.677

(170,735)

147.392

32.808

30,045

18,677

(137,253)

Propertv and equipment, net 58,187 91.669

Other assets

Restricted cash - IDN 800.000 1.200.000

Total other assets 800.000 1.200.000

Total assets $ 4,648.531 3;  4,073,222

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Accrued wages and related liabilities
Deferred revenue

$ 396.039 3

8.983

265.717

1,854.420

;  105,345

6,921

154.454

1,185,265

Total current liabilities 2,525.159 1,451,985

Long-term liabilities
Deferred revenue ■ Long term portion 800.000 1,200.000

Total long-tcnn liabilities 800.000 1.200.000

Total liabilities 3.325.159 2.651.985

Net assets

Unrestricted 1,323,372 1,421,237

Total net assets 1,323.372 1,421,237

Total liabilities and ncl assets $ 4.648.531 3;  4.073.222

See accompanying notes.

-3-
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANCES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

See accompanying notes.

2018 2017

Support:

Grant and contract revenue

Revenue:

Dental patient revenue

Fees for programs and services

Interest income

Other income

Total revenue

Total support and revenue

Program expenses:

Workforce

Public health

Molar

CSAP

Total program expenses

Management and general

Total expenses

Gain (loss) on sale of property and equipment

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, beginning of the year

NET ASSETS, end of the year

$  5.017,825

101.092

1 ,455,860

6,085

12,766

1.575,803

6,593,628

3.263,756

198,719

219,335

2,524,655

6,206,465

485,028

6.691,493

(97,865)

1 ,421,237

S  1,323,372

S  3,493,136

121,784

100,602

5,554

2,594

230,534

3,723,670

2,011,463

165,268

279,213

772,056

3,228,000

275,938

3,503,938

(1,146)

218,586

1,202,651

$  1,421,237

• 4.



DocuSign Env*k>p* 10: 373l£eS7-F32a-4CSA-BO3F-4eCDB2B1CO0S

NORTH COUNTRY IIKAI.TH CONSORTIUM. INC. A.VD SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATE.ME.NT Of KUNCTIONAL HXPE.NSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTE.MBEK 30. 20IS

.Marugemeru t;

Workforce Public Health .Mobr CSAP Total Program General Total

Pmonnel:

Sabfic* %  987,365 5 115.572 8  112,796 S  1,480,317 8  2.696,050 8  281,983 8  2.978,033

Payroll uxes and employee benefits I8S,-I92 20,750 21,938 26l,.323 489,503 48,518 538,021

Subtotal 1.172,857 136,322 134,734 1,741,640 3.185,553 330,501 3.516,054

Site expenses:

Computer fees 16.218 1,186 3.392 18,846 39.642 3,161 42,803

Medical and phamiacy supplies, MOA I.6I0.2I2 36.431 55.217 327,270 2.029,130 4,967 2.034,097

Orfice supplies I7.3N 2,634 448 64,899 85.295 30,617 115.912

Food 58,405 58,405 . 58.405

Subtotal 1.643,744 40.251 59,057 469.420 2,212,472 38,745 2.251,217

Gcnml:

Dad debts 12.847 ,  12,847 • 12,847

Depreciation 6,869 6,869 26,613 33,482

Dues and memberships 203,919 59 76 4,877 208,931 8,658 217,589

Education and training 2,108 140 1,050 3,298 45 3,343

Etiuipmeni and maintertance 22.299 544 3,787 26,630 2,420 29,050

Kent and occupancy 51.842 5,628 6,099 115.769 179,338 20,556 199,894

Ituurance ' 5.364 972 1,173 7,156 14.665 5,016 19,681

Miscellaneout 219 7,732 7.951 7.951

Payroll processing fees 150 50 694 894 9,105 9,999

Postage 1.646 168 178 1.635 3.627 313 3.940

Printing 4.208 366 1,175 4,330 10,079 1,756 11,835

Professional fees 26,047 1,000 2,797 38.573 68,417 19,353 87,770

Training fees and supplies 53,602 914 1,000 20,548 76,064 4,758 80.822

Travel 47.224 2,806 1,475 54,798 106,303 8,423 114,726

Telephone 10.222 1,116 501 12,348 24,187 1,327 25.514

Vehicle exjicnse 3,298 31 3,329 497 3.826

Event facility fees 18,524 9,067 27,420 55.01 1 6.942 61.953

Subioul 447.155 22,146 25.544 313,595 808.440 115.782 924.222

Ttxal expertses $  3.263.756 S 198,719 J  219.335 $  2.524.655 8  6.206.465 8  485.028 8  6,691.493

See iccompanying now*.
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NORTH COUNTRY iilCvXLTH CONSORTIUM. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOUIDATED STATE.MENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE VE,\R ENDED SKPI'E.MBER 30.2017

Management &
Workforce Public Health Molar CSAP Total Proaram General Toliil

Personnel:

Salaries S  902,285 S 72.003 8  141.659 S  271,561 S  1.387,508 S  131.822 $  1.519.330
Payroll ta.xes and employee benefits 158,395 12.821 26.335 46,652 244,203 19.635 263.838

Subtotal 1.060,680 84.824 167,994 318,213 I.63I.7II 151,457 1,783.168

Site expenses;

Computer fees 17.098 1.570 5,135 4,920 28,723 1.698 30.421
Medical and pharmacy supplies. MOA 673.678 61.473 70,399 354,919 1.160,469 2,212 1.162.681

Office supplies 17.744 2.588 1,407 9.570 31,309 15.415 46,724
Subtotal 708.520 65.63! 76.941 369,409 1.220,501 19,325 1.239,826

General:

Depreciation . 7.095 7.095 23.114 30,209

Dues and memberships 5,185 35 9 9,871 15.100 8.547 23.647

Education and training 4,635 150 1,514 1,730 8.029 8.558 16.587
Equipment and maintenance 270 468 - 738 1.727 2.465

Rent and occupancy 39.647 3.279 6.881 11.180 60.987 4.709 65.696

Insurance 5.712 944 1.60! 1.609 9.866 582 10.448

.Miscellaneous . - . - 5.817 5.817,
Payroll processing fees

- - 592 502 5.717 6.309

Postage 2.007 146 348 722 3.223 606 3,820

Printing 3.805 67! 1.506 5.276 11.258 426 II,684

Professional fees 27.639 1.601 4.872 11.800 46.002 28.030 74,041
Training fees and supplies 84.505 667 407 9,604 05.273 1.462 06,735
Travel 48.119 3.885 3,585 27,635 83,224 8.070 02.203
Telephone 10,398 1.040 975 2.105 14.518 623 15.141
Vehicle e.xpense • 5,017 800 5,817 . 5.817

Event facility fees 10,341 2.395 . 1,330 14.066 6.250 20,316
Subtotal 242.263 14.813 34,278 84.434 375.788 105.156 480,944

Total expenses S  2.011.463 S 165.268 i  279.213 S  772.056 S  3.228.000 $  275.938 $  3.303.938

S«e accompanying notes.

-6-
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2018 AND 2017

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $ (97.865) $ 218.586

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 33.482 30,209

(Gain)/loss on sale of propert)' and equipment - 1,146

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable - Grants and contracts (418,571) (207,861)

Accounts receivable • Dental seiA'ices (34) 8,420

Prepaid expenses (1 1.396) 25,366

Restricted cash - IDN (565,828) 191.847

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable 290,694 42.240

Accrued expenses 2.062 (987)

Accrued wages and related liabilities 1 1 1,263 57,073

Deferred revenue 269,155 (194,604)

See accompanying notes.

- 7-

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (374,191) 171,435

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Reinvestment of certificates of deposit interest

Purchases of property and equipment

(525) (520)

(81,350)

Net cash used by investing activities (525) (81,870)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Beginning cash and cash equivalents

(374,716)

1,075,410

89,565

985,845

Ending cash and cash equivalents S  700,694 $ 1,075,410



DocuSign Envelope ID; 2731EB97-F328-4C5A-803F-48CDB2B1C005

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of activities

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (NCHC) (the Organization) is a not-for-profit
health center chartered under the laws of the State of New Hampshire. The Organization's mission is to
lead innovative collaboration to improve the health status of the region. NCHC is engaged in promoting
and facilitating access to services and programs that improve the health status of the area population,
provide health training and educational opportunities for healthcare purposes, and provide region-wide
dental services for an underserved and uninsured residents.

Effective October I, 2017, the Organization assumed the operations of Friendship House, an outpatient
drug and alcohol treatment facility and program from Tri County Community Action Program.

The Organization's wholly owned subsidiary. North Country ACO (the ACO). is a non-profit 501(c)(3)
charitable corporation formed in December 201 1. This entity was formed as an accountable care
organization (ACO) with its purpose to support the programs and activities of the ACO participants to
improve the overall health of their respective populations and communities. A nominal cash balance
remains and activities have ceased.

The Organization's primaiy programs are as follows;

Network and Workforce Activities - To provide workforce education programs and promote oral health
initiatives for the Organization's dental services.

Public Health and CSAP - To conduct community substance abuse prevention activities, coordination of
public health networks, and promote community emergency response plan.

Dental Sen'ices and Molar - To sustain a program offering oral health services for children and low
income adults in northern New Hampshire.

Following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and e.xpenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless
of the measurement focus applied.

The Organization uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when susceptible to accrual, i.e., measurable and earned. Measurable refers to the ability to
quantify in monetary temis the amount of the revenue and receivable. Expenses are recognized when they
become liable for payment.

Principles of consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary. North Country ACO. All inter-company transactions
and balances have been eliminated in consolidation,
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Note I. Nature of Activities and Summar}' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of risk

The Organization's operations are affected by various risk factors, including credit risk and risk from
geographic concentration and concentrations of funding sources. Management attempts to manage risk by
obtaining and maintaining revenue funding from a variety of sources. A substantial portion of the
Organization's activities are funded through grants and contracts with private, federal, and state agencies.
As a result, the Organization may be vulnerable to the consequences of change in the availability of
funding sources and economic policies at the agency level. The Organization generally does not require
collateral to secure its receivables.

Revenue recognition

Below are the revenue recognition policies of the Organization;

Dental Patient Revenue

Dental services are recorded as revenue within the fiscal year related to the service period.

Grant and Contract Revenue

Grants and contracts are recorded as revenue in the period they are earned by satisfaction of grant or
contract requirements.

Fees for Programs and Ser\'ices
Fees for programs and services are recorded as revenue in the period the related services were performed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Restricted cash - IDN

Restricted cash - IDN consists of advanced funding received from The State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services for the Integrated Delivery Network program (IDN). The
original advance of funds of $2,000,000 is to be used to fund the Organization's cost of administering the
IDN over a period of five years, beginning in fiscal year 2017. The remaining balance is to be distributed
to participants.

-9-
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Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summar}' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

For the years ending September 30, 2018 and 2017, these amounts were restricted as follows:

2018 2017

Administration fee to the Organization $ 1,200,000 $ 1,600,000

Distributions to participants 1.587,216 621,388

$  2,787,216 S 2,221,388

Accounts receivable

The Organization has receivable balances due from dental services provided to individuals and from
grants and contracts received from federal, state, and private agencies. Management reviews the
receivable balances for collectability and records an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical
information, estimated contractual adjustments, and current economic trends. Management considers the
individual circumstances when determining the collectability of past due amounts. Balances that are still
outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to
earnings and a credit to accounts receivable. Any collection fees or related costs are expensed in the year
incurred. The Organization recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated contractual
adjustments for dental service of $598 and $7,776 as of September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and
an allowance for doubtful accounts for grants and contracts of $12,847 and $0 as of September 30, 2018
and 2017, respectively. The Organization does not charge interest on its past due accounts, and collateral
is generally not required.

Certificates of deposit

The Organization has three certificates of deposit that may be withdrawn without penalty with one
financial institution. These certificates carry original terms of 12 months to 24 months, have interest rates
ranging from .40% to .55%, and mature at various dates through February 2020.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The Organization generally
capitalizes property and equipment with an estimated useful life in excess of one year and installed costs
over $2,500. Lesser amounts are generally expensed. Purchased property and equipment is capitalized at
cost.

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method using the following ranges of
estimated useful lives:

Computers and equipment 3-7 years
Dental equipment 5-7 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Vehicles 5 years

1

Depreciation expense totaled $33,482 and $30,209 for the years ended September 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

- 10-
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Note 1. Nature of Activities and Summar>' of SigniHcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue is related to advance payments on grants or advance billings relative to anticipated
expenses or events in future periods. The revenue is realized when the expenses are incurred or as
services are provided in the period earned.

Net assets

The Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activity according
to three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted net assets.

Unrestricted net assets - consist of unrestricted amounts that are available for use in carrying out the
mission of the Organization.

Temporarily restricted net assets - consist of those amounts that are donor restricted for a specific
purpose. When a donor restriction expires, either by the passage of a stipulated time restriction or by the
accomplishment of a specific purpose restriction, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.
The Organization has elected, however, to show those restricted contributions whose restrictions are met
in the same reporting period as they are received as unrestricted support. The Organization had no
temporarily restricted net assets at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Permanently restricted net assets - result from contributions from donors who place restrictions on the
use of donated funds mandating that the original principal remain invested in perpetuit>'. The
Organization had no permanently restricted net assets at September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Income taxes

The Organization and the AGO are exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Code and are not classified as private foundations. However, income from certain
activities not directly related to the Organization's tax-exempt purpose is subject to taxation as unrelated
business income. The Organization had no unrelated business income activity subject to taxation for the
year ended September 30; 2018.

The Organization had adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 740-10. FASB ASC 740-10 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attributable for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition. Based on management's evaluation, management has concluded that there were no significant
uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in the financial statements at September 30, 2018.

Although the Organization is not currently the subject of a tax examination by the Internal Revenue
Service or the State of New Hampshire, the Organization's tax years ended September 30, 2015 through
September 30, 2018 are open to examination by the taxing authorities under the applicable statue of
limitations.
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Note I. Nature of Activities and Summar>' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Functional expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the Statement of Activities. Expenses are charged to programs based on direct expenses incurred and
certain costs, including salaries and fringe benefits, are allocated to the programs and supporting services
based upon related utilization and benefit.

Implementation of new accounting pronouncements

Management is reviewing the following Accounting Standards Updates (ASU) issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board, which are effective for future years, for possible implementation and to
determine their effect on the Organization's financial reporting.

ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from Contrads with Cusiomers. This ASU includes new revenue
measurement and recognition guidance, as well as required additional disclosures. The ASU is effective
for annual reporting beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual
reporting beginning after December 15, 2019. The effect of this ASU has not been quantified.

ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic.842). This ASU requires lessees to recognize the following for all
leases (with the exception of short-term leases) at the commencement date; (1) a lease liability, which is
the lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis; and
(2) a right-of-use asset which is an asset that represents the lessee's right to use, or control the use of, a
specified asset for the lease term. For short-term leases (term of twelve months or less), a lessee is
permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease assets
and lease liabilities. If a lessee makes the election, it should recognize lease expense for such leases
generally on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The ASU is effective for annual periods, and
interim reporting periods within those annual periods, beginning after December 15, 2019. The effect of
this ASU has not been quantified.

ASU No. 2016-14, Not-For-Proftt Entities: Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities. The ASU was issued to improve reporting by not-for-profit entities in the areas of net asset
classifications and information provided about liquidity. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018.
This ASU will increase disclosures in the Organization's financial statements.

ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows: Restricted Cash. This ASU clarifies how to report restricted
cash in the statement of cash flows. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. This ASU will have
minimal effect on the Organization's financial statements.

- 12-
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Note 2. Cash Concentrations

The Organization maintains cash balances at two financial institutions. Their bank accounts at the
institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000 per financial
institution. The Organization's cash balances exceeded federally insured limits by $14,600 at September
30, 2018. The Organization has not experienced any losses with these accounts. Management believes the
Organization is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash as of September 30, 2018.

The Organization attempts to manage credit risk relative to cash concentrations by utilizing "sweep"
accounts. The Organization maintains ICS Sweep accounts that invest cash balances in other financial
institutions at amounts that do not exceed FDIC insurable limits. All cash at these institutions is held in

interest-bearing money market accounts. Interest rates on these balances ranged from .10% to .15% as of
September 30, 2018.

Note 3. Operating Leases

The Organization leases office space in Littleton, NH under a three year operating lease that expires in
October 2020. The Organization has the option to renew the lease for two additional years.

In October 2017, the Organization assumed the operations of Friendship House, an outpatient drug and

alcohol treatment facility and program. The Organization leases the premises under a five-year operating

lease that expires March 2023, with monthly rent and CAM fee payments of $19,582. The CAM fee
portion is to be adjusted annually. Since the inception of the lease, the agreement has been verbally and
mutually amended to allow the Organization to pay actual expenses, such as utilities, repairs, mortgage,

CAM, etc., in lieu of the $19,582 monthly payment.

In addition, the Organization leases satellite offices in Berlin, NH, Tamworth, NH, Woodsville, NH,

North Conway, NH, and Conway, NH under month-to-month operating lease agreements.

Future minimum rental payments under lease commitments are as follows:

Year Ended September 30,

" 2019 $ 160,297

2020 163,41 1

2021 65,431

2022 56,500

2023 28,250

Thereafter

473,889

Lease expense for the aforementioned leases was 5132,746 and $62,100 for the years ended September
30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

- 13-
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\

Note 4. Deferred Revenue

The summary of the components of deferred revenue as of September 30, are as follows;

2018 2017

Deferred Revenue-1DN $ 2,387,744 $ 2,215,782

Deferred Revenue- Other 266,676 169,483

Total $ 2,654,420 $ 2,385,265

Deferred revenue - IDN

Under the terms of an agreement between the Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services (CMS) and the

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, various Integrated Delivery
Networks (IDN) are to be established within geographic regions across the slate to develop programs to
transform New Hampshire's behavioral health delivery system by strengthening community-based mental
health and substance use disorder services and programs to combat the opioid crisis. The Organization has
been designated to be the administrative lead of one of these IDNs.

in September 2016, the Organization was awarded a five-year demonstration project from the CMS,
passed through the State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services. At that date, the
Organization was advanced $2,413,256 upon fulfillment of the condition of successful submission and
state approval of an IDN Project Plan. Of that amount, $2,000,000 will be retained by the Organization as
administrative fees for five years and the remaining funds will be disbursed to participants. For years two
through five, the IDNs will continue to earn performance-based incentive funding by achieving defined
targets and any funds received will be passed through to the participants.

Note 5. Related Party Transactions

A majority of the Organization's members and the Organization are also members of a Limited Liability
Company. There were no transactions between the Limited Liability Company and the Organization's
members in 2018 and 2017.

The Organization contracts various services from other organizations of which members of management
of these other organizations may also be board members of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary. Amounts paid to these organizations were $898,736 and $348,668 for the years ended
September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Outstanding amounts due to these organizations as of
September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $33,214 and $37,950, respectively. Outstanding amounts due
from these organizations as of September 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $5,210 and $0, respectively.

Note 6. Retirement Plan

The Organization offers a defined contribution savings and investment plan (the Plan) under section
403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Plan is available to all employees who are 21 years of age or
older. There is no service requirement to participate in the Plan. Employee contributions are permitted
and are subject to IRS limitations. Monthly employer contributions are $50 for each part-time employee
and $100 for each full-time employee. Employer contributions for the years ended September 30, 2018
and 2017 were $61,990 and $26,291, respectively.

- 14 -
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Note 7. Commitnicnt and Contingencies

The Organization receives a significant portion of its support from various funding sources. Expenditure
of these funds requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the related contracts and
agreements. These expenditures are subject to audit by the contracting agencies. Any disallowed
expenditures would become a liability of the Organization requiring repayment to the funding sources.
Liabilities resulting from these audits, if any, will be recorded in the period in which the liability is
ascertained. Management estimates that any potential liability related to such audits will be immaterial.

Note 8. Federal Reports

Additional reports, required by Government Auditing Standards and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, are
included in the supplements to this report.

Note 9. Reclassiricatlons

Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial statements for the year ended September 30,
2017 to conform with the current year presentation.

Note 10. Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year end, the Organization entered into a line of credit agreement with a local bank. The
Organization has S500,000 of available borrowing capacity under this line of credit. The line of credit
bears interest at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus .50% and is secured by all assets of the
Organization. The line of credit is due on demand and matures February 2020.

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through March 26, 2019, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

- 15-
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A.M. PEIS<§H ^CpyANY, LLP
SINCE 1Q20

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH

CONSORTIUM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED REPORTS

SEPTEMBER 30,2018

SINCE 1020
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NORTH COUNTRY ME-ALTII CONSORTIU.M. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

SOieoULE OK EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30. 2018

Federal Granlor/Pass through Cranlor/Program Title

U.S Depardncnl of lieallh and Human Scrviccii

Direcl I'rograms;

Rural Health Care Services Outreach Program (Oral Health)

Network Development

Rural Health Care Services Outreach Program (Opioid)

Health Careers Opportunity

Drug-Free Communities (SAMHSA)

Toial (Urccl programs:

Passed ihrough the Stale of }>!ew Hampshire:

Public Health Emergency Preparedness

Disaster Behavioral Health Response Teams

SAP - 2 Schools

SAP-WMCC

Young Adult Strategies

Young Adult Leadership

School-Based Immunization

Continuum of Care

Student Assistance Program Federal Block Grant

SAP • 5 Schools

Substance Use Disorder (Friendship House)

Substance Misuse Prevention

Community Health Workers

Community- Health Workers (Chronic Disease)

Community Health Workcrsdican Disease)

Community Health Workers (Cancer)

Public Health Advisor)- Council

Total passed through the State of Hew Hampshire:

Passed through the University ofDartmouth Area Health

Education Center:

Area Health Education Centers

Passed through the University of New Hutnpshire:

Practice Transformation Network

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

Federal CFDA

Number

93.912

93.912

93.912

93.329

93.276

93.074

93.074

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.268

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.959

93.757

93.757

93.757

93.898

93.758

93.107

93.638

Grant No.

D04RH28387

D06RH2803I

D04RH3I64I

G06IIP27887

IH79SP02I539-01

Pa.ss-through

Grantor'.i Subgranl

No.

U90TP000535

U90TP000535

SP020796

SP020796

SP020796

SP020796

H23IP0007757

TI0I0035-I4

158557-BOOl

TI0I0035-I6

TI0I0035.I4

TI0I0035.14

NU58DP004821

NU58DP004821

NU58DP004821

NU58DP003930

B010T00937

U77HP03627.09.0l

Agreement #16-039

Federal

Expenditures

106.595

254.067

5.813

366.475

102.222

151.252

619.949

66.566

62.542

129.108

77.695

119.728

96.490

19.547

313.460

8,689

23.666

856

68.584

210.900

69.687

373.693

12.867

29.992

49.985

92.844

24.942

42.025

984.761

76.099

517.138

2.197.947

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for the Year Ended September 30, 2018

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {the Schedule) includes the federal
award activity of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary' (the Organization) under
programs of the federal government for the year ended September 30. 2018. The information in this
Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Cotle of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Reciuirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
the Organization, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of the Organization.

Note 2. Summaiy of Significant Accounting Policies

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance whereby
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Pass-through entity identify'ing numbers are presented where available.

(3) The Organization did not elect to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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A.M. PEIS^H^^J?ANY, LLP
IQ^O

CERTIFiED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

& BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
Littleton, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of September 30, 2018,
and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional e.vpenses, and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 26, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identif>' any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses

may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an. opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ct.yi.
St. Albans, Vennont

March 26, 2019

VTReg. No. 92-0000102 * ^
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A.M. PEIS^Hl^elDli^-p'ANY, LLP
JL IQiO

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

& BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary
Littleton, New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2018. North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and
Subsidiarj 's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statues, regulations, and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of North Country Health Consortium,
Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit .
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Ret/uirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those
standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence about North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessar>' in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance.

-20-

401 Water Tower Circle 27 Center Street 30 Congress Street 1020 Memorial Drive 24 Airport Road, Suite 402
Suite 302 P. 0. Box 326 Suite 201 St. Johnsbury, VT 05819 West Lebanon. NH 03784
Colchester. VT 05446 Rutland, VT 05702 St. Albans, VT 05478 {802)748-5654 (603)306-0100
(802) 654-7255 (802) 773-2721 (802) 527-0505



DocuSign EnveJope ID; 2731EB97-F328-4C5A-B03F-48CDB2B1C005

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management ofNorth Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary' is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered North Country Health
Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to detemiine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of North Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St. Albans, Vermont

March 26, 2019

VT Reg. No. 92-0000102
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2018

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

1. The independent auditor's report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the consolidated
financial statements of North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2. No material weakness or significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>' are reported in
the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Governmental Auditing Sumdcirds.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of North
Country Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No material weakness or significant deficiencies relating to internal control over compliance for
major federal award programs are reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance
for Each Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance.

5. The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal award programs for North Country
Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiary expresses an unmodified opinion on the major federal
program.

6. There were no audit findings that are required to be reported in this schedule in accordance with
2CFR Section 200.516(a).

7. The program tested as a major program was U.S. Department of Health and Human Services -
ACA - Transforming Clinical Practice Initiative: Practice Transformation Networks (CFDA
Number 93.638).

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000.

9. North Countr>' Health Consortium, Inc. and Subsidiar>' was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year

ended September 30, 2018.

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the federal program for the year ended September
30, 2018.
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NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended September 30, 2018

2017 and 2016 FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - AUDIT OF MAJOR FEDERAL

AWARD PROGRAMS

2017 Finding:

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the major federal program for the year ended
September 30, 2017.

2016 Finding:

There were no reported findings related to the audit of the major federal program for the year ended
September 30, 2016;
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NCHC Board
President (0)

Michael Lee

President, Weeks Medical Center

Vice President (0)
Rev. Curtis Metzger

All Saints' Episcopal Church

Treasurer (0)

Michael Counter

Executive Director, Nortli Country Home Health & Hospice Agency

Secretary (0)
Karen Woods

Administrative Director, Cottage Hospital

Scott Colby

President & CEO, Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital

Ed Duffy

Executive Vice President, Littleton Regional Healthcare

Suzanne Gaetjens-Oleson

Regional Mental Health Administrator, Northern Human Services

Ken Gordon

CEO, Coos County Family Health Services

Gregory Culley, MD
Interim CEO, Indian Stream Health Center

Tara MacKillop

Executive Director, Androscoggin Valley Home Care Services

Lars Nielson, MD

Community SUD Provider

jeanne Robillard

CEO, Tri-County Community Action Program



ANNETTE COLE

EXPERIENCE

2019-PRESENT

PUBLIC HEALTH PROGRAM MANAGER

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM

•  Management of multi-initiative program

•  Coordination of School Based Immunization Program

•  Participant in community activities that promote and disseminate public health information and
program activities

•  Collaboration with project staff to assure continuation of project activities through development

of business and healthcare agency relationships, and through grant development

•  Public health program liaison with regional schools and business community

•  Outreach services to businesses In the North Country area with workplace wellness and

emergency preparedness information

•  Assists with Public Health Program Implementation

2016-PRESENT

PROGRAM MANAGER

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM

•  Management of program administration, delivery of clinical services for public health dental clinic

•  Responsible for integrating oral health outreach initiatives as part of Community Health

Improvement Plan such as workplace wellness and community oral health presentations

•  Development and retention of working relationships with school staff, administrators, and nursing
home administrators to sustain service delivery of public health dental program

•  Coordination of schedule, daily operations of dental practice, maintenance of budget, data

management, comprehensive grant reporting, program communications: compliance with state,
federal and organizational policy guidelines, patient care coordination

2012-2016

CERTIFIED PUBLIC HEALTH DENTAL HYGIENIST

NORTH COUNTRY HEALTH CONSORTIUM

•  Direct patient care delivery, patient care coordination

•  Creation and presentation of oral health education training sessions for community health

workers, health careers summer camp students, nursing home staff and community members

2010-2012

REGISTERED DENTAL HYGIENIST/PROGRAM COORDINATOR

DHHS SUBCONTRACTOR WITH TRI-COUNTY HEAD START, BERLIN, NH

2009-2011

MEDICAL EDITOR

TRANSCEND MEDICAL, BURLINGTON, MA

2008 - 2009

REGISTERED DENTAL HYGIENIST/l-YR GRANT-FUNDED CONTRACTUAL POSITION

NH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES, CONCORD, NH



2005 - 2008

MEDICAL EDITOR

MEDQUIST, MOUNT LAUREL, NJ

2002 - 2004

REGISTERED DENTAL HYGIENIST

GORHAM FAMILY DENTISTRY

1995-2002

REGISTERED DENTAL HYGIENIST

DR. BERKLEY PEMBERTON, DDS

EDUCATION

2018

MASTER OF SCIENCE IN MANAGEMENT, GRANITE STATE COLLEGE

2015

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE HEALTHCARE MANAGEMENT, SUMMA CUM LAUDE, GRANITE STATE

COLLEGE

1995

ASSOCIATE OF SCIENCE IN DENTAL HYGIENE, NH TECHNICAL INSTITUTE

CERTTFI CATIONS

2015

MOTIVATIONAL INTERVIEWING, HEALTH EDUCATION & TRAINING INSTITUTE

2014-2016

CERTIFIED APPLICATIONS COUNSELOR, NH FEDERALLY FACILITATED MARKETPLACE

2014

CERTIFIED PUBLIC HEALTH DENTAL HYGIENIST, NH TECHNICAL INSITUTE

TECHNICAL SKILLS

•  Proficient with Microsoft Office Suite, Softdent, Eaglesoft, Dentrix, Adobe, and social media platforms

•  Experienced public health speaker/presenter

ACHTVITT ESA'OLUN'reER EXPERIENCE

•  Volunteer provider at north country school athletic • New Hampshire DHHS Senior Survey for Oral

mouth guard fabrication annual clinics Health volunteer screener

. • Member of CASA New Hampshire Advisory Board • Head Start Health Advisory Committee member

•  Community Health Worker Coalition member • Androscoggin Chamber of Commerce volunteer



April D. Mottram, RPh

Summary

Over 8 years of increasing management experience for the North Country Health
Consortium as both a Program Manager and Director for the Northern New Hampshire
Area Health Education Center, Integrated Delivery Network, and Public Health Network.
18 years of pharmacist experience in the local community and hospital environments, 13
of which were in a supervisory management level. Direct experience as owner and sole

proprietor of an independent pharmacy and a gift shop.

Experience

Director of Programs, North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH
October 2019-current

Responsible for program oversight of the North Country Public Health Network, Executive
Director of the Region 7 Integrated Delivery Network, and Center Director for the Northern
New Hampshire Area Health Education Center. Additional responsibilities include
monitoring for grant funding opportunities, grant writing, coordinating grant submissions;
Oversight activities include monitoring program budgets, reviewing of workplans and
progress reports to ensure program deliverables are met; supervision of Public Health
Program Manager, Public Health Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, Substance
Misuse Prevention Senior Program Manager, and NCHC Senior Program Manager; and
member of NCHC Senior Leadership Team

Director of Workforce Integration & Training, North Country Health Consortium,
Littleton, NH

October 2018-October 2019

Responsible for program oversight of the Region 7 Integrated Delivery Network (IDN), the
Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center (NNH AHEC), North Country
Public Health Network, and North Country Health Consortium Substance Misuse
Prevention Programs, including Drug Free Communities. Oversight activities include
supen/ising program staff; working with local and state government to secure funding
sources necessary to support project-based deliverables; providing direction in the
administration of contracts and associated subcontracts to ensure achievement of

performance metrics and project deliverables; grant writing, fostering collaborative
relationships, including cross-program opportunities; and identifying new program
development options.

Integrated Delivery Network Program Manager, North Country Health Consortium,
Littleton, NH
July 2016-October 2018
Responsible for overall program management activities to support successful
achievement of project outcomes for Region 7 Integrated Delivery Network. Activities
included supervision of IDN program staff; creating processes and procedures to
accomplish IDN program objectives, metrics, and deliverables; monitoring project
activities to ensure continuity and alignment with Region 7 IDN program goals and IDN
Statewide initiatives; coordination and implementation of IDN projects activities to ensure
regional effectiveness and efficiency of the IDN program; monitoring budgeted program
expenditures; managing contracts with community partners; ensuring compliance to
fidelity; creating performance reports, analyses, and program reports.



Owner, Newfound Nook Gifts & More, Bristol, NH
January 2016-September 2016
Retail Business Owner/Operator. Created gift shop business from the ground up.
Responsible for all aspects of the business, including inventory control and maintaining
finances.

Pharmacy Manager, Indian Stream Health Center Pharmacy, Colebrook, NH
Aprir2013-December 2015
Provision and supervision of pharmaceutical care that is patient-centered and outcomes
oriented. Responsibilities included preparing and dispensing medications pursuant to
provider prescriptions; working in concert with the patient and the patient's other health
care providers to promote health, to prevent disease, and to assess, monitor, initiate, and
modify medication use to assure that drug therapy regimens are safe and effective;
inventory management; and ensuring 340B program regulations were followed and in
compliance; supervising the Prescription Assistance Program; and supervising pharmacy
staff.

Workforce Development Director/Grants Administrator, North Country Health
Consortium/Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center, Littleton, NH
April 2012-March 2013
Worked as the Workforce Development Director for a rural health network.
Responsibilities included overseeing the development and implementation of a variety of
community-based health professions education programs with particular emphasis on
programs designed to support access to quality health care in Northern New Hampshire;
collaborating with community partners to complete community health needs
assessments; providing oversight for the Workforce Development Program; preparing
and managing Workforce Development program budget; completing and submitting
reports to funding agencies and monitoring work of subcontractors as assigned.
Additional responsibilities included grants administration for all programs of the North
Country Health Consortium.

Workforce Education & Development Program Manager, North Country Health
Consortium/Northern New Hampshire Area Health Education Center, Littleton, NH
November 2009-Aprll 2012
Worked as the Northern NH Area Health Education Center {NNH AHEC) Program
Manager. Responsibilities included planning and coordinating continuing education
programs for healthcare professionals; promoting health career awareness; managing
multiple funding sources; and providing oversight to staff involved with health careers and
community-based education programs.

Health Careers Counselor, North Country Health Consortium, Whitefield, NH
January 2009-November 2009
Worked in Coos and Grafton County to recruit students into health career occupations and
provide support for students interested in health professions training programs.
Responsibilities included developing programs to promote health careers and "hands on"
learning experiences; creating student tracking mechanisms to show progression of
education; and developing and implementing a successful Health Careers Summer Camp
program.

Pharmacist, LaPerle's IGA Pharmacy, Colebrook, NH .
May 2008-December 2008
Worked as a community pharmacist at a 340B qualified pharmacy. Responsibilities
included prescription verification; Drug Utilization Reviews; following Federal and State
rules; providing clinical support to physicians and patients; and supervising pharmacy
technicians.



Pharmacist, Upper Connecticut Valley Hospital, Colebrook NH
March 2006-March 2008

Worked as a hospital pharmacist performing drug utilization reviews; dispensing
medication for in-patient use; processing prescriptions for employees; teaching
community members about diabetes medications; supervising pharmacy technicians;
following Federal and State rules; and working with nurses and physicians to ensure
quality patient care.

Pharmacist, Rite Aid Corporation, Lancaster, NH
December 2005-June 2006

Responsibilities included prescription verification; Drug Utilization Reviews; providing
clinical support to physicians and patients; following Federal and State rules; and
supervising pharmacy technicians.

Pharmacy owner, Pharmacist, Groveton Pharmacy, Groveton, NH
April 2002-December 2005
Responsibilities included all pharmacist roles. Additional responsibilities included
complying with Federal and State regulations; record keeping; inventory management;
payroll; deposits; accounts payable; accounts receivable; budgets; and human resources.

Pharmacist-in-Charge, Groveton Pharmacy, Groveton, NH
March 1995-March 2002

Provided prescribed medications for adequate patient care; managed control substances
inventory; counseled public on prescription and non-prescription medications ensured
compliance with State and Federal rules and regulations; supervised pharmacy
technicians; ensured adequate control and documentation of all controlled substance
records; participated in disease state management; and monitored drug therapy in
collaboration with physicians and/or other health professionals.

Pharmacist, Rite Aid, Derby, VT
March 1993-March 1995

Ensured that every customer received friendly, knowledgeable, and efficient service.
Checked all work done by pharmacy technician prior to dispensing medications. Upheld
service standards for counseling, dispensing, and pricing of prescriptions.

Education:

Massachusetts College of Pharmacy, Boston, MA
B.S. Pharmacy 1992

References: Available upon request



CATHY ROY

SUMMARY

Astute professional with 15 plus years of experience in accounting and management within non-profit health

education/substance abuse, academic research administration, resort & hospitality and manufacturing settings.

Demonstrated expertise in both front and back of house systems, accounting and financial reporting systems.

^  EXPERIENCE

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH

Director of Finance 03/2020 to present

•  Oversee all finance department activities including budgeting, financial forecasting, financial reporting

requirements, and cash flor for administration, existing programs, and proposed new programs and services.

•  Review and approve preparation and finalization of monthly and annual financial reporting materials and

metrics for CEO and Board of Directors.

•  Coordinate all activities for financial, federal, state and worker's compensation audits.

•  Partner with CEO on the organization's financial, budgeting, and administrative processes.

•  Supervise Finance Team and serve as liaison between finance team and CEO.

•  Monitor insurance coverages.

•  Monitor clinical service insurance claim billing and collections.

•  Assist with payroll and benefit oversight.

•  Collaborate with senior leadership to review and update Financial Policies and Procedures.

Financial Controller 01/2019 to 03/2020

•  Direct supervision of Finance staff (Payroll/Benefits Admin, Accounts Payable, Accounts Receivable, Purchasing)

•  Preparation and oversight of all finance related audits in collaboration with CFO.

• Monthly financial reports to CFO, provide direct oversight to Finance team to adhere to monthly schedule to

produce timely and accurate reporting.

• Assist with oversight of clinical service insurance claim billing and collections.

•  Collaborate with CFO in preparation of monthly, quarterly and annual reporting requirements by funders.

•  Responsible for the application of all NCHC Policies, including the Finance Procedures Manual and applicable

State and Federal guidelines.

• Assist with the creation of budgets for new, existing and potential revenue streams from outside funders.

Assist with the annual organization wide budget preparation in coordination with Finance Team input including

managing the timeline.

ARC MECHANICAL CONTRACTORS, Bradford, VT

Controller 04/2018 to 08/2018

• Manage weekly cash flow to correspond with business levels utilizing line of credit vs receivables.

•  Process month end including payroll - produce financial statements - income statement, cash flow, balance

sheet for submission to funding representatives.

•  Produce reports associated with percent of completion on all open HVAC projects - job cost monitoring.

• Oversee contract billing - communication with project managers to assess amount to bill and forecast

completion for work in process reports.

•  Collection efforts for delinquent Accounts Receivable.

DARTMOUTH COLLEGE, Hanover, NH

Operations Director - Blomedlcal Data Science Department 07/2015 to 03/2018
•  Financial Planning & Budgeting - develop plan for group/research team's financial goals working with

departmental and division senior leadership. Working with the Dean's Office, the Office of Sponsored Projects,



Office of Finance to implement processes and procedures for successfully monitoring and streamlining the

research objectives.

• Analyze on-going and planned research, available funding, anticipated fluctuations in funding, staffing and

other resources to project current and long-term financial needs.

• Grant administration including budget development, creating the financial components of faculty grant
applications for submission to federal, state and private agencies with a focus on large multi-center $12 to $18
million federal projects. Manage the departmental portfolio of approximately $48m (over a 5-year span).

• Translate research plans into scope of work; identify areas in which costs will be incurred and develop estimates

for such costs, manpower, equipment, supplies, communications, travel, etc.

• Manage the work of administrative and research staff in preparing and submitting grant applications. Ensure

that all components are accurately and properly prepared and submitted timely.

• Develop recruitment packages and act as the department contact for potential recruits. Oversee recruitment of
research personnel as required by principal investigators. Work in conjunction with the Dean's office on the
promotion timeline and submission of faculty promotion package.

Administrative Officer • CFMED • Section of Biostatlstlcs/Epidemiology 10/2013 -07/2015

»  Oversee staff that prepare and process payables, deposits, journal transfers and labor distribution updates.

Supervise the reconciliation of monthly financial reports and the resolution of discrepancies.

•  Pre-award administration responsibilities include developing research proposals, negotiating and executing

grants and contracts, working directly with faculty and staff to submit proposals, and educating faculty on best
practices and compliance of sponsored research.

•  Post-award administration duties include grant and contract compliance, reviewing financial reports, monitoring

time and effort certifications, completing RPPR reports, and grant budget preparation.

BURKE MOUNTAIN, East Burke, VT

Controller/HR Manager 08/2007 to 07/2013

•  Executive management team member responsible for guiding the resort's resources and personnel towards the

goals and initiatives set by the Development Company.

• Preparation of annual business plan along with direction of budget process with upper management and their
direct reports.

• Educate staff on use of budget templates along with labor schedule tools to produce accurate budgets and

forecasts.

•  Develop and distribute trend analysis to management to assist in budgeting and forecasts.

•  Responsible for all payroll management, including hiring, training, and orientation.

•  Direct staff on use of system including report analysis.

• Negotiation of benefit package along with administration of all facets including workers compensation.

•  Development of forecasting tool in conjunction with sql contractor to be used by management to monitor

daily/weekly/month to date business levels compared to prior year(s) and budget.

• Cash flow preparation for both operations and development requirements reflecting the actual revenue.

ATTITASH SKI RESORT Bartlett, NH

Financial Controller 02/2006 to 08/2007

•  Direct and manage all accounting, reporting, budgeting and forecasting for ski resort and hotel.

• Monitor business trends to ensure optimum yield for products.

•  Insure that the systems of internal control are in place, upgraded as needed and utilized resort wide.

• • Direct accounting staff in all daily/weekly/monthly accounting,function and analyze resulting weekly/monthly
financial results compared to budget/history.

• Manage staff of 4 accountants, ticket manager and 2 payroll clerks.

•  Preparation of annual business plan for both ski resort & hotel working closely with department heads and

general managers of both resort & hotel.



•  Annual preparation of budget for Grand Summit Unit Owners Association - a quarter share condominium

Association.

Financial Reporting/Budget Manager 01/2003 to 02/2006
•  Preparation of weekly/monthly/quarterly financial statements.

•  Provide variance commentary to management team members on budget to actual performance variances.

• Manage annual budget process - weekly line Item budgeting - coordinate Department managers to develop
their annual budget.

•  Balance Sheet, P&L analysis; preparation of trial balance account schedules for SEC reporting.

• Manage flow of Information from A/R, A/P, and payroll personnel In a timely fashion to consolidate the financial
reporting process. '

EDUCATION

B.S: MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL ADMINISTRATION

Keene State College, Keene, NH

Granite State College (formerly CLL) - Required coursework for B.S.Accounting

AFFILIATIONS

•  International Society of Research Administrators (SRA)

• National Council of University Research Administrators (NCURA)

• Society for Human Resource Management (SHRM)

SOFTWARE

ComputerEase

Oracle Business Intelligence

Hyperion Reporting

CODA FInanclals

Timberline

AccPac/NormIng fixed assets

ADP Payroll

Kronos Timekeeping

EPay Business Solutions

AccuFund

Paychex Flex



Becky McEnany, MA

Professional Experience

Over 30 years in healthcare and public health with the last 14 years serving NH non-profits with
specific focus on Grafton, Coos, and Carroll Counties. Responsibilities include: senior
leadership; operations; organizational and program policy development; emergency operations
systems development; accreditation and regulation compliance; program management and

supervision; grant writing and grant management; team leading and coalition building; training
and education; quality improvement; and marketing. Significant medical and behavioral health
care senior leadership experience in both New Hampshire and Washington DC area.

Professional History

North Country Health Consortium, Littleton, NH
Interim Chief Executive Officer, May 2020-Present
Director of Quality and Operations, October 2018-Present

•  Serve on Senior Leadership Team for past five years.
•  Supervise operations and office management at all NCHC locations.
•  Responsible for all quality improvement efforts including identification of areas for

improvement, data collection, data analysis, quarterly and annual reports, and
performance improvement plan.

.  Led CARF accreditation of Residential, Intensive Outpatient, and Outpatient Programs
resulting in 3 year accreditation.
Serve as point-person for all NCHC organizational and clinical program policies and
procedures, emergency operations procedures, and compliance with CARF and NH
Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services requirements.

•  Responsible for all CARP NCHC Organizational annual plans and reports.
Provide Motivational Interviewing training.

Program Director, March 2015-September 2018
•  Responsible forNCHC's Healthcare Quality Improvement Programs and Practice

Transformation Network, NCHC's only statewide initiative. Supervise statewide remote
team of practice facilitators to support 119 healthcare practices in their transition to
value-based care including: program management; staff recruitment, training, and
supervision; budgeting, data collection and analysis, and reporting to funders; and
collaboration with local, regional, and national partners. Serve on both New Hampshire
and New England leadership teams.

Program Coordinator, January 2014-Febraury 2015
•  Managed Northern NH Chronic Disease Self-Management Program including support to

local leaders, workshop promotion, data collection and analysis, and membership on the
New Hampshire Chronic Disease Self-Management leadership team.
Responsible for supervision and implementation of federally funded obesity reduction
initiative with participating North Country Federally Qualified Health Centers.



National Alliance on Mental Illness, Concord, NH
Community Educator and Prevention Specialist, Connect Suicide Prevention Program,
August 2006-January 2014

•  Member of Connect Suicide Prevention and Connect Postvenlion training teams.
•  Provided national best practice suicide prevention and postvention training throughout

the United States to coalitions, state organizations, schools and college campuses, and
community partners.
Developed National Best Practice two-day speaking program, SurvivorVoices.
Implemented SurvivorVoices across the United States, including training American
Indian/Alaskan Native facilitators to bring program back to tribal communities.

•  Developed resources and coordinated the NH Survivor of Suicide Loss network, support
group development, speaker training, statewide teleconference coordination, and
statewide printed annual survivor newsletter and monthly E-news.

•  Served on NH State Suicide Prevention Council Communications Committee promoting
responsible reporting. Duties included teaching responsible reporting to UNH advanced
journalism students, film screenings and panel discussions, writing news stories, and
contact with all NH media outlets.

Developed program materials. Wrote social media content and press releases, pitched and
wrote radio stories, responded to media inquiries.
Wrote and implemented federal and local grants.

Self Employed
Managed Care Consultant, 1998- 2002

•  Trained medical and behavioral health practices in recruitment strategies, marketing,
managed care requirements, billing, and effective communication withreferral sources.

Concentra Managed Care, Bedford, NH
Marketing Specialist/Medical Case Manager, 1994- 1998 and 1987-1989

Responsible for forty major accounts specializing in workers' compensation managed
care and long-term disability clinical case management; coordinated team services
including counseling, medical case management, vocational placement, and coordination
of independent medical evaluations; provided employer training on managed care
requirements and workplace safety.

Center for Occupational Medicine, Greater Washington Rehabilitation Center Silver
Spring, MD
Director, 1991- 1994

Developed and managed out-patient rehabilitation facility from the ground up including
budget, staffing, policy and procedure development, and supervision and training of
mullidisciplinary treatment team.
Awarded the first CARF accredited work hardening and pain management programs in
the Washington DC area. Received the highest level of accreditation with no
recommendations for improvement given and specific acknowledgment for excellence in
administrative leadership..



Pain Rehabilitation Center, HCA Portsmouth Regional Hospital, Portsmouth, NH
Clinical Coordinator, 1989 -1991

•  Coordinated treatment team, patient recruitment and education, and case management of
injured workers, including multidisciplinary counseling and therapies.

•  Developed and implemented marketing and CARF accreditation strategy.

Region 10 Client Management, Plalstow, NH
Vocational Supervisor, 1986-1987

Supported clients with developmental disabilities in vocational placements.

Education

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
MA, Personal and Organizational Wellness, 2014

Bates College, Lewision, ME
BA, Psychology, 1985
Honors, Phi Beta Kappa, Bates Key, President's Prize (1984, 1985)

Milton Academy, Milton, MA
Diploma, 1981

Current Board and Volunteer Service

Board Member, Northern Human Services, 2016-Present
Secretary, Executive Committee, Northern Human Services, 2018-Present

.  Certified Dog Therapy Team, Helping F^aws, 2015-Present

Awards

•  Citation from NH Governor John Lynch in recognition of commitment to improve
suicide prevention efforts in NH, 2009.
Individually recognized by the Commission on the Accreditation of Rehabilitation
Facilities for excellence in leadership and rehabilitation program management, 1994.

Public Speaking

.  Numerous trainings on mental illness, suicide prevention, teamwork, and motivational
interviewing.
Speaking engagements and workshops at local and regional conferences.

Publications

Nigro, G.N. and Roak, R.M. (1987). Memory for Spatial Location in Retarded and Non-
Retarded Adults. American Journal of Mental Deficiencv.

Surviving The Loss of a Loved One to Suicide (booklet created for NH survivors of
suicide loss)
Annual Survivor of Suicide Loss Newsletter, 2006-2014, and contributions to many local

and national publications on suicide prevention, postvention, and sur\'ivor of suicide loss
support.



Certifications

MINT Member, Motivational Interviewing Network ofTrainers, International, 2016
Trainer, Motivational Interviewing, Health education and Training Institute, 2016
Coach, Motivational Interviewing, Health education and Training Institute, 2016
Master Trainer, TeamSTEPPS, 2015
Clinical Microsystems Coach-the-Coach Certification, The Dartmouth Institute, 2014
Leader Certification, Stanford Chronic Disease Self-Management Program, 2014
Master Trainer, Connect Suicide Prevenlion/Postvention Programs, NAMl, 2006

Technology Skills: Outlook. Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Publisher, Share Point, Visio,
Grasshopper, Go-To-Meeting, Zoom, Moodle



Kristen G. van Bergen-Buteau, CPHQ

OBJECTIVE

To serve as a leader within the community, with a focus on improving the quality of healthcare and

education for North Country residents.

EDUCATION

2020 - Present

Practice

2016 - Present

1997 - 2000

1998-1999

1994-1997

1991-1994

University of New Hampshire, Master of Arts, Community Development Policy &

Neil & Louise Tillotson Fund's Community Practitioners' Network

USNH College for Lifelong Learning, Bachelor of Science, Behavioral Science

International 4-H Youth Exchange Delegate to the Netherlands (June 1998 - March 1999)
University of New Hampshire Bachelor of Science general studies

WMRHS Graduate, Salutatorian

CERTIFICATIONS

2008 - Present

2015 - Present

Certified Professional in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ)

American Heart Association BLS certification

WORK EXPERIENCE

2019 - Present Senior Program Manager, North Country Health Consortium

•  Overall program management for the Integrated Delivery Network (IDN), Northern NH Area
Health Education Center (NNH AHEC), and North Country Public Health Network (NC PHN)

programs, including budgets, funding process, development and submission of all required
program reports, and partner agreements to ensure program deliverables are completed

•  Supervise IDN, NNH AHEC and NC PHN program staff and participate in NCHC leadership

meetings

•  Evaluate and assess program strengths, identify areas for improvement and implement
interventions to ensure that program goals are achieved

•  Operationalize project plan to ensure timely achievement of deliverables and milestones

•  Foster partner engagement to build upon the successful innovative collaboration to improve the
health status of the region

•  Build positive relations within the team and external parties by keeping all stakeholders up-to-

date with relevant project information, communicating to ensure maximum efficiency and
participating as a team member to complete program deliverables

•  Coordinate with staff from other NCHC program areas to ensure collaborative opportunities are

identified and regional progress is reflected in program reports

2009 - 2019 Assistant Director, Quality Services, Littleton Regional Healthcare
•  Provided day-to-day operational oversight for the Quality Services Department, including

budgeting, management of personnel and delegation of tasks

•  Oversaw and coordinated facility programs for Risk Management, Corporate Compliance, Patient

Safety, Quality Improvement, Patient Relations, Customer Service, survey readiness activities for
state and federal licensing activities

•  Chair, Ethics Committee

•  Coordinator, LRH Family Support Team

•  Facilitated North Country Transitions in Care team monthly meetings

•  Represented LRH at North Country Healthcare workgroups for Quality, Compliance, Risk
Management and Privacy

•  Served as facility/point of contact for population health initiatives, including Accountable Care



Organization, Integrated Dellverv Network and Community Care Organization work
•  Assisted in the implementation of leadership and cultural development programs

•  Provided orientation to LRH culture to all new hires for the organization

2005 - 2009 Data Specialist & Executive Administrative Support, Quality Services, Littleton Regional
Hospital
•  Provided executive support to the Chief Administrative Officer/Chief Nursing Officer and CEO
•  Assisted in coordination, development, implementation, continuation and follow-up of projects

developed by Quality Services and Department Leaders, including the coordination of data
collection, analysis and reporting for identified quality improvement initiatives

2003 - 2005 Training and QA Staff Coordinator, Patient Access Services, Littleton Regional Hospital
2002 - 2003 Emergency Department Registrar, Littleton Regional Hospital
1999 - 2000 Clinical Lab Clerk, Weeks Medical Center

1997 -1999 Cashier, Rite Aid Corporation

•  Junior Level Management (Key Cashier) promotion 12/97

1995 - 1997 Resident Advisor, UNH Department of Residential Life, Durham, NH,
•  Training in the areas of behavior, academic success, leadership, and personal support systems
•  Student referrals to services on campus

•  Regular contact with the public as a UNH representative

1992 -1997 McDonald's Restaurant, Lancaster, NH

•  Member of the Customer Service Committee 1993 - 1994

VOLUNTEER/COMMUNITY SERVICE EXPERIENCE

2018 - Present SAU 36 School Board Member, Lancaster Representative

•  Educational Programming & Curriculum Committee

•  Personnel Committee

•  Policy Committee

2019 - Present Parent Volunteer, Girl Scouts USA Troop 30356

2017- Present Scouting BSATroop 219, Lancaster NH

•  Troop Committee Member

•  Advancement Coordinator

•  Merit Badge Counselor

2015 - 2016 Member, SAU 36 Ad Hoc Strategic Planning Committee

2012 - 2017 Hospice volunteer for North Country Home Health & Hospice Agency

2009 - Present Member, Littleton Regional Healthcare Family Support Team
2007 - Present Member, Weeks Medical Center Family Support Team

Spring 1996 UNH Alternative Break Challenge, Habitat for Humanity, Zanesville, OH
1990 - 2010 Toys for Tots delivery, John W. Weeks VFW Post 3041

1999-2000 Staff, Lancaster Kids Count Program

REFERENCES

Available upon request



Bob Thompson

Objective

Continue pursuing a career in the education, substance misuse prevention, and behavioral health fields that

improves the lives of others, provides professional fulfillment, and is compatible with personal lifcst)'le interests.

Experience

Senior Program Manager

North Country Health Consortium

Litllcloh, NH

September 2019 - Present

Director, Office of Student
Wellness

Berlin Public Schools

Berlin, NH

April 2015 - September 2019

Program Manager

North Country Health Consortium

Littleton, NH

March 2007 - April 2015

Programs Manager

Tri-Counly Community Action Programs

Alcohol and Other Drug Division

Berlin, NH

October-1997 - March-2007

Responsible for all management and oversight responsibilities

associated with the Consortium's Substance Misuse Prevention

portfolio.

Manage SAMHSA funded Project AVVAJiE, Systems of Care

Wraparound Services, and Restorative Justice grant programs. Direct

all Office of Student Wellness related activities.

Responsible for all management level responsibilities associated with

the Consortium's Substance Misuse Prevention portfolio.

Managed all Impaired Driver Intervention Programs; developed and

managed Adolescent Siibslnncc Abuse Pni'ciilion (ASAP) program in

Carroll, Coos, and northern Crafton County district courts.

Education

Bachelor of Science

San Diego State University -1979

Master of Science

Granite State College - 2014

Major; Geography/Environmental Studies
Minor: Bic>logy/Conservation

Leadership/Project Management

Skills and Credentials

Certified Prevention Specialist, 2012 - present; Positive Behavioral InterventionsandSupports Trained Trainer Program at University of

Connecticut, 2016-17; Board Certified Behavioral Analyst education program, Florida Institute' of Technology 2017; Selectman, Town of

Jackson, 2012-2019.



Gregory Williams

EXPERIENCE:

EDUCATION:

SKILLS:

LANGUAGES:

North Country Health Consortium | Littleton, New Hampshire | March 2017 - Present
North Country Regional Prevention Network Coordinator

•  Coordinates strategies designed to reduce substance misuse in the North Country of
New Hampshire

• Works closely with NCHC Senior Program Manager to ensure effective allocation of
resources and maximize strategy effectiveness.

North Country Charter Academy | Lancaster, New Hampshire | August 2014 - March
2017

High School Teacher

•  Help reduce the dropout rate by working with at risk and disadvantaged youth that
can not successfully navigate through a traditional high school. Individualize and
personalize each student's online high school experience to promote success.

Kaze Martial Arts | Lancaster, New Hampshire | October 2005-Present
Martial Arts Instructor

•  Owner and operator of one of the most successful martial arts schools in the North
Country. Giving youth and adults a healthy alternative to substance abuse by
mentoring and believing in them. I have interacted with hundreds of individuals in
the past 11 years at Kaze Dojo.

Jerry lam j Bath, New Hampshire | July 2013 - Present
Head of Security

•  Keep the peace and help keep safe, the 5 thousand attendees of the Jerry Jam music
festival. Hire a staff of 10 peacekeepers to report any problems to the local
authorities. Be the liaison between the organizers and the police in Bath and
neighboring towns. Because of my reputation and work with law enforcement. I was
asked to make sure that both organizers and local municipalities work together to
hold a successful event. So far, the past 3 years have been very successful!

Schillings | Littleton, New Hampshire | October 2013 • Present
Event Security Agent

•  Make sure patrons are in compliance with NH State liquor laws. Hired to work larger
events such as Oktoberfest and New Years.

State University of New York at Stony Brook | Stony Brook, New York | August 2015
Bachelor's Degree-Studio ArL

•  Black Belt in 6 different Martial Arts.

•  Working artist, currently doing shows in the North Country.

Spanish

REFERENCES: References are available upon request.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 2731EB97-F328-4C5A-B03F-48CDB2B1C005

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name:

Name of Contract:

North Country Health Consortium

Regional Public Health Network- Amendment #3 - COVID-19 Response

BUDGET PERIOD: SPY 21

NAME JOB TITLE

•j

SALARY

PERCENT RAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

AMOUNT RAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

April Mottram Oiriector of Programs $88,262 5.00% $4,413.10

Nicole Woods

Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Coordinator $63,187 10.00% $6,318.70

Kris van Bergen-Buteau NCHC Senior Program Manager $73,715 7.50% $5,528.63

TOTAL SALARIES $16,260



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Becky McEnany Interim CEO $112,475 .05% $562.38

Cathy Roy Director of Finance $86,922.32 .05 $434.61

April Mottram Director of Programs (PH) $88,262.20 2.0 $1,765.24

Kris van Bergen-
Buleau

Program Manager $73,714.89 .05 $368.57

Robert Thompson Sr. Program Manager $77,415.52 40.0 $30,966.21

Annette Cole Program Manager $74,438.00 . 21.3 $15,855.29

Gregory Williams Program Coordinator $68,568.03 2.0 $1,371.36


